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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

The Group has long adhered to the philosophy of “operating with heart and focusing on the customer”. By leveraging our
strong brand reputation and established professional teams, the Group maintained stable operating performance and
provided customers with high-quality products and services.

Over the past year, local enterprises have had to operate within a dramatically deteriorating business environment, owing to
complicated and ever-changing global economic conditions alongside the impact of rapid economic upheaval, political
instability and continuous asset price adjustments in Hong Kong. As a result, the Group’s overall operating performance for
the period was adversely affected. However, we are confident that we will be able to cope with the difficulties and
challenges we face and attain stable investment returns.
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Expansion Opportunities

During 2019, domestic and international tensions continued
to ramp up and gradually spilled over into the local
economy, with the tourism and retail sectors bearing the
brunt of the negative impact. Inevitably, this put pressure on
the Group's overall operations. The performance of our
property investment and leasing business segments was
adversely affected accordingly, with moderate decreases
already recorded in rental income from flagship properties
such as Sounawill Plaza and Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown,
among others. Nevertheless, thanks to our solid foundation,
the impact on the Group’s overall operations during the
period remained modest, with our investment property
portfolio activities and the development of our urban
renewal projects progressing as scheduled throughout the
period.

The Group will continue to closely monitor market
developments and look for expansion opportunities. We will
constantly review our business arrangements with a view to
consolidating our existing operations and striving for
innovation through the enhanced application of digital
marketing technologies, so as to achieve diversified
development. We will also continue to optimise our asset
portfolio in order to improve efficiency.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Over the years, the Group has participated enthusiastically
in various charitable activities that care for society, while at
the same time embedding sustainable development and
environmental protection into our corporate culture to fulfill
our corporate social responsibilities.

Last year, the Group was honoured by a number of
institutions for our social and community contributions. We
received the “Caring Company” award from The Hong Kong
Council of Social Service for the eighth consecutive year, as
well as such commendations as “Heart To Heart
Company”, “Corporate Citizenship”, “Partner Employer” and
“Construction Industry Caring Organisation”. These are all
testament to the Group’s active promotion of the charitable
spirit. Looking ahead, the Group will continue to improve the
effectiveness of our sustainable development and actively
contribute to society by devoting our resources to making
Hong Kong an even better place to live and work.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Prospects

2020 will be a challenging year. The likely continued spread
of the novel coronavirus epidemic, coupled with fast-
changing local and international conditions and concerns
over slowing global economic growth, will make Hong
Kong’s situation more complicated and severe. We expect
that the local economy and property leasing market will be
unavoidably affected.

Despite increased market uncertainty, however, the Group
will remain committed to our core values. Taking a long-
term view, we will closely monitor market conditions so as to
flexibly deploy our resources in response to changes. The
Group is confident that we will be able to cope with the
various challenges we face, and turn crisis into opportunity.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders, the Board
and our business partners. The solid foundation that the
Group has established over the past year is a credit to the
hard work of our staff, and | would like to thank them all for
their dedication. In the year ahead, our management team
and staff members will work closely to tackle emerging
challenges and explore further development opportunities,
with the goal of creating value for our shareholders and
society.

FOO Kam Chu Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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DIRECTORS’ PROFILE

FOO KAM CHU GRACE

Aged 76, is the founder of the Group, Chairman and executive director of the Company and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group. Madam Foo has extensive experience in the property market. She has been
engaged in the property business in Hong Kong since early 1970s, particularly specialised in the acquisition of
old buildings for redevelopment into commercial or residential buildings. Madam Foo is the mother of Ms.
Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company. Madam Foo is currently responsible for the overall steering
of the Group’s management, the Group’s overall corporate development direction and provides strategic
advice and planning to the Group.

CHAN WAI LING

Aged 49, is an executive director of the Company and a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. She is in
charge of the Hong Kong property department and is responsible for the property development and leasing of
Hong Kong properties of the Group. She graduated from the University of Toronto, Canada with a bachelor
degree in commerce and also obtained a Master of Business Administration Degree from University of
Strathclyde, United Kingdom. Before joining the Group in September 1998, she had worked in an international
property consultant firm and had operated her own property investment business. She is the daughter of
Madam Foo, Chairman and executive director of the Company.

TSE WAI HANG

Aged 54, was appointed as an executive director and company secretary of the Company on 1 September
2019 and 25 January 2019 respectively. He is the head of Legal Department of the Company and in charge of
the legal and company secretarial department of the Group. He holds directorship in certain subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Tse graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws. He is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years working experience in the legal field.
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CHAN KAI NANG

Aged 74, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director
of the Company on 11 March 2009,
received a Postgraduate Diploma
in Management Studies from The
University of Hong Kong and Bachelor
of Laws from the University of London.
Mr. Chan is an associate member of
The Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants in the United Kingdom
and The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the
United Kingdom. He is also a Chartered
Global Management Accountant. Mr.
Chan worked for more than 40 years as
senior executive in major multinational
and local corporations.

Mr. Chan was the executive director
of Galaxy Entertainment Group
Limited (formerly known as K. Wah
Construction Materials Limited
(‘K. Wah Construction”) (0027.HK)
from January 2003 to May 2008
and managing director of K. Wah
Construction from April 2003 to May
2008. He served as an adviser of K.
Wah Construction from May 2008 until
his retirement in June 2014. The shares
of the above-named company are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Mr. Chan served
as independent non-executive director
of Prosperity International Holdings
(H.K) Limited (0803.HK) between 17
August 2010 to 26 September 2019
and FDB Holdings Limited (now known
as Dafy Holdings Limited) (1826.HK)
from 16 September 2015 to 12 January
2018. The shares of both companies
are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. He formerly was an
independent non-executive director of
Asian Capital Holdings Limited (now
known as ZZ Capital International

Limited) (8295.HK) and Steed Oriental
(Holdings) Company Limited (8277.HK),
the shares of both companies are listed
on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Chan retired as an independent
non-executive director of PanAsialum
Holdings Company Limited (2078.HK)
on 24 January 2018, and re-appointed
from 1 January 2020 as independent
non-executive director, the shares of
this company are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

PAO PING WING

Aged 72, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of
the Company on 6 November 2009,
received a Master of Science degree
in Human Settlements Planning and
Development from the Asian Institute
of Technology in Bangkok, Thailand.
Mr. Pao was elected as one of the
Ten OQutstanding Young Persons of
Hong Kong in 1982 and one of the
Ten Outstanding Young Persons
of the World in 1983. He was also
an ex-Urban Councillor. In the past
years, he has been actively serving
on government policy committees
and statutory bodies, especially those
of town planning, urban renewal,
public housing, culture and arts and
environment matters. Mr. Pao is an
Honorary Fellow of The Hong Kong
Institute of Housing. He is also an
independent non-executive director
of several other companies listed
on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange including Oriental Press
Group Limited (0018.HK), Capital
Environment Holdings Limited (3989.
HK), Zhuzhou CRRC Times Electric
Co., Ltd. (formerly known as Zhuzhou
CSR Times Electric Co., Ltd.) (3898.
HK), Maoye International Holdings
Limited (0848.HK) and Sing Lee
Software (Group) Limited (8076.HK),
a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. He formerly was

DIRECTORS’' PROFILE

also an independent non-executive
director of Tonking New Energy Group
Holdings Limited (formerly known as
JC Group Holdings Limited) (8326.HK),
which shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

NG CHI KEUNG

Aged 71, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company on 18 March 2011.
Mr. Ng holds a Master Degree in
Business Administration. Mr. Ng is
an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered
Institute of Management Accountants
and a fellow member of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He has over 30 years of
financial management experience with
renowned multinational corporations.
Mr. Ng was the executive director of
Fairwood Holdings Limited (0052.HK)
which shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited for 15 years until his
retirement at the end of year 2009, re-
designated as non-executive director
after his retirement until mid-2017 and
re-designated as an independent non-
executive director thereafter.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Overview

In 2019, the global economy experienced a slowdown in growth due to market uncertainties surrounding trade
protectionism, the China-US trade talks, the progress of Brexit and social unrest in various cities. As would be expected,
this put pressure on the Hong Kong market, which experienced a moderate adjustment. Despite these macroeconomic
uncertainties, however, Hong Kong continued to exhibit stable and healthy economic fundamentals and solid core
competitiveness.

The performance of our property investment and leasing business segments was adversely affected accordingly, with
moderate decreases already recorded in rental income from flagship properties such as Sounawill Plaza and Soundwill
Plaza Il — Midtown, among others. However, we consolidated the Group’s market position through flexible and innovative
strategies, tenant mix optimisation, close communication with tenants, increased market promotions and an enhanced
customer experience.

In light of the land supply shortages affecting the core areas of Hong Kong, we continued to grow our mini-storage
business by opening new stores in prime locations, while at the same time increasing investment in industrial projects and
improving our property portfolio so as to steadily expand our business scale.

In order to enhance our market competitiveness and increase profitability, the Group continued to acquire older buildings,
improved our investment property portfolio and undertook urban renewal projects, with a view to securing stable sources of
land supply for future developments. Looking ahead, the Group will grow and move forward by exploring new market
opportunities, sharpening our competitiveness and creating value for both shareholders and society.

Property Portfolio

During the reporting year, the Group strategically acquired a number of older properties across Hong Kong Island and
continued to invest in projects with high appreciation potential. In addition, the Group remained committed to regenerating
old districts, elevating the quality of the buildings and enhancing facilities for the benefit of both new and existing owners.
The Group also continued to seek out sites with high appreciation potential in order to replenish our land reserves at a
reasonable cost and thus increase our earnings.

105-1183 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung
42-44 Yiu Wa Street and 28-29 Canal Road East, Causeway Bay

Property Assembly
The Group captured business opportunities in the local market through property assembly and the acquisition of old
buildings.

The Group strategically adjusted the pace of our property assembly activities in response to the prevailing uncertainty and
increasingly challenging outlook of Hong Kong’s property market. However, the Group will continue to closely monitor
market conditions and seek opportunities to source high-quality land sites for acquisition, in accordance with our
development strategy.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

010

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS




ANNUAL REPORT 2019 SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED = (]

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

CTVIOYIWWOO
DNOMI IV

, DNIATING

——

-
-

=12
Stiy 4
Zc
?H
N =
QO

=

),



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Property Leasing

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s property leasing business segment recognised revenue of
approximately HK$532,305,000 (2018: HK$540,040,000), representing approximately 73% (2018: 55%) of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

During the year, economic volatility in Hong Kong had affected our property leasing business performance, with the retail,
catering and tourism industries among the hardest hit. Inevitably, this led to great pressure in terms of rental adjustment.
The Group continued to diligently upgrade the quality of our premises while constantly reviewing the tenant mix, so as to
enhance the value of our properties. In addition, the Group made wide use of digital technology to improve communication
with customers and accommodate the latest trends in consumer’s consumption patterns, as well as offered enhanced
market promotions and an improved customer experience in a bid to increase revenue and pedestrian flows.

SOUNDWILL PLAZA

Soundwill Plaza is located in the heart of Causeway Bay on Russell Street, reputedly the world’s most expensive retail
street. Supported by high footfall, convenient transport links and a leasable area of 245,100 square feet, this premium
Grade A commercial building boasts a wide range of shopping, leisure and beauty outlets and is a centre for international
flagship brands, with luxury retail stores occupying the ground floor and first floor. Although rental income performance was
down slightly compared to the previous year, returns remained reasonable and Soundwill Plaza was one of the Group’s
most stable contributors of income.

SOUNDWILL PLAZA Il — MIDTOWN

Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown, a 31-storey building with a leasable area of 218,000 square feet, is located at 1 Tang Lung
Street in Causeway Bay and is renowned as a local hot spot for food & beverage and leisure activities. Since it opened, the
property has achieved stable results in terms of pedestrian flow and sales volumes. Although rental income performance
declined during the reporting year, Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown nevertheless maintained a consistently high occupancy
rate. We also continued to target promotional and advertising campaigns in key markets and thus helped our tenants to
maintain stable footfall and sales, which in turn further consolidated our own competitive advantages.

10 KNUTSFORD TERRACE

The 23-storey 10 Knutsford Terrace is located at 10-11 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui, one of the most prominent tourist
and leisure districts in Hong Kong, and covers a leasable area of 114,000 square feet. With its convenient and
advantageous central location, it is a popular destination for local office workers. 10 Knutsford Terrace continued to attract
increasing footfall during the year while maintaining stable performance and a high occupancy rate, thus making a solid
contribution to the Group’s rental income.

KAl KWONG COMMERCIAL BUILDING
Kai Kwong Commercial Building is a 21-storey integrated commercial project located at 332-334 Lockhart Road, Wan
Chai.

During the year, the Group continued to optimise and expand our Hong Kong investment property portfolio. Our investment
properties enjoy the competitive advantage of being largely located in core tourist and retail districts, making them attractive
to a wide range of retail tenants. This diverse tenant mix will continue to generate steady income for the Group’s leasing
business.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

One Storage Management Company Limited

One Storage, a subsidiary of the Group, offers high-quality storage services to customers through branches in Chai Wan,
San Po Kong, Fo Tan, Tuen Mun, Tsing Yi, Kwai Chung and Tsuen Wan. Each branch provides excellent management and
first-rate customer service in a secure and comfortable environment. All One Storage branches are equipped with fire
safety devices that are in strict compliance with the latest fire safety guidelines.

One Storage will remain committed to innovating our services by keeping ahead of industry developments. We will open
additional branches in suitable locations so as to offer our professional facilities and services to more customers.

Property Development

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s property development business segment recognised revenue of
approximately HK$180,230,000 (2018: HK$417,247,000), representing approximately 24% (2018: 43%) of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

Residential Project

JONES HIVE

Jones Hive, a residential project situated at 8 Jones Street, Tai Hang, was jointly developed by the Group and Henderson
Land Development Company Limited. The project includes 119 units with saleable areas ranging from 328 to 558 square
feet. The last few remaining residential units had been sold by the end of the year.

Commercial Projects

THE SHARP

Located at 11-13 Sharp Street East and 1-1A Yiu Wa Street in Causeway Bay, THE SHARP is an integrated commercial
property project with space for retail, beauty, food & beverage and commercial businesses. This project has been occupied
since February 2016.

42-44 YIU WA STREET AND 28-29 CANAL ROAD EAST, CAUSEWAY BAY
This project is located at 42—44 Yiu Wa Street and 28—-29 Canal Road East, Causeway Bay, and will have a gross floor area
of approximately 44,000 square feet on completion.

Industrial Project

105-113 TA CHUEN PING STREET, KWAI CHUNG

This industrial project is located at 105-113 Ta Chuen Ping Street, Kwai Chung, and will have a gross floor area of
approximately 190,000 square feet on completion.

Real Estate Business in the PRC

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s PRC real estate business segment recognised revenue of
approximately HK$173,092,000 (2018: HK$250,966,000), representing approximately 24% (2018: 26%) of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

During the year under review, the PRC achieved steady economic growth and fully implemented city-specific policies for its
real estate market. Nevertheless, an oversupply of properties led to fluctuations in transaction prices.

The Group currently owns a number of real estate projects in the PRC. The Lakeview Bay ¢ VOGUE is an integrated project
wholly owned by the Group, comprising villas and high-rise residences located in Gaoyao District, Zhaoqging. As at the end
of the reporting year, the villa units of Phase | had nearly sold out and were gradually occupied. In addition, the first batch of
high-rise townhouse units of Phase Il was almost completely sold and delivered, while the remaining units sold quickly and
were in the process of being delivered at the end of 2019. Furthermore, the multi-level residential and shop units of Phase |lI
were launched at the end of 2019 and are now selling fast, with an expected delivery date of mid-2020.

Grand Capital (Shan Shui Xiang Ri Hao Ting) is a project located in Doumen District, Zhuhai. By the end of 2019, the
residential units of Phases | and Il and the shops of Phase Il had sold out and were gradually occupied, while the residential
and shop units of Phase Il were in hot demand and had fulfilled their handover conditions. The shops have nearly sold out,
and merchants are gradually moving in. The related confirmation of rights will be fully completed in 2020, and the units will
be sold upon completion.

Building Management and Other Services

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s building management business segment recognised revenue of
approximately HK$21,337,000 (2018: HK$23,111,000), representing approximately 3% (2018: 2%) of the Group’s total
revenue for the year.

The Group’s building management and maintenance subsidiaries provide high-quality management, customer and
maintenance services to both large-scale commercial buildings and small and medium-sized estates. By constantly refining
the services we offer, these businesses have successfully raised overall service standards at our properties. Drawing on its
extensive customer service experience, the Group’s building management team successfully maintained the quality
standards of the indoor environments under its care during the reporting year. The team also reduced waste and decreased
our properties’ carbon footprint through a range of energy efficiency measures.

“The Concierge” — French-style hotel management service

The Group has integrated The Concierge, a new concept modelled on French hotel management services, into its building
management offering. The Concierge offers residential tenants a rich array of value-added services, including concierge,
dining and catering, household maintenance, laundry and dry-cleaning services, as well as home and car cleaning service
referrals. Through these thoughtful, comprehensive and premium services, we are able to provide a higher quality of life to
our tenants while continuing to enhance our service quality through innovation.

Soundwill Club

In 2019, with the aim of enhancing the customer experience for the digital era and sharpening our competitive edge, the
Group continued to strongly promote the Soundwill Club mobile app and online shopping platform. Soundwill Club
provides customers with one-stop member offers and services, including up-to-date merchant offers, event information and
a loyalty points programme, while at the same time allowing the Group to collect valuable feedback through big data
analytic tools. This deepens our understanding of the needs of merchants, customers and property buyers, and thus helps
us to enhance our products and services.
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OPERATIONS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

Corporate Citizenship

In addition to generating strong returns for our shareholders, we are dedicated to acting as a socially responsible business
in all of our operations. We create positive social impact by supporting fundraising activities, reading programmes and
educational events, as well as by providing care and support for underprivileged people in our community through the
Soundwill Volunteer Team. In addition, we publish a regular Environmental, Social and Governance Report alongside our
key performance indicators, in order to enhance corporate information transparency.

In recognition of our contributions to the community, we were honoured as a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council
of Social Service for the eighth consecutive year. The Group also received a number of commendations in conjunction with
our member companies and property projects. During the reporting year, the Group was recognised as a “Heart-to-Heart

Company”, “Corporate Citizen”, “Partner Employer” and “Construction Industry Caring Organisation”, underscoring our
commitment to corporate social responsibility over the years.

Prospects

Looking forward into 2020, we expect the global economy to face more severe challenges. On the one hand, China and the
United States have reached an agreement regarding an initial trade deal, and uncertainties around Brexit have reduced. On
the other hand, due to heightened geopolitical risks worldwide, a slowdown in global economic growth and the novel
coronavirus pandemic, we expect Hong Kong’s markets to suffer from dampened investor sentiment and the global
economy to experience a significant shock.

In addition, the recent outbreak of the novel coronavirus has already severely affected Hong Kong'’s retail, tourism and
catering industries, leading to an increase in the unemployment rate and heightened potential economic downside
pressures. As such, Hong Kong is facing unprecedented challenges. It is expected that conditions in both the wider local
economy and the property leasing market will remain weak and are unlikely to fully recover in the short term, placing the
Group's future performance under greater pressure and uncertainty.

Nevertheless, given the mature and healthy nature of Hong Kong’s investment environment, combined with the potential
opportunities for Hong Kong to capitalise on its competitive advantages in the Greater Bay Area, we expect the local
economy to gradually stabilise once the epidemic ends. Backed by a solid foundation, a prudent approach and an
experienced management team, we are confident that we will be able to tackle the diverse challenges ahead.

We will continue to improve the effectiveness of our sustainable development by striving to optimise our business structure,
while at the same time devoting ourselves to the improvement of Hong Kong’s environmental, social and economic situation
through continuous efforts in environmental protection, technological development and community investment. In 2020, the
Group will adopt a humble and prudent approach to promoting business growth and maintaining competitiveness, in the
service of our shareholders’ long-term interests.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Highlights

Revenue

Profit before income tax expense excluding net fair value loss
on investment properties/properties transfer

Net fair value loss on investment properties/properties transfer

Profit before income tax expense

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Basic earnings per share (dollars)
Dividend per share (dollars)

— proposed final dividend

— proposed special dividend

Year ended 31 December

Total assets

Net assets

Total borrowings

Gearing ratio

Net asset value per share (dollars)

Financial Review
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

2019 2018

HKS$ million HK$ million
734 980

403 820

(131) (101)

272 719

218 672
HK$0.77 HK$2.37
HK$0.20 HK$0.20

At At

31 December 31 December
2019 2018

HK$ million HK$ million
23,617 23,124
20,606 20,456
1,944 1,563

9% 8%
HK$72.7 HK$72.2

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$733,872,000 (2018: HK$980,398,000), representing a
decrease of HK$246,526,000 as compared with last year. The decrease in revenue was mainly due to the decrease in

income recorded from the property development projects.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

During the year, the Group has recorded a profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately HK$217,782,000
(2018: HK$671,592,000), a decrease of 68% as compared with last year. This decrease was mainly due to there being no
significant gain from disposal of subsidiaries recorded and coupled with decrease in revenue from sale of developed units
during the year as compared with the corresponding year in 2018.

NET ASSETS
The net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$20,605,536,000 (2018: HK$20,456,219,000). Net
asset value per share as at 31 December 2019 is HK$72.7 (2018: HK$72.2).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash and bank balances (including short-term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents) amounted to HK$557,211,000 (2018: HK$761,238,000). Total borrowings of the Group amounted to
HK$1,944,063,000 (2018: HK$1,562,788,000) as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio (which was expressed as a percentage of total borrowings over total
equity) was 9% (2018: 8%).

The Group mainly operates and invests in Hong Kong and the PRC with most of the transactions denominated and settled
in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi respectively. Therefore, any PRC operations are translated from RMB into Hong Kong
dollars at the year end date and the exchange differences will be reflected in the consolidated income statement at average
rate and exchange reserve in other comprehensive income at closing rate. During the year, the Group did not engage in any
derivative activities or use any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet exposures.

Acquisition and development of properties are financed partly by internal resources and partly by bank borrowings.
Repayment of bank loans are scheduled to match asset lives and project completion dates. Borrowings are denominated in
Hong Kong Dollars and bear interest at floating rates.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided guarantees amounted to HK$275,589,000 (2018: HK$337,389,000) to banks
with respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be released by
banks upon delivery of the properties to the purchasers and completion of the registration of the mortgage with the relevant
mortgage registration authorities or settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
value of the financial guarantee is not significant.

Significant Investments Held
Save as those disclosed under the sections headed “Operations Review and Prospects” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, the Group did not have any significant investment during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Material Acquisition and Disposals of subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Venture
For the year ended 31 December 2019, there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures by the Group.
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Events after Reporting Period

On 19 July 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary,
namely Lucky Way Holdings Investment Limited (“Lucky Way”), to an independent third party at a cash consideration of
HK$467,635,000. Lucky Way is an investment holding company and holds the entire issued share capital of a subsidiary
which in turn holds a property comprises a work site and a tenement building located in Hong Kong (collectively the “Lucky
Way Group”). The disposal of Lucky Way Group was completed on 5 February 2020 with details disclosed in the
announcement dated 5 February 2020.

The outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) has led to many travel bans and lockdowns imposed by various countries
and regions around the world. Increased global travel restrictions amid virus infections locally and overseas also already
substantially hindered the manufacturing capability of China, which may in turn disrupt global supply chains and
international trade, and hence a severe threat to global economy. The Group anticipates both the wider local economy and
the property leasing market will remain weak and are unlikely to fully recover in the short term. Given the unpredictable
nature of these constantly changing circumstances, the related impact on the consolidated results of operations, cash flows
and financial condition of the Group could not be reasonably and tangibly evaluated at this stage and will be reflected in the
Group’s 2020 interim and annual financial statements.

Employees Remuneration

The Group had 248 and 70 employees in Hong Kong and PRC respectively as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 276 and 79
employees). Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance, experience and market practice.
Remuneration packages comprise salary, medical insurance, mandatory provident fund and year end discretionary bonus.
Total salaries and wages incurred in 2019 were approximately HK$126,844,000 (2018: HK$131,507,000) and no share
option expenses (2018: Nil) during the year.
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2019 of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The CG Code sets out two levels of recommendations, namely, (a) code provisions that a listed company must either
comply with or explain its non-compliance, and (b) recommended best practices that listed companies are encouraged to
comply with but need not disclose in the case of non-compliance.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code during the year ended 31
December 2019 in all other respects except for the following deviations:

(1) CODE PROVISION A.21
Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The roles of the chairman and chief executive officer are neither separated nor performed by two different individuals.
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace is the founder and the Chairman of the Group. She is responsible for the Group’s overall
development direction and strategies. The Chairman ensures the Board functions effectively and discharges its
responsibilities. There is no chief executive officer appointed and the daily operations of the Group are delegated to
other executive directors and various department heads with clearly defined authority policy. The Board is of the view
that the current management structure can effectively facilitate the Group’s operation and business development.

(2) CODE PROVISION A.4.1
Code provision A.4.1 provides that non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term.

The independent non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term as they are subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with the bye-laws of
the Company (the “Bye-Laws”).

Board of Directors

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT
The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance. The management
has been delegated the authority and responsibility by the Board for the operations of the Group. In addition, the Board has
also delegated various responsibilities to the Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Further details of these committees are set out in this report. The Board is
responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith, in compliance with the standards of applicable laws and
regulations, and act in the interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.
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BOARD COMPOSITION
The Board is composed of the following Directors who, unless otherwise indicated, served throughout the year under
review and up to the date of this report:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (Chairman)

Ms. Chan Wai Ling

Mr. Tse Wai Hang (appointed with effect from 1 September 2019)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Mr. Chan Kai Nang

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Ng Chi Keung

BOARD MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE
During the year, the attendance records of each Director at the Board meetings and general meeting of the Company are as
follows:

Attendance/ Attendance/

Number of Number of
Directors Board meetings general meeting

Executive Directors:

Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (Chairman) 4/4 11
Ms. Chan Wai Ling 4/4 11
Mr. Tse Wai Hang 11 N/A

Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Kai Nang 4/4 11
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 4/4 11
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 4/4 11

The biographical information of the Directors and relevant relationships among the Directors are set out under “Directors’
Profile” on pages 6 to 7.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors, representing one-third of the Board, with at least one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise as required under rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2)
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from each independent non-executive director in
accordance with rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the
independent non-executive directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors shall be appointed for a specific term and
subject to re-election. The Company has deviated from this provision in that the Company’s independent non-executive
directors are not appointed for a specific term.

In accordance with the Bye-Laws, not less than one-third of the Directors for the time being will retire from office by rotation
at each annual general meeting, provided that every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. Any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

Access to Information by Directors

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all other cases, an agenda and accompanying Board
papers are sent to all Directors in a timely manner. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular Board meeting to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other Board meetings and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice is
given.

All Directors are entitled to have access to Board papers, minutes and related materials at all times. During the year, all
Directors have been provided with the Group’s management information updates to keep them informed of the Group’s
affairs and facilitate them to discharge their duties under the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Currently, Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace is the Chairman of the Group and her responsibilities are clearly defined and set out
in writing. No chief executive officer was appointed during the year.

Board Committees

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ng Chi Keung, Mr. Chan Kai Nang
and Mr. Pao Ping Wing. Mr. Ng Chi Keung and Mr. Chan Kai Nang possess professional accountancy qualifications.

The Audit Committee has specific written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than those stipulated in the
code provisions. It is responsible for reviewing with management, the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discuss auditing, internal controls, risk management, internal audit and financial reporting including the interim
and final results of the Company. It also acts as an important link between the Board and the Company’s external and
internal auditors in matters within the scope of the external and internal audit of the Group respectively. To enhance their
right to access records and to be informed, and to have effective and direct communications with the Board and so to
report their findings from time to time, the external and internal auditors would be invited to attend the meetings of the Audit
Committee.
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During the year, the Audit Committee met three times with attendance shown below. The final results for the year ended 31
December 2018, the interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2019, the internal audit plan and the report from the
management on the Company’s internal control and risk management have been reviewed by the Audit Committee during
the year.

Attendance/

Number of

Audit Committee members meetings
Mr. Ng Chi Keung (Chairman) 3/3
Mr. Chan Kai Nang 3/3
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 3/3

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Nang, Mr. Pao
Ping Wing and Mr. Ng Chi Keung, and Ms. Chan Wai Ling, an executive director.

Its functions are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The
Remuneration Committee reviews and approves the Directors’ remuneration proposals with reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives, and also determines with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages of individual
executive directors and senior management.

In determining the remuneration levels and packages of the Directors and senior management, the Company took into
account of the market practices and trends to reflect on the time commitments, duties and responsibilities and
performance of the Directors and senior management and their contributions to the Group. Long-term inducements in the
form of share options and performance bonuses were also employed.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two meetings (attendance as shown below) to review and determine
(with the relevant Directors where applicable abstained from voting as far as his/her own remuneration is concerned so that
no Director would decide on his/her own remuneration) the remuneration package of individual executive Directors and
make recommendations to Board on remuneration of non-executive Directors.

Attendance/

Number of
Remuneration Committee members meetings

Mr. Chan Kai Nang (Chairman) 2/2
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 2/2
Mr. Ng Chi Keung 2/2

Ms. Chan Wai Ling 2/2
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
The Nomination Committee comprises two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chan Kai Nang and Mr. Pao
Ping Wing, and Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, the Chairman and executive director.

The responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become members of the Board and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on selection of individuals nominated for directorship; assessing the independence of independent non-executive
directors; making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman; and determining the policy for nomination of Directors.

The Company has adopted a policy for nomination of directors (“Nomination Policy”). The Nomination Policy currently
adopted by the Company sets out the guidelines and procedures for the Nomination Committee to identify and evaluate a
candidate for nomination and recommendation to the Board for appointment or reappointment of Directors of the
Company. There are various factors and criteria, including but not limited to relevant skills, experience, professional
expertise and qualification, breadth of relevant knowledge, integrity and reputation, willingness to commit and ability to
devote sufficient time and to assume the fiduciary duties and responsibilities, the Nomination Committee will consider when
evaluating a candidate with due regard to the requirements of Group, board succession planning, and relevant policies
adopted by the Group. The ultimate responsibility for selection and appointment of Directors remains vested with the
Board.

The procedures for identifying and evaluating a candidate would be conducted by the Nomination Committee through a fair
and objective process that complies with all applicable laws and regulations, with liberty for the Nomination Committee to
make its own inquiries and verification. The Nomination Committee will make recommendation and proposal to the Board
for consideration. The Nomination Committee is required to regularly review the Nomination Policy and to monitor the
implementation and effectiveness of the Nomination Policy and report to the Board, and has done so during the year.

A board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) has been adopt by the Company. Diversity of Board members can be
achieved through consideration of a number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. In informing its perspective on
diversity, the Company will also take into account aspects based on its own business model and specific needs from time
to time.

The Nomination Committee reviews the Board Diversity Policy on an annual basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.
During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board including the
skills, knowledge and experience of Directors as well as role and function of each Director, assessed the independence of
independent non-executive directors pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, assessed sufficiency of time spent by
Directors on the matters of the Company and in discharging their duties and on the affairs of the Group, and reviewed the
training and support to Directors and considered re-election of retiring Directors. The Nomination Committee has provided
its assessments, findings and recommendations to the Board for it to make the relevant resolutions.
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During the year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting with attendance shown below:

Attendance/

Number of
Nomination Committee members meeting

Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (Chairman) 11
Mr. Chan Kai Nang 11
Mr. Pao Ping Wing 11

Training and Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed Director is ensured to have a proper understanding of the operations and business of the Group and
that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements and the business and governance policies of the Company. The Directors
are continually updated with legal and regulatory developments, business and market changes and the strategic
development of the Group to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

As part of the ongoing process of Directors’ training, the Company Secretary continuously updates all Directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance of the same
by all Directors. All Directors are encouraged to attend external forum or training courses on relevant topics which may
count towards continuous professional development training.

All Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training. This is
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. During the year, all Directors have participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities either by attending training courses or by reading materials
relevant to the Company’s business and to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ continuous
professional development

Attending Reading of
training relevant
Directors course(s) material(s)

Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (Chairman) N/A
Ms. Chan Wai Ling N/A
Mr. Tse Wai Hang
Mr. Chan Kai Nang
Mr. Pao Ping Wing
Mr. Ng Chi Keung
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NS S S S S



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED = ()95

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Company Secretary
Company Secretary advises the Board on all corporate governance matters and facilitates professional development of
Directors.

Ms. Tang So Him was appointed as Company Secretary of the Company on 26 January 2017 and served as Company
Secretary until 25 January 2019.

The Company has appointed Mr. Tse Wai Hang (“Mr. Tse”) as the Company Secretary on 25 January 2019. Mr. Tse
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’'s degree in laws. He is a qualified solicitor in Hong Kong and
has over 20 years working experience in the legal field. Mr. Tse undertook over 15 hours of relevant professional training
during 2019.

Code for Securities Transactions of Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries with all Directors, the Company confirms that all
of them have complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted the written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for those relevant
employees (as defined in the CG Code) in respect of their dealings in the securities of the Company in compliance with the
Code Provision A.6.4 of the CG Code.

Auditor’s Remuneration
During the year, the fee incurred for audit and non-audit services for the Group are approximately HK$3,350,000 (2018:
HK$3,260,000) and HK$600,000 (2018: HK$750,000) respectively.

Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material events or conditions that may cast doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

Risk Management and Internal Control

In order to comply with the applicable code provisions set out in the CG Code, the Board reviewed the effectiveness of risk
management and the internal control systems of the Group covering material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.

The Board has retained Crowe (HK) Risk Advisory Limited, an independent professional firm, to carry out the Group’s
internal audit function (the “Internal Auditor”) as required by the Stock Exchange and to perform an annual review with a
view to making a report to the Board about the evaluation on the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control mechanism for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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During the year, the Group has reviewed the internal audit charter which defined the scope and the duties and
responsibilities of the internal audit function and its reporting protocol. A Risk Management Working Group (the “RMWG”)
has coordinated risk management activities and reported to the Board. The Group has evaluated the annual risk
assessment which identified respective strategic risks, operational risks, financial risks and compliance risks of the Group.
Based on the risk assessment results, an internal audit plan was devised which prioritized the risks identified into annual
audit projects. The Group has reviewed by means of formally updating the internal control policies and procedures with the
view to ensuring an appropriate internal control system in the Group. An internal audit review for financial year 2019 has
been conducted by Internal Auditor. After their review as stipulated in the Internal Auditor’s report, the Group has taken
further steps to enhance its risk management and internal control systems in response to Internal Auditor’s
recommendations and to strengthen the implementation of the risk management and internal control systems. No
significant or material finding/internal control weakness of the Group was identified for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company has established policy on handling and dissemination of inside information in an accurate and secure manner
that can avoid possible mishandling of inside information within the Group.

Based on the results of the risk assessments of the RMWG and the Internal Auditor’s report, the Board is of the view that
the Company has maintained adequate and effective risk management and internal control to safeguard shareholders’
investments and assets during the year, including the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.

Communication with Shareholders and Investor Relations

The Group believes that effective communication with shareholders is key for improving investor relations and will ultimately
assist the investment community in understanding the Group’s business performance and strategies. Through regular,
comprehensive, and interactive communication, we strive to enhance communication with investors through various
communication channels. These include in-person meetings, telephone conferences, overseas roadshows, and project-
site visits organised for the community. The Group seeks to establish a trusting and productive relationship with its
shareholders and investors. The annual general meeting of the Company was held in May 2019. The Group organised
briefings and media interviews for results announcements and maintained regular contact with the media through press
releases, announcements, and other promotional materials. The Group is committed to enhancing corporate transparency
and providing timely disclosure of information on the Group’s developments to help shareholders and investors make
informed investment decisions. The Group is dedicated to enhancing corporate governance practices on business growth
and strives to attain a balance between corporate governance requirements and performance. The Board believes that
sound corporate governance is essential to the success of the Group and will enhance shareholders values. During the
year, there was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

Dividend Policy
The Company has adopted a dividend policy and aims to allow its shareholders to share Company’s profits and for the
Company to retain adequate reserves for business needs and growth.

The recommendation and declaration of dividends are subject to the discretion of the Board. The Board shall take into
account various factors the Board may deem relevant, including but not limited to the Group’s actual and expected financial
performance, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and commitments, operations and business
strategies, liquidity position, retained earnings and distributable reserves, etc., and market conditions and external factors.

The Company is inclined to maintain a stronger liquidity position for its relatively capital intensive site assembly business
operation, and makes no assurance that dividend will be paid for any given period or will be paid in any particular amount.



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders’ Rights
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PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

A special general meeting shall be convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding,
at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company at the Company’s head
office and principal place of business in Hong Kong.

Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) may convene such meeting, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT TO THE BOARD
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the Board in writing at the Company’s head office and principal
place of business in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT SHAREHOLDERS’
MEETING
The number of members necessary for a requisition for putting forward a proposal at a general meeting shall be:

(@ any number of members representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the members
having at the date of the requisition; or

(b)  not less than one hundred members.

A copy or copies of requisition signed by all requisitionists shall be deposited, with a sum reasonably sufficient to
meet the Company’s expenses in giving notice of the proposed resolution or circulating any necessary statement, at
the Company’s head office and principal place of business in Hong Kong in case of:

(@  arequisition requiring notice of a resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and

(b)  any other requisition, not less than one week before the meeting.

The Company will verify the requisition and upon confirming that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board will
proceed with the necessary procedures.
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Corporate Social Responsibility projects and

activities organised with the Group’s participation:
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JANUARY TO FEBRUARY

ower | Q)

S

Greeners Action Lai See Reuse and

Recycle Programme 2019

Orbis Walk for Sight 2019

Hong Kong Employment Development
Service: Calbee T.H.E. Run 2019

@ Food Angel Volunteer Activity
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JULY TO AUGUST

Il

Midtown and Hong Chi Association:
Father’s Day Cookies

Soundwill Group and Hong Kong Playground
Association and Radio Television Hong Kong: Book

Floating
SEPTEMBER
L
i P
Midtown and Greeners Action:
Mooncake Cans Collection Programme World Green Organization: Recycle Together
ﬁ — Clean PET Bottle Reward Programme
—

DECEMBER

Midtown and Greeners Action:
Tetra Pak Recycling Programme

Midtown and Eco-Greenergy:
/ Green Xmas Coffee Grounds Soap Workshop
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MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

—
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to present the Group’s 2019 Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) report (the “report”).

Soundwill’s core value of “Operating with Heart” continues to shape our sustainability commitments and strategies. We are
determined to go further this year by bringing sustainability values into our day-to-day operations. That is why we have
chosen “Operating with Heart, Moving towards Sustainability” as this year’s reporting theme. We are dedicated to
promoting caring and responsible business practices that contribute in a positive way to the communities, environment and
workplaces in which we operate. We also aspire to enhance the sustainability performance of our daily operations so as to
create positive change in the coming years.

Stakeholders play a unique role in our sustainability journey. On top of developing policies and initiatives to meet
stakeholders’ expectations, we have deepened dialogue and engagement with our different stakeholders. For example, we
conducted ESG surveys with our employees, tenants and customers during the year. These exercises allow us to better
understand stakeholders’ expectations and needs in terms of our sustainability practices.

The Group is dedicated to building meaningful relationships with the local communities in which we work and live. Our
Soundwill Volunteer Team has continued to give a helping hand to a wide range of community groups through charitable
donations and active participation in community projects.

We believe that our success as a business depends on our employees. In line with Soundwill’s longstanding focus on
“Operating with Heart”, we endeavour to create a caring workplace that gives all of our employees a healthy work-life
balance and greater flexibility. We are delighted to have been recognised as a “Happy Company” under the Happiness at
Work Promotional Scheme 2019, organized by the Hong Kong Productivity Council and the Promoting Happiness Index
Foundation, for our caring employment practices throughout the reporting period.

We remain committed to our responsibility to protect the environment. We are proud to have received a number of awards
and honours from government departments and non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”) during the reporting period in
recognition of the Group’s ongoing conservation efforts. We also took steps to further improve the Group’s energy
efficiency and reduce our carbon footprint by establishing an Energy Saving Team. We hope to share more environmental
protection achievements in future reports.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my appreciation for all of the excellent work and dedication provided by our
professional teams. Relying on the co-ordinated efforts of our devoted employees, we will continue to deliver sustainable
value to our stakeholders and communities, now and in the future.

Foo Kam Chu Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

Reporting Period, Standard and Scope

This report summarises the ESG-related performance, achievements and highlights of Soundwill Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Soundwill” or the “Group”) from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019 (the “reporting period”, or “year”).
Details regarding the Group’s corporate governance are provided in the Corporate Governance Report section of the
Annual Report.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
Group has adhered to the Materiality, Quantitative, Balance and Consistency reporting principles when disclosing our ESG
performance in the reporting period.

This report mostly covers the material ESG performance of the principal operations of the Group’s building management
business, leasing business and property development business in Hong Kong. The reported environmental and social key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) cover the Group’s major operating properties. Our property development business is
excluded from this report due to its insignificant impact during the reporting period. The following table summarises the
operations covered in this report:
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Property Building Type

Soundwill Plaza Commercial building (Including Headquarter Office)
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown Commercial building

Park Haven Residential building

Warrenwoods Residential building

iPLACE Industrial building
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Overview

Echoing the Group’s philosophy of “Operating with Heart”, our sustainability strategy focuses on five key areas: Corporate

Governance, Employees, Customers, Community, and the Environment. During the reporting period, the Group made the
following commitments and achievements:

)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We maintain close communication with stakeholders

We promote a transparent corporate governance structure

We encourage employees, clients and suppliers to raise concerns

about any suspected business improprieties regarding corruption
or dishonesty within our operations

We complied fully with all relevant laws and regulations, with no
prosecutions for violating relevant legislation recorded during the

reporting period

EMPLOYEES
We respect and provide equal opportunities for employees

We encourage employees to participate in training sessions and seminars to
upgrade their skillsets

We support work-life balance

We continually strengthen workplace health and safety awareness and seek to
reduce work-related injuries by adhering to all applicable laws and regulations

We received various awards in recognition of our caring and responsible
employment practices

We complied fully with all relevant laws and regulations, with no prosecutions for
violating relevant legislation recorded during the reporting period
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= = . COMMUNITY
— — . . o We practice good corporate citizenship and improve
— — . . the lives of beneficiaries through charitable donation
= = = and community projects

ﬁ] ||| T o Our Corporate Social Responsibility (‘CSR”) Team and

Soundwill Volunteer Team enthusiastically

collaborates with other NGOs and participates in

numerous community activities

CUSTOMERS

° For the eighth consecutive year, we were recognised
as a “Caring Company” in Hong Kong for our ongoing
contribution to community engagement

o We uphold customer-centric and service-
oriented standards in order to achieve
service excellence

o We received a number of other awards and honours

o We seek to provide the best possible . -
for our corporate social responsibility efforts

customer experience through product and
service innovation

° We did not receive any material complaints
during the reporting period

'

P

THE ENVIRONMENT
° We are dedicated to optimising efficiency in our resource management

o We seek continuous improvement in our operational practices, in order to
reduce our carbon footprint and improve the environment

° We encourage employees and business partners to participate in training
programmes and activities related to environmental protection

o We complied fully with all relevant laws and regulations, with no prosecutions
> for violating relevant legislation recorded during the reporting period %
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ESG APPROACH

ESG Governance Structure

The Environmental, Social and Governance Committee (the “Committee”) is responsible for directing the Group’s ESG
management approach and promoting corporate ESG awareness. The Committee holds meetings on a regular basis to
review ESG-related implementation efforts and policies across our operations. The Board is committed to upholding high
standards of corporate governance and sustainability across Soundwill’s operations. As such, the Committee is tasked with
reporting any updates on Soundwill’s sustainability-related performance, implementation efforts and policies for the Board’s
review and approval. The Committee also proposes policies and procedures with a view to progressively improving the
Group’s sustainability.

4 Board of R
\ Directors ) )
I )j °
( )
ESG Committee
\_ J
o N
)
Heads of Energy Saving Corporate Social
Departments Team Responsibility Team
J
-
Building Management Team @
\ @

In the reporting period, an Energy Saving Team was established to enhance energy efficiency and conservation, and thus
reduce the Group’s carbon footprint. The Energy Saving Team collaborates with the Building Management Team to monitor
the effectiveness of energy saving initiatives and to regularly submit formal progress reports in regard to resource
optimisation. The Energy Saving Team is also responsible for implementing plans to improve energy efficiency within the
Group.

Corporate Governance

The Group holds business integrity and ethics in the highest regard. As such, the Group has established a robust corporate
governance framework in order to ensure sound corporate governance and to safeguard the interests of shareholders and
other stakeholders.

Our Code of Conduct and internal policies are designed to promote ethical behaviour among our staff members. The
Group shall discipline any employee who violates these or otherwise engages in misconduct, in accordance with our
internal guidelines.
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Under our internal Prevention of Fraud and Corruption Policy, the Group prohibits all employees, including senior
management and Board members, from offering, accepting, paying or authorising bribes, or any other forms of corruption.

The Group’s independent internal audit team performs regular checks, formulates anti-corruption guidelines and conducts
reviews. The Group has also appointed an independent auditor to ensure the fairness and completeness of our accounts.

In addition, the Group has set up an anonymous whistleblowing mechanism for employees to report any suspected cases
of misconduct. All suspected cases are handled in a prudent manner. In the event that incidents of misconduct are
discovered upon investigation, the case shall be referred to the relevant disciplinary body for follow-up action.

During the reporting period, there were no legal cases of corruption brought against the Group.

Stakeholder Engagement

The Group is dedicated to maintaining close collaboration and regular communication with our stakeholders. In order to
understand the ESG-related issues from stakeholders’ perspectives, we have identified our key stakeholder groups and

proactively engaged them through various communication channels. Our communication channels used to engage key
stakeholders during the reporting period are summarised in the following table:

Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels
Shareholders/Investors ° Annual and interim reports, financial statements and announcements
° Annual General Meeting
° Corporate website
° Investor relations enquiry hotline and email
o Press releases
Customers ° Customer service hotline and email
° Direct communication with frontline employees

Satisfaction surveys
The Soundwill Club mobile application, social media and Whatsapp

0

Tenants ° Customer service hotline and email
° Direct communication with frontline employees
M . Meetings
° Satisfaction surveys
Media ° Media enquiry hotline and email
° Press conferences

° Press releases

QO‘Q\°
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Stakeholder Groups Communication Channels

Employees ° Annual performance reviews
° Employee Handbook and Code of Conduct

° ESG surveys
o Group activities
° Internal newsletters

° Intranet
° Regular meetings
° Email
Suppliers/Vendors/ . Continuous direct communication
EEE e Regular reviews and assessments
Community/ . Corporate website
Non-governmental o Social media
rganisation
organisations ° Press releases and conferences
o Events, activities and exhibitions
B ° Sponsorships and donations

@@ Materiality Assessment

In addition to our routine engagement with stakeholders, ESG surveys were distributed to employees during the year in
order to assess the materiality of various ESG-related topics to the Group. Employees from six departments participated in
the surveys, sharing their perspectives on our ESG-related performance and strategies.

29

. Engage
Al stakeholders to AEEle )
relevant ’ assess material ’ address material
ESG topics . ESG issues
ESG issues

A list of twenty-three ESG-related topics, identified according to the content and KPIs of the ESG Reporting Guide, were
incorporated into the surveys. Employees were asked to rate the importance of each topic to the Group’s long-term
business development.
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employees provided a unique set of perspectives for the Group to better

identify the ESG topics that are material to our business. Based on the ESG surveys, we have summarised stakeholders’

views as follows:

Top environmental topics

° Air pollutant emissions

o Climate change and greenhouse gas
emissions

° Compliance with relevant environmental
laws and regulation

. Wastewater discharge and management

Top governance topics

Business ethics and integrity

Proper channels for gathering
stakeholders’ feedback and comment
Whistleblowing policy for employees,
clients and suppliers

U

Top social topics

Compliance with relevant
local social laws and
regulations

Employee health and safety
Employment-related issues
Property safety

MOUS

In response to stakeholders’ feedback, this report focuses on disclosure related to stakeholders’ top environmental, social
and governance concerns. The corresponding management approach, initiatives and performance related to each topic are

disclosed throughout the report.

To gain a more holistic view of the materiality of ESG issues, the Committee will endeavour to engage further stakeholder
groups and thus formulate a more comprehensive materiality matrix.
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GIVING BACK TO THE COMMUNITY

Community Involvement

In line with the principle of “Operating with Heart”, Soundwill is committed to generating a positive social impact and
events.

extending our caring activities across different sectors. The CSR Team, in conjunction with our Soundwill Volunteer Team,

demonstrates our care for the underprivileged by supporting fundraising activities, community projects and other charitable

CALBEE T.H.E. RUN 2019
VISITING THE ELDERLY IN TUNG CHUNG

We supported the Calbee T.H.E. Run 2019, organised
In January, the Soundwill Volunteer Team partnered with

by the Hong Kong Employment Development

families in Tung Chung district to visit local elderly people
and provide them with gift packs.

Service, a social enterprise dedicated to providing
employment opportunities to minority groups and

vulnerable groups. We raised funds by joining running
competitions, and promoted social inclusion among
employees.

DAY AND MOTHER’S DAY

FLOWER GIVING ACTIVITY FOR VALENTINE’S

On Valentine’s Day and Mother’s Day, the Group joined
hands with Flower Workshop, a social enterprise of the

Hong Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth, in support of

: its efforts to provide training and job opportunities for the

- disadvantaged through bouquet making. We distributed

-~
roses prepared by Flower Workshop to passers-by in w
celebration of these occasions. <
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2
FATHER'S DAY COOKIES %

The Group invited Hong Chi Association, a social
enterprise dedicated to creating job opportunities for
people with intellectual disabilities, to bake cookies as
Father’s Day gifts to our customers.

|
FOOD ANGEL VOLUNTEER ACTIVITY

The Soundwill Volunteer Team participated in
volunteer activities organised by Food Angel,
helping to prepare food in support of the
underprivileged community in Hong Kong.

ORBIS WALK FOR SIGHT 2019

The Soundwill Volunteer Team joined the Orbis Walk for
Sight 2019 to raise money for people suffering from eye
diseases.

To encourage the reading habit among Hong Kong
people, we joined in with the Book Floating activity
organised by the Hong Kong Playground Association
and Radio Television Hong Kong (RTHK). A free book-
sharing corner was arranged inside Sounadwill Plaza Il —
Midtown for the public to take a book or bring a book to

share.
\_
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PO LEUNG KUK FLAG DAY

The Soundwill Volunteer Team continued to raise

funds and show support to the social and educational
services organised by Po Leung Kuk.

During summer break, Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown
collaborated with the Hong Kong Outlying Islands

Women’s Association (the “OIWA”") and Russ Dance
Factory to offer children free dancing classes.

2019 INCLUSIVE ENVIRONMENT
RECOGNITION SCHEME
LITTLE BEAN SPROUT FAMILY

STORYTELLING SESSION

In partnership with the Hong Kong Joint Council for

People with Disabilities and the Hong Kong Council of
In collaboration with the OIWA, the Soundwill

Volunteer Team joined in the “Little Bean Sprout

Social Service, we invited people with disabilities to visit
Family Storytelling Session — Neighbourhood

our buildings. This campaign allowed us to gain a better
understanding of their special needs, bringing our

Development Project”. During the storytelling
session, our volunteers shared stories, played games

buildings closer to becoming barrier-free to all occupiers.
and made handicrafts with children in Tung Chung.
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Make a Wish Mailbox

MAKE A WISH MAILBOX

The Group collaborated with the “Operation Santa Claus” Charity Fund for
the “Make a Wish Mailbox” programme. Soundwill Club members who spent
any amount at Sounawill Plaza and Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown during the
promotion period were able to redeem a free Christmas card. We invited our
members to write down their New Year’s wishes or goals, and helped to

: send out the cards. For every card sent, Soundwill Group donated HK$1 to
the “Operation Santa Claus” Charity Fund.

Soundwill Club® R Ty

RPRE Saundwill Flacs Midoen P ER
AR-ETRAEEOEEE-R-BEARRT
I — I R W - P R A Souniwi LI
Saundwill Linle AnpeliFE 20000 L0 BER
N

Charitable Donation

During the reporting period, Soundwill supported a number of beneficiaries, ranging from social service organisations and
green groups to talented young athletes, through the following charitable donations and sponsorships:

Activities

Beneficiary Organisation

Lai See Reuse and Recycle Programme 2019 — Red Packet
Sponsorship

° Hong Kong ESG Reporting Awards

o Mooncake Cans Recycling Programme 2019

° Tetrapak Recycling Program 2019/2020

o Father’'s Day Cookies Giveaway
o Mid-Autumn Festival Mooncakes Giveaway

Greeners Action °

Hong Chi Association

Hong Kong Employment Development
Service

o Calbee T.H.E. Run 2019

Flower Workshop (social enterprise of Hong e Valentine’s Day Roses Giveaway
Kong Federation of Handicapped Youth) © Mother’s Day Roses Giveaway

Hong Kong Outlying Islands Women’s

- . Caring Company
Association

Leisure and Cultural Services Department
Orbis

Po Leung Kuk

The Boys’ Brigade

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

All-China Women’s Federation Hong Kong
Delegates Association

South Horizons Women’s Association

The Community Chest

The 2nd National Youth Games
Orbis Walk for Sight 2019

Po Leung Kuk Dress Special Day
The Boys’ Brigade Anchor Run 2019

2019 The Inclusive Environment Recognition Scheme
General Fund

General Fund
The Community Chest Skip Lunch Day 2019
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Awards and Recognitions

Fulfilling our corporate citizenship responsibilities has always been a focus for Soundwill, and the spirit of community care is

embedded in our corporate culture. In recognition of our community contributions, we were honoured as a “Caring
Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the eighth consecutive year.

In addition, we received a number of awards in appreciation of our efforts in community engagement during the reporting
period:

HEART TO HEART COMPANY

Itl_m ] m
EIHEAEY

2017.2020

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service

The Hong Kong Federation of Youth Groups

HONG KONG OUTSTANDING
CORPORATE CITIZENSHIP 2019

CONSTRUCTION INDUSTRY
CARING ORGANISATION

Hong Kong Productivity Council

Construction Industry Council

i ®
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CORPORATE AND COMMUNITY
PARTNERSHIP AWARD

FAMILY STORYTELLING —
NEIGHBOURHOODS
DEVELOPMENTAL PROJECT

Hong Kong Outlying Islands
Women’s Association

INDUSTRY CARES
RECOGNITION SCHEME

9 NDUSTRY
€2 CARES ot
. a3
M Hong Kong Outlying Islands
Women’s Association —

Federation of Hong Kong Industries E E E E:H -u“ T
% HEF ,&.’[
mjEm i 0=
S : ||
e 2 il 1
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CARING FOR OUR PEOPLE

At Soundwill, we believe that caring for our people is the key to unlocking long-term sustainable operations and
development. Guided by our people-driven culture, the Group is committed to safeguarding the rights, development and
wellbeing of our employees.

Employment Practices

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group strives to promote an equitable and respectful work environment. We have
instituted a fair and impartial recruitment policy to provide all staff with equal employment opportunities regardless of
gender, age, ethnicity or religious background.

In determining basic salaries and remuneration packages, we adhere to the principle of fairness while taking labour market
trends into consideration so as to maintain our market competitiveness. The Group strictly complies with all relevant
employment legislation and ensures that salaries are in compliance with local employment laws and regulations. During the
year, no cases of prosecution for violating Hong Kong’s labour legislation or related laws and regulations were reported.

The Group also places high importance on fundamental human rights and prohibits any forms of unlawful labour and
unethical employment practices. The Administration and Human Resources Department (the “HR Department”) is
responsible for verifying the ages and valid working permits of all candidates. There was no forced labour or child labour
discovered in the reporting period. Should such an incident occur, the Group shall reimburse the employee in accordance
with local employment laws and regulations.

In addition, the Group has zero tolerance for any form of harassment, discrimination or violence in the workplace. A
reporting mechanism has been established for staff to report any such violations. During the reporting period, the Group
was not aware of any violation.

Professional Development

We believe that when our employees grow as professionals, we also grow as a company. As such, we provide training and
professional development opportunities that are tailored for employees in different departments, positions and work
environments.

Throughout the year, our employees participated in educational and professional programmes covering topics such as
business ethics, fire safety, building safety and maintenance, occupational health and safety, and environmental protection:

Topic Training Summary

Building Safety Employees attended the Building Department’s Building Safety Week 2019.
This deepened their understanding of building safety and relevant maintenance
practices, helping to foster a safety culture in the Group’s daily operations.
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Topic Training Summary

Environmental Protection By participating in the 2019 Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence,
our employees learned more about best practices in environmental
management. This also gave them an opportunity to become familiar with
innovative environmental protection ideas from other outstanding companies.

Waste Reduction Co-organised by the Environmental Protection Department (the “EPD”) and the
Waste Reduction Projects Vetting Sub-committee Secretariat of the
Environment and Conservation Fund, a briefing and experience-sharing session
on “Community Involvement Projects for Waste Reduction Through Quantity-
@ based Municipal Solid Waste Charging” gave our employees a unique
opportunity to engage in constructive dialogue on waste reduction with other
companies and NGOs. Our employees learned from best practices and
acquired knowledge through a series of training sessions and discussions.

Energy Saving In support of the government’s “Climate Ready @ Hong Kong” campaign, our
employees participated in a briefing session on the Energy Saving Charter 2019

= and the 4Ts Charter launched by the Environmental Bureau and the Electrical

- and Mechanical Services Department. This training session enabled our
employees to adopt best practices in energy saving and promote energy
conservation in our operations.

Employee Wellbeing

In pursuit of our commitment to employee wellbeing, the Group strives to maintain workplace safety and safeguard each
and every one of our employees. Induction and safety training are regularly conducted to enhance staff awareness of safety
issues in the workplace. To instil safety consciousness among employees, we also carry out emergency rescue drills on a
regular basis in order to prevent injuries or accidents.

During the reporting period, we complied with all relevant occupational health and safety laws and regulations, with no
work-related fatalities recorded. The Group intends to progressively enhance workplace safety and reduce the injury rate
correspondingly.

The Group cares for our employees’ health and wellbeing. On top of a five-day work week, our employees are provided
with a friendly and comfortable workplace so that they can enjoy family life while balancing work responsibilities. We also
promote employee wellness and healthy lifestyles, for example by enrolling in the Smoking Cessation Programme in
support of creating a smoke-free work environment.



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Team Building

The Group is dedicated to fostering a cohesive team culture with the aim of cultivating employees’ productivity and sense of
celebrate collaborative effort.

belonging. To achieve this, we have launched programmes and initiatives to promote effective communication and

In addition to using the company intranet to share the Group’s latest news, the Corporate Communications Team began to
year:

publish quarterly staff newsletters during the year. These newsletters were created to share tips and updates on
environmentally friendly practices, wellbeing, volunteering events and staff activities.

In order to cultivate a friendly and interactive workplace, various employee bonding activities were organised throughout the
SOUNDWILL FUN DAY FOR EMPLOYEES
AND FAMILIES

MONTHLY STAFF BIRTHDAY PARTY

CHRISTMAS PARTY

L S S
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The Group received a number of honours and awards during the reporting period in recognition of our efforts to support

employees:
2 Smoking C i k
Partner Employer Happy Company 2019 I;no ing es.sat;‘on Good MPF Employer
Award 2019 rogramme in the Award

Eﬁﬁé‘)

FParirer Employer Awasd W0 H B

Hong Kong General
Chamber of Small and
Medium Business

=177

\

£ -
i k] EL s UL
comPRanyY

The Lok Sin Tong
Benevolent Society

Hong Kong Productivity
Council

Workplace 2019

e

fw-mmi

(TR

Kowloon

Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority

J

ENGAGING OUR CUSTOMERS

Customer Satisfaction

The Group adheres to high standards in terms of the quality of our buildings and related management services. We have a
professional handover team that conducts comprehensive inspections and review to ensure the safety and quality of our
buildings before units are delivered to owners and tenants.

New customers are offered a comprehensive two-year maintenance warranty and reliable after-sales services. On top of
this, our building management team provides the following building management services to ensure the optimal condition

and safety of our buildings:

r

Repair and Maintenance

@R

24-hour technical support by
experienced engineers ready
on-site, performing routine
maintenance and carrying out
urgent repairs in the shortest
kpossible time

~

r

\
Safety and
Security

o \V’ﬁl
|

o

Regular patrols carried out by
well-trained security guards to
check for property damage and
safeguard the premises

4]

4 )
Cleaning and
Environmental Hygiene

—Jo o

4k Cg)

Comprehensive cleaning services
provided by our professional
cleaning specialists for all
buildings under management
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To foster a customer-centric culture, we have put in place a set of customer service codes and operational procedures that
outline our expectations for delivering high-quality service.

We treat all customer feedback as an important resource for achieving service excellence. Customer feedback and
enquiries are professionally handled, with prompt follow-up action from relevant departments. We also regularly evaluate
the feedback we receive in order to drive improvement. During the reporting period, no material complaints were received.

We conducted surveys during the year to collect customer feedback and measure customer satisfaction. Results from
these surveys allowed us to closely monitor the customer experience and formulate strategies to achieve service

improvement.

Taking customer feedback and insights into consideration, the Group regularly reviews our services and constantly
introduces innovative offerings that are tailored to meet customer expectations.

Data Protection and Intellectual Property Rights

We take great care to safeguard confidential data and information. We have established an internal procedure to ensure
that customer data are protected from unauthorised personnel. Employees are strictly required to abide by this procedure
with respect to the collection, handling, usage and disclosure of clients’ confidential and sensitive information.

Furthermore, we respect and recognise the importance of intellectual property rights within the Group. To ensure strict
compliance with relevant laws and regulations, we have appointed the Information Technology Department (the “IT

Department”) to perform regular monitoring and inspections to avoid the unlawful usage of unlicensed computer software.

During the reporting period, there were no cases of prosecution for violating product liability or privacy-related legislation.

PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT

Environmental Stewardship

The Group is committed to the principles of sustainable development and continual improvement of its environmental
protection efforts. Our environmental policy sets out our approach and commitment to managing our environmental
footprint across our business operations. Soundwill endeavours to:

° Comply with all relevant environmental laws and regulations;

° Manage resources with increasing efficiency;

° Consider green procurement where possible;

° Select environmentally-conscious suppliers and subcontractors that follow environmentally sound practices;
° Promote environmental awareness among staff, business partners and the public; and

o Monitor and report the environmental performance of our business.

Throughout the reporting period, we complied with all relevant environmental laws and regulations, while our ESG
Committee and Energy Saving Team implemented a range of measures to uphold environmental stewardship within the
Group.
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In addition, the Group proactively promotes a “green office” culture in the workplace. Highlights of our green office
guidelines are summarised below:

o Switch off idling lights and electronic devices to save energy;

o Encourage employees to take public transport to reduce personal carbon footprint;

° Support the “4Rs” (responsible procurement, reducing, reusing and recycling) to improve waste management
practices and maximise efficient use of resources;

° Procure office supplies that are good for the environment and society;

° Promote environmental awareness in offices; and

° Seek continuous improvement to green office practices.

Energy Consumption and Air Emissions

The major source of the Group’s energy consumption and greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions originates in the daily
operation of our buildings and office headquarters. As such, the Group focuses on optimising electricity consumption in our
premises in order to reduce our carbon footprint.

The ESG Committee and Energy Saving Team regularly collect, monitor and analyse our electricity consumption. This
serves as a precautionary measure that helps to identify opportunities for improving and reviewing our reduction targets, as
well as formulating strategies for our energy management.

Overview of Electricity Consumption and GHG Emissions

Electricity Consumption

Property

Soundwill Plaza 000 kWh 2,951.29 3,962.12 -25.51%
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown 000 kWh 1,280.27 1,262.19 +1.43%
Park Haven 000 kWh 40712 42110 -3.32%
Warrenwoods 000 kWh 363.89 354.57 +2.63%
iPLACE 000 kWh 362.01 366.70 -1.28%
Total consumption ‘000 kKWh 5,364.58 6,366.68

Total intensity (Note 000 kWh/ 0.093 0.111 —15.74%

Gross Floor Area (m?)

Property WUnit 2019|2018 | % Change

Soundwill Plaza Tonnes of CO, 2,390.54 3,169.70 —24.58%
equivalent (tCO,e)

Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown tCOe 1,037.02 1,009.75 +2.70%
Park Haven tCOe 329.77 336.88 -211%
Warrenwoods tCOe 294.75 283.66 +3.91%
iPLACE tCO.e 181.00 187.02 -3.22%
Total emissions tCOe 4,233.08 4,987.01 ~1512%
Total intensity (Note tCO e/m? 0.074 0.087

Note 1:  The gross floor area of the five properties under management is 57,556m?.

Note 2: The Group generated Scope 2 GHG emissions only, which refers to indirect carbon emissions resulting from the generation of purchased
electricity from the head office and properties under management. The disclosed GHG emission data are revised and consolidated based

on the applicable emission factors as reported by the respective electricity providers.
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As a result of energy-saving measures in the buildings we manage, the overall electricity consumption and GHG emissions
during the reporting period decreased by over 15% compared to the previous year. Slight increases in the electricity
consumption of Sounawill Plaza Il — Midtown and Warrenwoods were recorded. The occupancy rate at Sounawill Plaza I/
— Midtown increased in the reporting period, resulting in higher pedestrian flows and a slight increase in electricity
consumption. At Warrenwoods, the Group optimised the operating hours of the swimming pool pump to ensure water
quality and installed external lighting to improve street lighting and visibility, which contributed to a 3.9% increase in
electricity consumption during the year.

In light of the reductions in electricity consumption and carbon emissions achieved at our other buildings, we shall pay
careful attention to reviewing consumption patterns and developing energy targets and plans for Soundwill Plaza
II — Midtown and Warrenwoods.

In addition, the Group enthusiastically collaborates with various government departments and NGOs to promote the
importance of energy conservation among our employees, customers and the general public. Highlights from the reporting
period included:

[ |
O -
NO AIR CON ™
NIGHT 2019 [ |
|
) |
To promote the sensible -
The Environmental Bureau presented Park Haven USZ T)f alr—cobnd|t:9hlng n
and Warrenwoods with a Gold Award of the ar;arrswi(:;r dsr;;;l/r;?y b~ :
Charter on External Lighting 2019 in recognition o i ) y =
, joined in the No Air Con ———
of our ongoing efforts to reduce energy wastage ) ,
Night 2019 organised by e S

and conserve resources by switching off external

hicvi
lighting installations during off-peak hours. Green Sense, achieving a

participation rate of over

k50/o.
et
A e
. EARTH HOUR 2019

Park Haven

We joined the World Wildlife Fund’s (the “WWF”) Earth
Hour 2019, where lights in the buildings we manage
were symbolically switched off for an hour to promote
energy conservation and carbon footprint reduction.

\_ J
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ENERGY SAVING CHARTER ON “NO ILB’
2019

We are committed to promoting greener lighting in
order to conserve energy and combat climate
change. Warrenwoods and Soundwill Plaza signed

up to the government’s Energy Saving Charter on ENERGY SAVING CHARTER 2019
“No Incandescent Light Bulbs (ILB)” 2019.

In response to the government’s “Climate Ready
@ Hong Kong” campaign, Sounawill Plaza and
g J Park Haven signed the Energy Saving Charter
2019. This involved proactively promoting energy
conservation in our daily building operations and
maintenance, as well as taking responsibility for
sharing best practices in energy saving with our
tenants, customers and the public.

.

The Group understands the impact of air quality on public health and the environment. Our principal operations, as
described in the reporting scope, do not produce a significant amount of air pollutant emissions, such as nitrogen oxides
(“NOx”), sulphur oxides (“SOx”) and particulate matter (“PM”). Despite this, we remain dedicated to promoting better air
quality and monitoring associated emissions in our buildings. We perform regular inspections and assessments on the
indoor air quality of our properties. Our efforts to improve indoor air quality have earned us Indoor Air Quality Certifications
(Good Class) for both Sounawill Plaza and Park Haven. We will continue to reduce air pollutant emissions across our
operations so as to mitigate potential health and environmental impacts.
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Water Consumption and Wastewater Management

The Group strives to reduce water usage and increase water efficiency in our buildings. In addition to the installation of
sensor-activated devices and self-closing water taps, we also conduct regular inspections of the water supply in our
buildings to identify water-saving opportunities.

The Group does not generate a significant amount of wastewater from our principal operations as described in the
reporting scope. However, we endeavour to promote water stewardship and improve wastewater management through a
series of awareness-building programmes. Periodic monitoring and inspections are conducted on the drainage system of
our buildings to ensure the discharge of wastewater meets local environmental standards. We also work constantly to
explore opportunities to enhance our future wastewater management.

Overview of Water Consumption (Note 1) (Note 2)

Property Unit 2019 % Change
Soundwill Plaza (Nete3) m?3 27,671 29,175 -5.16%
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown m?3 5,507 7,047 -21.85%
Park Haven m? 1,024 1,165 -12.10%
Warrenwoods m?® 1,192 1,157 +3.03%
iPLACE m?® 7,604 7,592 +0.16%
Total consumption m?3 42,998 46,136

Total intensity (Note4 ms3/m? 0.747 0.802 ~6.80%

Note 1:  Minor adjustments have been made to refine the data collection and calculation method, resulting in a slight modification of the relevant
data. Adhering to the reporting principle of consistency, the Group shall report on any adjustment or refinement of the data.

Note 2: The disclosed water consumption data are consolidated based on the water bills received in the year.

Note 3: In Late 2019, a government subsidy was provided to waive part of the water and sewage charges, resulting in a delay in receiving the water
bills from the Water Supply Department. As such, the disclosed water consumption figures for year 2019 represent the combination of
actual figures based on the received water bills and projected figures.

Note 4: The gross floor area of the five properties under management is 57,556m?.

During the year, the building management team held frequent dialogue with the Owner’s Committee of Warrenwoods to
further enhance residents’ experience and maintain the condition of the building. In response to residents’ concerns, the
building management team has implemented active management services, such as increasing the frequency of irrigation to
maintain pleasant greenery and conducting maintenance and cleaning of the water drainage system and swimming pool,
resulting in a 3% increase in water consumption at Warrenwoods.

Waste Management

In recognition of the need to reduce our environmental footprint, we optimise our resource consumption and manage waste
according to the “4R” principles: responsible procurement, reducing, reusing and recycling.
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To promote recycling and reducing waste from the buildings we manage, we collect recyclable waste and set up relevant
facilities for recycling. The recyclables collected include used clothing items, used batteries, red packets, electronic waste,
stationery, festival decorations, plastic bottles, aluminium cans and paper-based products. We also organised a number of
campaigns throughout the year as a way to educate customers and employees on waste sorting and recycling.

We are progressively moving from paper-based communication to electronic documentation for daily office tasks, so as to
minimise unnecessary paper waste. To further promote a paperless office culture, we supported the World Green
Organisation’s Paper Saving Campaign and implemented various paper reduction measures in our offices.

The Group carefully manages the waste that we produce, in addition to optimising the use of resources. Waste generated
from our buildings is segregated on-site and collected by qualified contractors for proper disposal.

The ESG Committee and Energy Saving Team are working to identify opportunities within our building management
business to improve waste management practices and maximise the efficient use of resources.

Overview of Waste Disposal and Recycling in 2019 (Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)

Property Unit Disposed Recycled Note4
Soundwill Plaza (Nete9) kg 221.60 6.74
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown (Nete kg 27.26 4.94
Park Haven (Neote®) kg 21,926.80 564.40
Warrenwoods (Note® kg 15,175.52 1,326.35
iPLACE (Note9) kg 49.35 0.08
Total waste kg 37,400.53 1,902.46

Note 1:  The Group’s building management and leasing businesses did not produce or handle any hazardous waste during the reporting period.

Note 2: Waste is not a material issue for the Group’s building management and leasing businesses. Therefore, waste intensity figures have not been
disclosed.

Note 3: The waste data that have been disclosed are based on records provided by waste contractors and collected by the building management
team. Minor adjustments have been made to refine the data collection and calculation method, resulting in a slight modification of the
relevant data. Adhering to the reporting principle of consistency, the Group shall report on any adjustment or refinement of the data.

Note 4: Recycled waste included paper-based products, cardboards, plastic bottles and aluminium cans that were collected and handled in the
head office and properties under management during the reporting period. The data for other recycled items, such as clothing items,
used batteries, red packets, electronic waste, stationery, festival decorations and peach blossom trees, have not been disclosed.

Note &: In Soundwill Plaza, Sounawill Plaza Il — Midtown and iPLACE, the relevant data refer to the waste collected in common areas, such as
building lobbies. Due to the limited space of such common areas, the collection data for general disposal and recycled items are lower
relative to other buildings under management.

Note 6: In Park Haven and Warrenwoods, the relevant data refer to the waste collected in the refuse chambers and recycling facilities on each
residential floor. In this regard, the collected data for general disposal and recycled items are high relative to other buildings under
management. In addition, the weight of collected general waste disposal is estimated using available information on average waste
density and the volume collected.
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In the reporting period, we also participated in a variety of waste reduction and recycling programmes:

|

SOUNDWILL GROUP
STATIONERY RECYCLING
PROGRAMME

In collaboration with the Bank of
Stationery, Soundwill Plaza and
Sounawill Plaza Il — Midtown

set up a recycling spot to

collect used toys and Q
stationery. The campaign

benefited underprivileged

families while encouraging

young people to adopt a

PAPER SAVING CAMPAIGN 2019 sustainability attitude.

To reduce paper use and promote recycling, we
supported the World Green Organisation’s “Paper
Saving Campaign 2019” by reducing unnecessary
use of paper in the workplace and raising
employee awareness through posters.

LAI SEE REUSE AND RECYCLE
PROGRAMME 2019

PEACH BLOSSOM

TREES RECYCLING
PROGRAMME

In support of Greeners Action’s “Lai See Reuse and
Recycle Programme 2019”, Sounadwill Plaza and
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown distributed “Reborn
Lai See” for free and set up recycling corners to
collect and recycle used red packets. This
programme encouraged the general public to
reduce the purchase of red packets, and cultivated
the habit of recycling and reusing “Reborn Lai See”. y

The Group collaborated with the Environmental Protection
Department and recycled peach blossom trees after the
Lunar New Year, giving them a second life. We also \_
encouraged our tenants to donate used trees for reuse as

mulch and compost.
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NO STRAW THANKS CAMPAIGN

Our Soundwill Club launched a “No Straw Thanks”
campaign for customers to redeem reusable straws
and water bottles. This campaign not only
encouraged customers to use their own utensils in
their daily lives, but also increased awareness
among customers about reducing usage of plastics.

MIDTOWN AND
GREENERS ACTION:
MOONCAKE CANS
COLLECTION
PROGRAMME

Sounawill Plaza Il —
Midtown supported the “Mooncakes Cans Collection Programme”
organised by Greeners Action. Recycling boxes brought the message of
food waste reduction to the community and encouraged the public to
treasure food.

\

RECHARGEABLE BATTERY
RECYCLING PROGRAMME r )
In partnership with the Environmental o T
Protection Department, the Group L MIDTOWN AND FOOD GRACE
supported the “Rechargeable Battery . MOONCAKE COLLECTION
Recycling Programme” in our building il e

o i1 s

rovidin nveniently locat .
by p O. ding conveniently located By signing the Food Grace Charter, we
collection boxes, so as to promote the REER (PREERY M)

) e pir’ pledged to reduce food waste by
recycling of used rechargeable

batteri J 6 reducti collecting surplus mooncakes in
atieries and waste reduction. Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown and

donating them to disadvantaged families.

0
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MIDTOWN AND GREENERS ACTION:
TETRA PAK RECYCLING PROGRAMME

Sounawill Plaza Il — Midtown collaborated with Greeners
Action’s “Tetrapak Cleaning Recycling Scheme” by placing a
recycling bin in the building lobby for half the year. During
the period, an educational booth was regularly set up to
promote environmental protection to the public.

We partnered with the World Green Organisation to
launch a “Bottle Recycle Reward Programme” in
Sounawill Plaza Il — Midtown. To raise awareness of
the public, we incentivised customers to recycle used
plastic bottles in exchange for cash rewards.

MIDTOWN AND ECO-GREENERGY GREEN XMAS COFFEE
GROUNDS SOAP WORKSHOP

In collaboration with Eco-Greenergy, the Group organised a “Green Xmas
Coffee Grounds Soap Workshop” in Sounadwill Plaza Il — Midtown before
Christmas. This workshop encouraged customers to reuse coffee
grounds creatively, turning them into delicate soap gifts that make the
Christmas festivities even more meaningful.

Sustainable Procurement

The Group promotes sustainable procurement practices when procuring office or building management supplies. Suppliers
or contractors with environmentally friendly and socially responsible business practices are favourably considered during
procurement. It is mandatory for all of our business partners to comply strictly with all local laws and regulations with
respect to environmental protection and social issues.

We prioritise the use of environmentally friendly and sustainable office supplies. These include electronic equipment with
Grade 1 Energy Labels and Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) certified paper in our offices, biodegradable plastic
umbrella bags in our building premises, and recycled hand towels.

We work to raise awareness among our suppliers and contractors of the importance of environmental protection and
resource conservation.
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Awards and Recognition

In acknowledgment of the ESG Committee’s continuous efforts to integrate sustainability into our daily practices, the Group
received various environmental awards and recognition during the reporting period, including the following:

Green O ECO-Healthy
m’ine WORKPLACE
Awards Labelling Scheme

. S )

$ ¢ EREFFIEIOS s

= 1
L] (Y SHEEN GREEN OFFICE AWARD
LABELLING SCHEME

World Green Organisation
LAI SEE REUSE AND RECYCLE PROGRAM 2019

Greeners Action

King

R rom gepg

INNOESG PRIZE @ (?)

Societynext Foundation, WoFoo Social Enterprises, UNESCO HK
Association — Global Peace Centre (GPC)




058 = SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

HONG KONG GREEN ORGANISATION HONG KONG GREEN
CERTIFICATION ORGANISATION
— ENERGYWI$E CERTIFICATE
— WASTEWISE CERTIFICATE Environmental Campaign Committee
.
The Environmental Campaign Committee \

S

S

—EEEEEEEEN

el 4
e 90 =

LS
b T

-
\
~

‘ THE WAY AHEAD

Looking to the future, the Group will continually seek to develop as a socially and environmentally responsible enterprise as
part of our ongoing commitment to sustainability. We will remain committed to continuously improving our sustainability
performance and integrating sustainable practices into our daily operations. In support of Goal 13 (Climate Action) of the
United Nations Sustainable Development Goals, the Group will place strong emphasis on mitigating climate change and its
impacts. As such, we shall continue to explore the opportunities and assess the risks of climate issues that are relevant to
our business operations. In pursuit of our commitment, we hope to enhance stakeholders’ awareness of climate and other
sustainability issues via active engagement. Through collaborative efforts, the Group envisages constructing a more
focused and transparent sustainable development framework to pave the way ahead.
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Statement/Section

A. Environment

Aspect/Description/KPI
A1 Emission
Al General (@) the policies
Disclosure  (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
Al Types of emissions and respective emissions data
Al.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where
appropriate, intensity
A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity
Al4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where
appropriate, intensity
Al1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and
results achieved
Al1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous

wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and
results achieved

A2 Use of Resources

A2
A21

A2.2

A2.3

A2.4

A2.5

General Disclosure

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
in total and intensity

Water consumption in total and intensity

Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and
results achieved

Description of whether there is any issue in
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

Total packaging material used for finished products
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit
produced

A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

A3
A3.1

General Disclosure

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them

Protecting the Environment

In the year, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

Energy Consumption and Air Emissions
Energy Consumption and Air Emissions

Waste Management

Waste Management

Energy Consumption and Air Emissions

Waste Management

Protecting the Environment
Energy Consumption and Air Emissions

Water Consumption and Wastewater
Management
Energy Consumption and Air Emissions

The Group did not have any issues in
sourcing water. However, the Group has
been actively engaging employees on
water conserving practices.

The Group did not use any packaging
materials for finished products.

Protecting the Environment
Protecting the Environment

48-58
N/A

49-51
49-51

52-56

52-56

49-51

52-56

48-58
49-51

52

49-51

N/A

N/A

48-58
48-58
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Aspect/Description/KPI

Statement/Section

B. Social

B1 Employment
B1 General (@) the policies

Disclosure  (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age
group and geographical region
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and
geographical region
B2 Health and Safety
B2 General (@) the policies
Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

B241 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury
B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety
measures adopted, how they are implemented and
monitored
B3 Development and Training
B3 General Disclosure
B3.1 Percentage of employees trained by gender and
employee category
B3.2 Average training hours completed per employee by
gender and employee category
B4 Labour Standard
B4 General (@) the policies
Disclosure (o) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such
practices when discovered

Caring for our People

In the year, the Group was not aware of
any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

Not disclosed

Not disclosed

Employee Wellbeing

The Group has complied with all local
occupational health and safety laws and
regulations related to the building
management and leasing businesses. In
the year, there was no violation
regarding any occupational hazards.
Employee Wellbeing

Employee Wellbeing

Employee Wellbeing

Professional Development
Not disclosed

Not disclosed

Employment Practices

The Group has complied with all local
labour laws and regulations relating to
the building management and leasing
businesses. In the year, there was no
violation regarding the employment of
any child, forced or other unlawful
labour.

Employment Practices

Not disclosed

44-47
N/A

N/A

N/A

45
N/A

45
45
45

44-45
N/A

N/A

44
N/A

44

N/A
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Aspect/Description/KPI

B5 Supply Chain Management

B5
B5.1
B5.2

General Disclosure

Number of suppliers by geographical region
Description of practices relating to engaging
suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices
are being implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

B6 Product Responsibility

B6

B6.1

B6.2

B6.3

B6.4

B6.5

General (@ the policies

Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt with.
Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights

Description of quality assurance process and
recall procedures.

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, how they are implemented and
monitored.

B7 Anti-Corruption

B7

B7.1

B7.2

General (@) the policies

Disclosure (b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

Number of concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its
employees during the year and the outcomes of
the cases

Description of preventive measures and
whistleblowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored

B8 Community Investment

B8
B8.1
B8.2

General Disclosure
Focus areas of contribution
Resources contributed

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

Statement/Section

Sustainable Procurement
Not disclosed
Not disclosed

Engaging our Customers

The Group has complied with all relevant
local laws and regulations relating to the
building management and leasing
businesses. In the year, there was no
material non-compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group.

The Group did not sell or ship any
products.

Customer Satisfaction

Data Protection and Intellectual Property
Rights
Customer Satisfaction

Data Protection and Intellectual Property
Rights

Corporate Governance

The Group has complied with all relevant
local laws and regulations relating to the
building management and leasing
businesses. In the year, there were no
corruption-related violations of any form.
Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance

Giving Back to the Community
Giving Back to the Community
Giving Back to the Community

Page No.
56

N/A
N/A

47-48
N/A

N/A

47-48

48

47-48

48

34-35
N/A

34-35

34-35

38-43
38-43
38-43
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The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to present

their report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (the “Consolidated Financial Statements”).

Business Review

A business review of the Group during 2019 is set out under:
(1)

@

the Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 5;

©)

the Operations Review and Prospects on pages 8 to 15; and

the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 16 to 18.
Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries include property
Financial Statements.

development, property leasing and provision of building management services in Hong Kong and property development in
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). Other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the Consolidated
Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the state of the Group’s and the Company’s affairs as
at the date are set out in the Consolidated Financial Statements on pages 152 to 308.

The Board recommends a payment of a final dividend of HK$0.20 (2018: HK$0.20) per share and no payment of special
dividend (2018: Nil) for the year ended 31 December 2019, subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming

annual general meeting to be held on Thursday, 28 May 2020. The final dividend will be payable on or about Thursday, 18
June 2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on Thursday, 4 June 2020.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Consolidated Financial Statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year are set out in note 18 to the
Subsidiaries

Borrowings

Particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Statements.

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group at the reporting date are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Share Capital
Financial Statements.

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 29 to the Consolidated
Reserves

Details of the movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 160 to 163 and note 30 to the Consolidated Financial Statements respectively.
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Equity-linked Agreement

The Company did not enter into any equity-linked agreement during the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

Major Properties Held/Major Properties Under Development
Particulars of the major properties held by the Group and major properties under development of the Group are set out on
pages 69 and 70 respectively.

Five-Year Financial Summary
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 71.
This summary does not form part of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace (Chairman)

Ms. Chan Wai Ling

Mr. Tse Wai Hang (appointed with effect from 1 September 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kai Nang

Mr. Pao Ping Wing

Mr. Ng Chi Keung

Pursuant to bye-law 86(2) of the bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), Mr. Tse Wai Hang who was appointed on 1
September 2019, shall hold office only until the forthcoming annual general meeting (the “AGM”).

Pursuant to the Bye-Law 87(1), Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace and Mr. Chan Kai Nang will retire at the AGM.
The above mentioned directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Company considers that all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions, Arrangements and Contracts

Saved as disclosed in this report and note 37 “Related Party Transactions” to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no
transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the Group’s business to which a Director of the Company or his/her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly were entered into or subsisting during the financial
year.

Directors’ Service Contracts
Independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Bye-Laws.

As at 31 December 2019, no Directors proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service contract with the Company,
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company and its Associated Corporations

1.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)) which are required
to be (i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which he/she is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (i) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares:

Number of Approximate

ordinary percentage of the

shares Company'’s total

Name of Director Capacity interested issued shares

Foo Kam Chu Grace Beneficial owner and 208,426,130Met 7 73.57%
Beneficiary of a trust

Chan Wai Ling Beneficiary of a trust 208,329,528t 2) 73.53%

Note 1:  Madam Foo Kam Chu (“Madam Foo”) was deemed to be interested in 208,426,130 shares of the Company in aggregate: (i) 96,602
shares of the Company was personally held by Madam Foo; (i) 205,943,528 shares of the Company was held by Ko Bee Limited
(“Ko Bee”), the entire issued share capital of which was held by a discretionary trust (the “Trust”). Madam Foo is a beneficiary of
the Trust; and (jii) 2,386,000 shares of the Company was held by Full Match Limited (“Full Match”), a company wholly-owned by Ko
Bee.

Note 2: Ms. Chan Wai Ling (“Ms. Chan”) was deemed to be interested in 208,329,528 shares of the Company. Ms. Chan is a beneficiary of
the Trust.
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2. DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

Name of associated Number and class Percentage of
Name of Director corporations Capacity of shares held shareholding
Foo Kam Chu Grace Ko Bee Limited Beneficiary of a trust 1 ordinary share 100%Meed
Chan Wai Ling Ko Bee Limited Beneficiary of a trust 1 ordinary share 100% M
Foo Kam Chu Grace Full Match Limited Interest in controlled 1 ordinary share 100%Mete d

corporation and
Beneficiary of a
trust

Chan Wai Ling Full Match Limited Interest in controlled 1 ordinary share 100%™
corporation and
Beneficiary of a
trust

Note 3:  The entire issued share capital of Ko Bee is held by the Trust. The entire issued share capital of Full Match is held by Ko Bee. Madam
Foo and Ms. Chan are the beneficiaries of the Trust.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors and chief executive of the Company had
any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which are required to be (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she is taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of the SFO); or (i) entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (jii) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2019, the person(s) other than a Director or chief executive of the Company who have interests or short
positions of 5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO, was/were as follows:

1.  LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares shareholding
Century Pine (PTC) Limited Trustee of a trust 208,329,528(Notes 1&49) 73.53%
Ko Bee Limited Beneficial owner and 208,329,528Notes 1&4) 73.53%

Interest of controlled corporation

Note 4: Ko Bee is ultimately held under the Trust with Century Pine (PTC) Limited as trustee for Madam Foo and her family members
(including Ms. Chan, executive Director of the Company).

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the Company had not been notified by any person(s) (other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company and its Associated Corporations” above),
who had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register required
1o be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares and Debentures

Save as disclosed above at no time during the year ended 31 December 2019 were rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company granted to any Director or chief executive of the Company or to their spouse or children under 18
years of age as recorded in the register required to be kept under Part XV of the SFO, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable any such
persons to acquire any such rights in any other body corporate.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business
During the year, no Director had any interests in any business which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group is exposed to various risks in its businesses and operations. Through internal control systems and procedures,
the Company has taken reasonable steps to ensure that significant risks are monitored and do not adversely affect the
Group’s operations and performances. The relevant risks are managed on an ongoing basis. A non-exhaustive list of
principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set out below:

1. MARKET RISK
The Group’s revenue is principally derived from Hong Kong. The conditions of the economy as a whole and the
property market may have significant impact to the Group’s financial results and conditions.
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2. COMPLIANCE RISK
The Group’s operations require compliance with local and overseas laws (including those of PRC, Bermuda, Cayman
Islands and British Virgin Islands) and regulations, including but not limited to property sale, management and
construction as well as companies and securities laws. The Group has constantly monitored its compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group.

3. CONSTRUCTION RISK
The Group also engages in construction business. The Group has to ensure it can timely compete its construction
projects under relevant time limits; within cost control and adherence to quality and specifications. Certain factors
may adversely affect this operation including shortages of labour, equipment and/or materials; disputes with
contractors and subcontractors; unfavourable or adverse weather conditions; accidents and changes in government
policies and practices. Occurrence of one or more of these factors may potentially delay completion; result in cost
overrun and/or leading to postponement of profit recognition to a subsequent financial year.

Permitted Indemnity

In accordance with the Bye-Law 166(1) provides that, among other, every director and other officers of the Company shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices and
related matters provided that the indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty which may
attach to any of them.

In this connection, the Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and
officers of the Company during the year.

Connected Transaction

During the year, the Group has not entered into any connected transaction. The Company confirmed that it has complied
with the disclosure requirement of a connected transaction in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules by
publication of an announcement.

Major Customers and Suppliers
During the year, approximately 21% (2018: 22%) of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s largest supplier
and approximately 43% (2018: 44%) of the Group’s purchases were attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers.

During the year, approximately 12% (2018: 12%) of the Group’s revenue was attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and approximately 25% (2018: 26%) of the Group’s revenue was attributable to the Group’s five largest customers.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) has any interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Environmental Policies and Performances

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-responsible company in all of its business operations. In its
property development, the Group aims to efficiently use materials and resources. The Group’s building management
division promotes environmental awareness and takes steps to save energy and ensure efficient use of resources. The
Group has formed a task group comprising of staff members from human resources and administration, corporate
communications, finance and legal and is in the process of establishing and enhancing its environmental policies,
procedures and performances.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities
During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

Pre-Emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed
that there is sufficient public float of the Company’s shares in the market as at the date of this report.

Auditor

Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants (“Deloitte”) will retire and a resolution for their re-
appointment as auditor of the Company will be proposed to the AGM of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte as the auditor
of the Company.

Annual General Meeting
The AGM will be held on Thursday, 28 May 2020 and the notice of AGM will be published and dispatched in the manner as
required by the Listing Rules.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed for the following periods:

(@  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM of the Company, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Monday, 25 May 2020 to Thursday, 28 May 2020 (both dates inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 22 May 2020.

(b)  For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 3 June 2020 to Thursday, 4 June 2020 (both dates
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, all
properly completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Standard Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 2 June 2020.

On behalf of the Board

Foo Kam Chu Grace
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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MAJOR PROPERTIES HELD AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

Approximate Interest
gross attributable
Location floor area to the Group Land use Lease term
(sq f)
Soundwill Plaza 245,100 100% Commercial Long-term lease
38 Russell Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
Soundwill Plaza Il — Midtown 218,000 100% Commercial Long-term lease
1-29 Tang Lung Street, Causeway Bay,
Hong Kong
10 Knutsford Terrace 114,000 100% Commercial Long-term lease
10—11 Knutsford Terrace, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Hong Kong
THE SHARP 4,500 100% Commercial Long-term lease

G/F-2/F, 11-13 Sharp Street
East and 1-1A Yiu Wa Street,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Kai Kwong Commercial Building 33,000 100% Commercial Long-term lease
332-334 Lockhart Road,
Wan Chai, Hong Kong
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AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2019

MAJOR PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Location

Approximate Interest

gross

Jones Hive
8 Jones Street,

Tai Hang, Hong Kong

105-113 Ta Chuen Ping Street,
Kwai Chung, Hong Kong
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attributable

Expected
to the Group

floor area

completion
Project status
(sq ft)

date

65,300 20.24% Obtained
occupation
permit

190,000 100% Construction in

2H 2021

progress

334,300 100% Obtained
certificate of

final acceptance
692,400 100% Obtained
certificate of

final acceptance
70,900 100% Construction in

1H 2020

progress

227,900 100% Obtained
certificate of

final acceptance
260,300 100% Obtained
certificate of

final acceptance
263,400 100% Obtained
certificate of

final acceptance



ANNUAL REPORT 2019 SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED = (71

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results and of the consolidated assets and liabilities of Soundwill Holdings
Limited and its subsidiaries for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated upon the adoption of the revised/amended Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards as appropriate. This
summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Revenue (from continuing and

discontinued operations) 733,872 980,398 2,224,996 1,627,921 540,491

Consolidated Results

Profit before income tax

expense 272,364 719,268 1,302,770 3,103,193 23,075
Income tax expense (54,689) (54,414) (101,174) (242,483) (67,172)
Profit/(Loss) for the year 217,675 664,854 1,201,596 2,860,710 (44,097)

Profit/(Loss) for the year
attributable to owners of

the Company 217,782 671,592 1,200,781 2,824,747 (52,604)
Non-controlling interests (107) (6,738) 815 35,963 8,507
217,675 664,854 1,201,596 2,860,710 (44,097)

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 21,375,608 20,680,068 19,717,057 17,931,861 15,746,117
Net current assets 1,088,643 388,706 284,777 1,220,208 861,993
Non-current liabilities (1,858,715) (612,555) (107,886) (149,368) (76,953)
Non-controlling interests (14,661) (15,055) (85,861) (81,685) (277,674)
Equity attributable to

owners of the Company 20,590,875 20,441,164 19,858,087 18,971,016 16,253,483
Gearing ratio* 9% 8% 8% 9% 13%

*

expressed as a percentage of total borrowing over total equity
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Soundwill
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 152 to 308, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

FSETEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REMEME

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the inherent level of complex and subjective
judgements and estimates required in determining the fair values.

The Group’s investment property portfolio comprises retail,
commercial, industrial and residential properties located in Hong
Kong and is stated at fair value of HK$21,185,655,000, accounting for
approximately 90% of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December
2019 with a net fair value loss on investment properties of
HK$131,243,000 recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income for the year then ended as
disclosed in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMEESPEERAREFETENSTX

Qur procedures in relation to the valuation of
investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities, and
objectivity of the Valuer and obtaining an
understanding of the Valuer’s scope of work
and their terms of engagement;

° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
Valuer’s valuation approaches to assess if
they meet the requirements of the HKFRSs
and industry norms;

BMEREMELEETNEFBE:

o FIAMEERMER BRHIRFERIE AT
FRAEER A TR E R R IR

o HEMEMZEENAZEEE AN
HELGN B AMBHRELRRITRED
MR E
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Key audit matter (Continued)
FAEEtEIE(E)

Valuation of investment properties (Continued)

REMEGEGER

The Group’s investment properties are measured using the fair value
model based on a valuation performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer (the “Valuer”). As disclosed in notes 5 and 17 to
the consolidated financial statements, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s completed investment properties, the Valuer has applied
income capitalisation method or direct comparison method, as
appropriate, for respective properties, which involves, inter-alia,
certain estimates, including appropriate capitalisation rates,
reversionary rental value and market transactions of comparable
properties, as appropriate; whereas, in determining the fair values of
the Group’s investment properties under re-development, the Valuer
has applied residual method which is dependent on the estimated
gross development value, estimated cost of development and
allowance of profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development.

BERENRENEDRBE LS EREXGEM((HEM)ET
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESAPEEFAREASTENSR (@)

o Challenging the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and appropriateness of
valuation models applied based on available
market data and our knowledge of the
property industry and whether the
assumptions and methodologies are
consistent with those used in prior year;

° Assessing the reasonableness of key inputs
used in the valuation, on a sample basis, by
checking to the publicly available information
on comparable market transactions,
comparing rental income, terms of existing
leases to the existing lease summary of the
Group and evaluating whether capitalisation
rates adopted are comparable to market;
and

o Evaluating whether the estimated cost of
development to completion and the
allowance of profit for developer used are
comparable to market.
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Key audit matter (Continued)
FRREFFEEGE

Assessment of the net realisable values
of properties for sale

AR EMEZTRIREFEE

We identified the assessment of the net realisable values of the
Group’s properties for sale (the “PFS”) as a key audit matter due to
the subjective management judgements and estimates involved in the
determination of the net realisable value (the “NRV”) of the PFS.

As disclosed in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had PFS of HK$1,025,080,000 as at 31 December 2019. The
Group’s assessment of the carrying values of PFS, being the lower of
cost and NRYV, takes into account the selling price ultimately
expected to be realised, the estimated costs to completion of the
PFS and costs necessary to make the sale.

The management of the Group determines the estimated selling price
of the PFS with reference to prevailing market data on most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation reports
available from independent qualified professional valuers, which
takes into account the prevailing real estate market conditions.

Based on the management estimation of the NRV of the PFS and
after taking into consideration the estimated costs to completion of
the PFS and costs necessary to make the sale, no write-down of PFS
was considered necessary for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
(Continued)
BHESHAPEEA#EAETENIXE)

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of
the NRV of the PFS included:

° Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated selling price of the PFS estimated
by the management or independent qualified
professional valuers, on a sample basis, by
comparing the estimated selling prices to the
market prices achieved in the same projects
or comparable properties, based on our
knowledge of the Group’s business and the
real estate industry; and

° Assessing the reasonableness of the
estimated cost to completion of the PFS
estimated by the management, on a sample
basis, by comparing it to the Group’s
development budget and the actual
development cost of similar properties
recently completed by the Group and by
checking the actual cost incurred to date to
construction contracts and other relevant
documents.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Chau Chi Ka.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fir 7 18 a S 3L b 4 v WC A R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 # £ —E—NFE+ - A =+—HIF/F

2019 2018
ZF-hE —T-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K1 it BETT BT
Revenue W &=
Revenue from goods and services B & AR = 201,567 440,358
Rental income He A 532,305 540,040
Total revenue AU 6 733,872 980,398
Cost of sales 85 5 B AR (128,918) (251,303)
Gross profit E 7 604,954 729,095
Other income and losses Elg A K B8 7 53,387 47,619
Selling expenses HEEZR (6,272) (11,935)
Administrative expenses THEA (188,427) (142,490)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERB AR 2 W= 39 - 235,812
Net fair value loss on investment WEYE YR
properties/properties transfer NEEEIEFRE 17 (131,243) (101,018)
Finance costs B & A AR 9 (60,035) (37,815)
Profit before income tax expense B PIT 15 B4 A 2 A1 % 10 272,364 719,268
Income tax expense g’ = 13 (54,689) (54,414)
Profit for the year FEREEF 217,675 664,854
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
BiA AR M A A A R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

2019 2018

—B-n%E —=-N\fF

Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
it EETR BETF T

Other comprehensive expense, net Hit 2 EHRX »

of tax Npx#HIEE 14
Item that will not be reclassified to UTIEA T2 EH 745
profit or loss: Bz
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, EFEMHEE -
net of deferred tax MBRIELER BEE (578) (400)
Itern that may be reclassified KUTIHAAZERGEE 74
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz -
Exchange loss on translation of BMEBINER 2
foreign operations b 5B 18 (11,118) (33,176)
Other comprehensive expense FAEMEEMAY - KR
for the year, net of tax Hig (11,696) (33,576)
Total comprehensive income FREZERA
for the year 205,979 631,278
Profit/(loss) for the year FEIEE MR F(B518) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company VIN/NEE SN 217,782 671,592
Non-controlling interests FE 1 AR = (107) (6,738)

217,675 664,854
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
AR AR A MO AL BT &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

2019 2018
=t B —E-N\E
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &t BETR BT T
Total comprehensive income/ FEEEREZERAN
(expense) for the year (BX):
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE RPN 206,373 639,739
Non-controlling interests eV IR = (394) (8,461)
205,979 631,278
Earnings per share =1 F 16
Basic BN HK$#&#0.777t HK$HE2.377T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

50 IR O

As at 31 December 2019 R—F—hF+-H=4+—H

2019 2018
“E-hE —E—)\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K aF BT T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES SEREBE
Non-current assets ERHEE
Investment properties HEMHE 17 21,185,655 20,439,237
Property, plant and equipment W - WENE 18 153,712 127,218
Properties held for development FERWE 19 - 17,305
Deposits paid for acquisition of WiEMx 2 B2
properties 9,351 63,552
Loan receivables fE W E 21 26,890 32,756
Total non-current assets BIERBEE 21,375,608 20,680,068
Current assets RBEE
Properties for sale HEME 20 1,025,080 954,855
Trade and other receivables B 5 N EAqth e U FR I8 21 95,583 141,192
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFETFAER 22
profit or loss (“FVTPL?) (EAFEFAERDZ
WBEE 99,255 92,443
Restricted bank deposits SRHIRITER 23 43,879 74,568
Short-term bank deposits HHEITER 23 250,000 575,000
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEE&EEY 23 307,211 186,238
1,821,008 2,024,296
Assets classified as held for sale DEEGEZEE 38 420,000 420,000
Total current assets BRBEE 2,241,008 2,444,296
Current liabilities mENEE
Trade and other payables SN E A FRIA 24 709,154 619,975
Contract liabilities AERNEaE 25 60,086 154,469
Lease liabilities HEAR 26 4,473 —
Borrowings BE 27 213,005 1,067,765
Provision for income tax TS mi G 165,647 213,381
Total current liabilities B AaE 1,152,365 2,055,590
Net current assets FRBEE 1,088,643 388,706
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
o BRIV

As at 31 December 2019 R —FE— L F+-H=+—H

2019 2018
—EB—-hE —E—)N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
K aF BET T BT T
Total assets less current liabilities (A& ERmENEE 22,464,251 21,068,774
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Borrowings BE 27 1,731,058 495,023
Lease liabilities HEAaE 26 6,798 —
Deferred tax liabilities EXERIBEE 28 120,859 117,532
Total non-current liabilities BIERBAEE 1,858,715 612,555
Net assets FEE 20,605,536 20,456,219
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to owners of the EARXA ST #H A
Company FE1EHE =
Share capital fi& 7 29 28,331 28,331
Reserves 1 30 20,562,544 20,412,833
20,590,875 20,441,164
Non-controlling interests FEIERER 36 14,661 15,055
Total equity HEREE 20,605,536 20,456,219

The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to 308 are authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March

2020 and are signed on behalf by:

FI2E3BAZHFAMBREAN T TF-_A_+LHREZTSERETE YHUTEZERREER:

Foo Kam Chu Grace
&k
Director

EF

Chan Wai Ling
REZF
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
i B R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 i £ —FE — L F+-H=+—HIFZ

2019 2018
=L BYR-: —ENE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
H ez BT BT T
Operating activities EEERB
Profit before income tax expense B P45 35 B9 < A& A 272,364 719,268
Adjustments for: BT & B EH 78 2 -
Interest income from financial assets at X A F{ETA B % 2 0115
FVTPL BEZHBKA (4,581) (5,232)
Interest income from loan receivables JE W B FRF B A (1,066) (1,021)
Other interest income Ho Aty 78 U A (22,124) (17,695)
Interest expenses on borrowings BEMESH 57,201 37,815
Interest expenses on rental deposit BERESESMETH
received 2,525 N/AT i A
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBEBENEXZH 309 N/AT i B
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRAEEERE 3,310 N/AZ i
Depreciation of other property, Hibz  BMEMKEETE
plant and equipment 5,351 2,987
Amortisation of properties G ES: §i
held for development N/AT & A 546
Impairment loss on trade receivables B EWHRIBREREE 5,757 —
Net fair value loss on investment REME MEER
properties/properties transfer ANEEEEFSE 17 131,243 101,018
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEWB AR 2 W 39 - (235,812)
Operating profit before working EEESEER I KEEET
capital changes 450,289 601,874
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5K E R FIER L
receivables (&) 39,718 (23,168)
(Increase)/decrease in properties for sale & &4 % (3 1) /w2 (79,014) 99,997
Decrease in bank deposits at escrow REERPZRITEIR D
account - 2,231
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank ZREBIRITEROR D ()
deposits 30,689 (16,575)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 I H At FE T 5B AN 86,551 51,334
Decrease in contract liabilities aHaERD> (94,383) (138,264)
Net cash generated from operations EBGREREFE 433,850 577,429
Income tax paid EfErER (98,982) (69,318)
Net cash generated from operating WEEBIEH ) F5
activities 334,868 518,111
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ioaz3 BETT BT T
Investing activities BEEE
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BERATEFABEEZ
MBEE (224,079) (160,891)
Proceed from disposal of financial assets H &% A FEFAEBZR 2

at FVTPL B EESHIA 215,138 175,007
Placement of short-term bank deposits 17 JU 52 Bi 4R 1777 7k (451,000) (5,669,596)
Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits ~ $2ER 42 #1717 3% 776,000 5,574,651
Advance to loan receivables JE W & SR A 5K - (6,922)
Repayment from loan receivables W E FUE K 6,000 6,464
Additions to property, plant and EBAE  BERZE

equipment (5,175) (23,563)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE BERREZ

plant and equipment FTi5 5k318 - 289
Deposits paid for acquisitions of WEMEZENT2

properties (70) (63,552)
Payment to acquire investment properties W BE18 & ¥ % 2 3% (823,390) (1,146,830)
Net cash inflows from disposal of HEMBARZEERA

subsidiaries F 39 - 524,262
Purchase of net assets, KWHFEE NkAERE

net of cash acquired 40 - (214,123)
Interest received from financial assets at 12 A FE s A 18 25 7 B 7%

FVTPL BEZEWHNE 4,581 5,232
Interest received from loan receivables e E 3R E W T B 1,066 1,021
Other interest received H b B W F B 22,124 17,695
Deposits received on disposal of HEMBRAR 2 EWIES

subsidiaries 38 2,000 55,353
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFFE € FE (476,805) (924,503)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

2019 2018
—E-AE —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hi it BT BT
Financing activities Bl & & B
Repayments of bank loans BERITEX (1,118,725) (1,037,332)
Bank loans raised BERTER 1,500,000 1,072,000
Distributions to non-controlling DIERTHEREZ
shareholders of subsidiaries FEIE IR AR R - (12,345)
Interest paid on borrowings ENEERNS (57,201) (37,815)
Interest paid on lease liabilities ENEEBEMNE (309) N/AZ i3
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHERE (2,409) N/AZ 38
Final and special dividends paid B R E AR AR B (56,662) (56,662)
Net cash generated from/lused in) BEZEFR () Bt FaE
financing activities 264,694 (72,154)

Increase/(decrease) in cashandcash IR&RIEE& L EHEM
equivalents (R2) 122,757 (478,546)

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 R—A—HzH&R

January REEEYD 186,238 666,895
Effect of foreign exchange rate ExEEHBE  FH
changes, net (1,784) @111

Cash and cash equivalentsasat31 WR+Z-A=+—HZH&RR
December S%EY 307,211 186,238
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A 17 HE 3% 52 B R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 &t & —F— W F+ A=+ —HIL F&F

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
AATHEAANEILELS

Capital
Share Share redemption

capital premium reserve
BEXEE

8.3 B # itk 8 {7 ¥
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EETRT EETR EETRT

As at 1 January 2019 NR-F—h&E—HA—H 28,331 690,811 295
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiEH (B8 - - -
Other comprehensive expense H2mEX
[tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LATEESTEEH»EER:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETCHIEBE

net of deferred tax (note 14) (P 5E14) - - =
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to ATIEEREGRAIREEN D8

profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations BREFHNEBCEREE - - -

Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRE2TER) WA
for the year - - -

Proposed final dividends for 2019 (note 15(a)) HIT-NFRERE

(P 5515(a)) — _ _
Final dividend paid for 2018 (note 15(b)) BN -N\FREAKS

(Hff 5£15(0)) - - -

As at 31 December 2019 R-ZF—-HAE+=A=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
o ME 4R B B R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl Z = F — L F +=H=+—HIF FZ

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

AASHEANEILER
Asset Proposed Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special final controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve dividends Total interests equity
AEE EEAH

& REBit A BE 5 & 4 5 5l fif 45 3-8 @t FEERER s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT EETRT
688 19,691,418 (28,889) 1,848 56,662 20,441,164 15,055 20,456,219

— 217,782 — — — 217,782 (107) 217,675
(578) — — — — (578) — (578)
- - (10,831) - - (10,831) (287) (11,118)

(578) 217,782 (10,831) — — 206,373 (394) 205,979

— (56,662) — — 56,662 — — —
— — — — (56,662) (56,662) — (56,662)

110 19,852,538 (39,720) 1,848 56,662 20,590,875 14,661 20,605,536
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
A e AR 2 I R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

Equity attributable to owners

of the Company

RRRYEB NEIE S
Capital
Share Share redemption
capital premium reserve
=N
[N i % B &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BT BETT

As at 1 January 2018 R-—F—-N\NE—H—H 28,331 690,811 295
Profit/(loss) for the year ERiEF(EEE) — — —
Other comprehensive expense H2mEX
ltem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: LTHAB T TEENM A ER:
Deficit on revaluation of buildings, BFEHEE  NMRETCHIEBE

net of deferred tax (note 14) (M 5E14) — — -
ltem that may be reclassified subsequently to LWTHEBEZMJEEH BB

profit or loss:
Exchange loss on translation of foreign operations BREFHNEBCEREE - — —
Total comprehensive (expense)/income FRE2THER) WA

for the year — — _

Proposed final dividends for 2018 BRERIT-N\FRERE
(note 15(a)) (B 7E15(a)) — — —
Distribution to non-controlling shareholders of a DIRTH B AR ZIEERRR
subsidiary (note 36) (Fff 7£36) — — -
Final dividend paid for 2017 (note 15(b)) ENZZE-—tLFRERL
(Pt 5£15(0)) — — —

As at 31 December 2018 R-T—NE+=-A=+—H 28,331 690,811 295
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
55 1 A T R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company

RATHEE AN EHER
Asset Non-
revaluation Retained Exchange Special Proposed controlling Total
reserve profits reserve reserve  final dividends Total interests equity
BESEMH EEARHY
& R & A HE 5 5 Bl e 15 [\ it FEFE AR = e AR
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T BT T
1,088 19,076,488 2,564 1,848 56,662 19,858,087 35,861 19,893,948
— 671,592 — — — 671,592 (6,738) 664,854
(400) — — — — (400) — (400)
— — (31,453) — — (31,453) (1,723) (33,176)
(400) 671,592 (31,453) — — 639,739 (8,461) 631,278
— (56,662) — — 56,662 — — —
_ — — — — — (12,345) (12,345)
— — — — (56,662) (56,662) — (56,662)
688 19,691,418 (28,889) 1,848 56,662 20,441,164 15,055 20,456,219

3
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
# 1 B 85 A Wi

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B 2 —FE—NFE+ - H=+—HILF&E

Soundwill Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated and domiciled in Bermuda. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
Company’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) is principally engaged in property
development, property leasing and provision of building
management services.

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) consider the
Company’s ultimate holding party to be a discretionary trust
(the “Trust”), which Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace, the Chairman
of the board of Directors, and her family members (including
Ms. Chan Wai Ling, executive director of the Company) are the
beneficiaries of the Trust.

The Group has applied the following new and amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax

Treatments

Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

Hong Kong Settlement
Accounting
Standard
(“HKAS”) 19

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

cHEEEEGRAR (AR ARBERE
HMAYEELR 2ER AT  AQE FMH
9% = BZ b 1k & Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda ° & A &)
BREBREHERZAERAR ([BRFT])
e

ARRETBEXEBRRERR  HB AR
ZEBEBHRNGRAMBEHRRMEESS - K
REAREMBAR(AKEENDEZLEY
XER PEHERRERHEBTEERS

ARRAEE(EE)RARAAZ BRE
BT A— B 2R () - IAAF
ERGLHEBL UL TR AREKE (B
ARTMTEFRE LM ARIEELF
A

AEBEAFEEERABTAGTAA
2(EEGHMAG)BAOATH R
RIETREV B REEL:

BEemBHREEN MHE

1657

BB ERVBERE FEREENTHERER
REZE9 RE
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BB EN(ES FEMEET  BRIEER
2ErEAl]) £19%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 A IV R M SR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

Except as described below, the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 “Leases”
(“HKAS 17”), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply HKFRS
16 to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 “Determining whether
an Arrangement contains a Lease” and not apply this
standards to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease.

Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts which
already existed prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 January
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in accordance
with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in assessing
whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with the
cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial application, 1
January 2019. At as 1 January 2019, the Group recognised
additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets at amounts
equal to the related lease liabilities adjusted by accrued lease
payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any
difference at the date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative information has not
been restated.

BRI SCRT i o - AARFEE FE AT AT K &4
ARV EREEABAEEATERB
EEENTBERBERAR HUZELEE
MEREMENEESENEELESAY
@,

EFEMBHEEEL 165 HE
REBRAESEEREEY RS %D
F165% o BB B 1% 7R S E B FH165 2 B
BESetENBEITRIAEI((R B et
BIE75R ) R AR -

HEZE#
AEBECEERTZRE 2R HEMH
P REREEGHEANFITHRLEE (BR
MHHRERBERES)RERREERA
ZHELRREHEICHEZANEREE
B ig R EERIE165E - BT S HERARE
AREEHEZAHRALLER -

At - ARBY BEHFAEENERA
HAEFEZRA

HR-_F-NF-A—B 2K LAE
RIZAH AEBEFHAONREEEH
B - DIRBEB BB HREERF165 A
HATERABEEZER °

TERABEA

AEEER_T-NF—A—HEPER
EEUMBHREERNFEI6H - LR EXER
BHERRFATE RF-NF—A—
B AEEEEEAEEVBRESELSE
16.C8(b)(ii) 1k B E © IRIEE N B EER
RHBEZHBEHAEAESERREINEE
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M ZR IR BIRE S MR WEED
LB EH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis, to
the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application;

excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-
use assets at the date of initial application;

applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
a similar remaining terms for similar class of underlying
assets in similar economic environment. Specifically,
discount rate for certain leases of properties in Hong
Kong was determined on a portfolio basis; and

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances as at
date of initial application in determining the lease term for
the Group’s leases with extension and termination
options.

EFEEMBREFERE165 HE /()
1EREAHEA ()

R8I AR IR B8 B 5 5 B R 1657 /8
REETEPH AR AKECESHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VT =] Bd‘a‘%i&i%&ﬁui

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities at the
date of initial application. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied is 3.933%.

On transition, the Group has made the following adjustments
upon application of HKFRS 16:

The Group recognised lease liabilities of HK$5,983,000 and
right-of-use assets of HK$23,127,000 at 1 January 2019.

FERHE] REETEEMBR
HERA(EFEMBREEL D
(48)

REAFERFERZHITREETE
AR E R ()

FEEMBHREERE 165 HE /(4)
1EREABA(E)
MERMDBERREHECHERRAEER
B NREBE R ERERB A ERAER
SEEREEEEMNE - FAIEMAZ INE
T A AL EEE M =K 53.933% °

ERERMEREERFEIGHR  AEE
RBERAEH AT HE:
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(E9E biiél<5,983,0007n RERBEEERE
23,127,0007T °
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

2. ERAMIIREEITFEMBR
HERA(EFEMBREEL D
(48)

REAFERFERZHITREETE
AR E R ()

EEMBRERLRF 165 HE (&)
1EREABA(E)

At 1 January

2019
R-ZB—h %
—HA—H
HK$'000
BT T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at RZZE—-N\F+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 W e E AR 6,807
Less: discounting on lease liabilities at relevant W REAEEEENRFTRAE
incremental borrowing rates af\ (141)
Lease liabilities discounted at relevant incremental REBAEEEEN RN R 2 HERRE
borrowing rates 6,666
Less: Recognition exemption B BREE
— short-term leases — RHEE 677)
— low value assets —KEEEE (6)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 RZE-NF—A—BZHEEE 5,983
Analysed as DB
Current B 2,049
Non-current SEMRE 3,934

5,983
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2. ERAMIIREEITFEMBR
HERA(EFEMBREEL D

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (48)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatorily effective for the current year
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

REAFERFERZHITREETE
AR E R ()

EEMBRERLRF 165 HE (&)

As a lessee (Continued) EBAFN ()
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at 1 January RZZE-—NF-—H-BzFEREEERA
2019 comprises the following: BERATEIEHEKX :
Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Notes HK$'000
gz BT
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases FERB AU G mEER
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 FIHRRER 2 L&
HEMBzEREEE 5,983
Reclassified from properties held for development REERMEXENHHE @) 17,305
Adjustments on rental deposits at RZZ2-NWF—-HA—BZ
1 January 2019 HekasHAE ) 61
Less: Accrued lease liabilities relating to BWRZE—NF—HA—H
rent free period at 1 January 2019 W HEAE 2 25T
HEAE © (222)
23,127
By class: LRSS
Leasehold lands HELTH 17,305
Leased properties HEWE 5,822

23,127
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

@)

Upfront payments for leasehold lands in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (“the PRC”) were
classified as properties held for development as at 31
December 2018. Upon application of HKFRS 16,
properties held for development amounting to
HK$17,305,000 were reclassified to right-of-use assets.

Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group
considered refundable rental deposits paid as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied.
Based on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS
16, such deposits are not payments relating to the right
to use of the underlying assets and were adjusted to
reflect the discounting effect at transition. Accordingly,
HK$61,000 was adjusted to refundable rental deposits
paid and right-of-use assets.

These relate to accrued lease liabilities for leases of
properties in which the lessors provided rent-free period.
The carrying amount of the lease incentive liabilities as at
1 January 2019 was adjusted to right-of-use assets at
transition.

Effective from 1 January 2019, leasehold lands which
were classified properties for development are measured
under HKFRS 16 at cost less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

BEEHBEREERF 165 HE/(4E)
1ERAHA ()

@)

R-EBE—N\F+_A=+—8 ' FE
NMAFEAREME(HE])AEE L
Z B R “ﬁﬁﬁ%E%%OE%
BN HRELELE16IRIE @ FEE
LEN %W%wmmaiﬁ“%%
FRAEEE -

FE B B 15 R ERISE165E AT - A
EEHENAERERSZESEAER
BEAGTEEITR o AEB N2k
FRED - RIEFBMBEHRELLE

165% T2 HENKER * 252
FEBEEEEFEREEE 2R I
EEHARENRMBERZ TR
2. Qi ENATRERSIRESRE
FA# & E B E L % #61,0007T 2 3

%5510

EEOIHARKEEHZYERE
ZR2HERENME R-FT—NF
—A—RZEEETAGKREE "2
RBERHBEERAEEE

B-Z-hF—HA—HE 2EAR
%E%%Zﬁﬁimﬁ%%%%%
&5 22 Rl B 1657 12 AR 4SBT (] R AT T
ERERERBETE -
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) BEEMBHEERF 165 HE (&)

As a lessor TEA M A

In accordance with the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16, the MR IR A B 75 5 4 R 28165k 2 3R A6

Group is not required to make any adjustment on transition for AEBEERBEREASEALHBEAZ

leases in which the Group is a lessor but account for these HEFEREMARE  BEAEHXERBH

leases in accordance with HKFRS 16 from the date of initial RARIR A B W 15 5 2RI 165 K S M

application and comparative information has not been EANR WESIILERER -

restated.

(d)  Upon application of HKFRS 16, new lease contracts o) EAEBHEREEREI6%E - 5
entered into but commence after the date of initial REMEGN T R—HEEEES]
application relating to the same underlying assets under VERBXERBHRERRZHHEHE
existing lease contracts are accounted as if the existing &8 NEBERBEEEER=ZZ—N1
leases are modified as at 1 January 2019. The F—H—RABAIZARARK - ILFER
application has had no impact on the Group’s WERAGAREER_ZE—NF—H—H
consolidated statement of financial position at 1 January ZEAMBEMRRAREKERFZE -
2019. However, effective on 1 January 2019, lease BH-ZZE—NF—A—HRB W 8B{E5]
payments relating to the revised lease term after BT HBBRE o HENK Ty
modification are recognised as income on straight-line REERBHANEFERREK

basis over the extended lease term. A ©
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessor (Continued)

©)

Before application of HKFRS 16, refundable rental
deposits received were considered as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applied
under trade and other payables. Based on the definition
of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits are
not payments relating to the right-of-use assets and
were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect at
transition. Accordingly, HK$9,207,000 was adjusted to
refundable rental deposits received and advance lease
payments.

Effective on 1 January 2019, the Group has applied
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
(“HKFRS 15”) to allocate consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease components. The change in
allocation basis has had no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
current year.

BEEHMBRERERF 165 HEIE)
TER LA (B)

©)

ERE BT R ELERE6HR - B
WAREHSZE SR ANRES R EAM
ENZIETEARE S FELE17HR
ZHEBE TN ZENRED - RIBRB
R EERFEREZ2EBENKE
E SRS VWIHHEFTHEEERH
ZIERC W E R TR A R B iR
ZIHZE - Al - EWARERS
e REMNAENKEELBE
9,207,0007C Z FA % -

H-ZE-hE—A—B AEEE
RBEBMBRELERFGHRIRER
Fa#® et |(TE 72T HHREER
F155% ) BENREIEESHEE
KRIEMERD - DB EZH I &
BAEEAFEEZREMBRRE
REREAZE -
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)
As a lessor (Continued)
The following adjustments were made to the amounts

EEMBREREAF 165 HEIE)
TERL N (E)
R-ZF-NE-A—BZHEAFHRAEK

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

RZSBECFHATHAE - TXEHE
BYEZHBEARBEEA -

Carrying
amounts
previously Carrying
reported at amounts under
31 December HKFRS 16 at
2018 Adjustments 1 January 2019
RZB-1E
FRR —-RA—-B#E
—E-0\E EEUBRE
+-HA=+-H Rl 5165%
R&EZREE HE ATHZIREE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
it BT BT BT
Current liabilities RBER
Trade and other payables ESREMENTIE
— Advance lease payments - EREERNK @ - 9,207 9,207
— Rental deposits - HeHs © 173,326 (9,207) 164,119

Note: For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2019,
movements in working capital have been computed based on
opening consolidated statement of financial position as at 1
January 2019 as disclosed above.

M RRERESEZREBE_ZT-—NF+=A
=T RALFEZRLEBHAFERERE -
EREXBRBEZR-_Z-NF-—A—HZF
NEERMBRRARAELEESEE o
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As a lessor (Continued)

The following tables summarise the impacts of applying
HKFRS 16 as a lessor on the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2019 and its
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended 31 December 2019 for each of the line
items affected. Line items that were not affected by the
changes have not been included.

EFEEMBREFERE165 HE /()
TER LA (B)
TERABEXFEHAMAERLAARS
EEVBHREEYNFICRHYAKER T
—hE+Z A=+ —HZHEEHBMRRE
REBE-_FT-NF+t_A=1t—HBLF
EHRaEalEtEERARAEGSR
ERERELZVE - TXEREITE
ZBAYRBEENA -

Amounts
without
application
Impact on the consolidated statement of of HKFRS 16,
financial position As reported Adjustments as a lessor
AEREE
pMEEREER
S At
HESHMBRARZVE BRE HE  (EBEEAN)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT
Current liabilities RBER
Trade and other payables EHREMENIE
— Advance lease payments - EREERNK 5,195 (5,195) -
— Rental deposits - Heke 156,450 5,278 161,728
Equity EH
Reserves & 20,562,544 (89) 20,562,461
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HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEHMFHREERE167HEE)
As a lessor (Continued) EBMHTN (&)

Amounts
without
Impact on the consolidated statement of application of
profit and loss and other comprehensive HKFRS 16,
income Asreported  Adjustments as a lessor
RKEREE
M REER
ER (A
HECEBREBZEARARZIVE BEE HAE (EBHEN)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Hit AETT AETT AETT

Revenue g @ 733,872 (2,608) 731,264
Finance costs AR A @ (60,035) 2,525 (57,510)

Profit before income tax expenses B BT {574 B 2 A 7 272,364 83 272,281
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. FERHIIREEIIEBUBR
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG HEXEAUN(EEMBHREELD)
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are NEAEERFERZHITREETE
mandatorily effective for the current year BB REER(E)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued) EEHBHEEREFEI67HE/E)
As a lessor (Continued) TERH TN (&)
Amounts
without
application of
Impact on the consolidated statement of HKFRS 16,
cash flows Asreported  Adjustments as a lessor
REREHE
MR R & EA
F165 2 &8
HECHERERZRE BiRE HE  (eBHBAN)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
/it BETT BETT BETT
Net cash inflow from operating activities BEEB MBERS
mAFE © 334,868 (83) 334,785
Notes: B 7 -
(@  The adjustments relate to reduction in rental income and finance ©) ZEAERDAREARERSRSZINR

costs of HK$2,608,000 and HK$2,525,000 respectively if the
discounting effects for refundable rental deposits were not
adjusted.

HERTARZBAT  HEWARBER
A 5 BB L B #2,608,000T Kk B
2,525,0007T °
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The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts!
Amendments to Definition of a Business?
HKFRS 3

Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 and between an Investor and its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1  Definition of Material*
and HKAS 8

Amendments to

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform*

Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

U Effective for annual periods on or after 1 January 2021
2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

A5 A WS R B

A 45 30 4 42 2 18 P UA T B AR LY
KA FTE RS TTE BB B
HRR

EERBREEANETR  RRAY
EEMBREEANES FBLER
A 5|

BEMBREERFI0RR REBEABENAR
BREMENENR AELEZANE
& EHETIN

BRI ERERR ERRH
BR G EAE8H ¢
fgal

BEMBHREENRN - MEEEYE

BRGHEAERR
BRMBREERETS
Z{EF

! MNoZE- %A Bk Z&MRIEN
FEREEXK

2 FREBRARAE T _F—H—
Bk 2 & FI16H & [E 5K BRI
HZERNEEEHREERBER

® REE R Hsk 2 R RABNFEEHME

B
2 R-E-_TE—F B ZEBFABAD
FEHIR A R

B Lt ¥ eI RARERT BB B WmE
RSN - BIEFTH B REBSHERR
R N\EFHM e HRBE(EE

758 5 2R b 21 B2 HE 28 49 32 it

BIEETI) R T _FF—HA—Hk
RN FERREER -
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Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the Directors anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide refinements to the definition of
material by including additional guidance and
explanations in making materiality judgments. In
particular, the amendments:

° include the concept of “obscuring” material
information in which the effect is similar to omitting
or misstating the information;

° replace threshold for materiality influencing users
from “could influence” to “could reasonably be
expected to influence”; and

° include the use of the phrase “primary users” rather
than simply referring to “users” which was
considered too broad when deciding what
information to disclose in the financial statements.

The amendments also align the definition across all
HKFRSs and will be mandatorily effective for the Group’s
annual period beginning on 1 January 2020. The
application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group but may affect the
presentation and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements.

BRT L R] R ERT B AR IR E £
QSN - ERTEH] - EAABE EMEET

EEEIIEAEMBHRELRE T &
HARBRNGEAMBRREKE
REE -

EEEITERE1TREEZTER
FOHZIEFTIEEZ E ]

uxﬁf nTﬁLﬁAﬂz:ﬁéj{%”ﬁﬁﬁi
WEEINESI R RE HEENTRE
TR - LEZBHEBE]:

EIREIEEEROMS
LEERRBME R BB

. AT EERESHAEE A
EEERTE BRI E]
)54

s BEEAFAAX2EMAEM
FERIMERE] RORERY
ﬁ&;\t&ﬁﬁﬂﬁfj BRI - %8

ARERERES -

ZEERTRR BB R EERNTE
BB UKEASEER_ZT_TF
—A— BRI FE BRI R S AR -

EHERAZEEITTEHAEEN
MR RRBENEAZE - T
REFENGEVBBRRPHE25 R

B o
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Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “New Framework”) and the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRS Standards

The New Framework:

° reintroduces the terms stewardship and prudence;

° introduces a new asset definition that focuses on
rights and a new liability definition that is likely to
be broader than the definition it replaces, but does
not change the distinction between a liability and
an equity instrument;

° discusses historical cost and current value
measures, and provides additional guidance on
how to select a measurement basis for a particular
asset or liability;

° states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or loss, and that only in
exceptional circumstances other comprehensive
income will be used and only for income or
expenses that arise from a change in the current
value of an asset or liability; and

° discusses uncertainty, derecognition, unit of
account, the reporting entity and combined
financial statements.

Consequential amendments have been made so that
references in certain HKFRSs have been updated to the
New Framework, whilst some HKFRSs are still referred
to the previous versions of the framework. These
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2020, with earlier application
permitted. Other than specific standards which still refer
to the previous versions of the framework, the Group will
rely on the New Framework on its effective date in
determining the accounting policies especially for
transactions, events or conditions that are not otherwise
dealt with under the accounting standards.

T NEFEHBREMSERF
KR |) R 18 it &5 B BT 5 3R & E R HE
wn E*Hj/g .T

FAER:
e  EHMSIAEELFELFME:

s SIAZERFMNFEEERMN
NEERIRELL TR ER B &
MIRRETE ETERER
ERERTAZEMNER

e HWELKARBREE A
B AR-—EENAEERE
FFEEEREMREIES:

s HRHMBRAIZAEEES
Bm ERBHRBERLTHERE
REt2EEA BEARE
EFRBEREELZHHEA
BAERN

e HWmATHEERE  BUHER -
SRTEN REEERAHY
BH& °

MEEIEIFL - ERRETEE
MHHREEATNRAESEHEZNE
FAESR - HERD FEW RS LR
DEZERNERMRA - ZHFEFTR
—E_TE-HA-HAZEFARNEF
EHMER - XA REEREA - KRiD2
2 5% E 2R 5t /i i AN 1 5 7€ 28 Bl S *ZK
SEBNEARBRIRAERRE
AR LERES Q‘EE‘J*EJEIEE’J
X5 BHEERM -
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The consolidated financial statements on pages 152 to
308 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments, investment properties and
buildings which are measured at fair values or revalued
amounts at the end of the reporting period as set out in
the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

15223088 Z 7 A M MK TIR IR
BREGHMAERM BB TERE
HATAREL - LI - FRAMBHREE
EREEBMAERIMERARESLD
ARAN(T LR A R E B QB R PIF
MEZBRKE -

RAVBRRDIEAE LKL R
B ER TR BRAANTED
AEAVFELELSREFEZET
MBETE REMEREFHRIN

FESE RN —MRA RIS fn N RS P
RTREZATFER/REE -
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Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payment”, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or
HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use. Fair
value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique.

For financial instruments and investment properties
which are transacted at fair value and a valuation
technique that unobservable inputs is to be used to
measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

ATFEATMHE2EERGEAHES
FREFHEELEEB KK EEEE
B ZEE  ThZEBEEREEEE
AR EAS B HERMEE -
B BERBBE 2 AFER  AEEH
EEMB2EEENEHHAZEE
SABEETEERBEEEEZEES
BERE - ERERETBHREFRT
ER/RNBEEZAFES R ER
FETE WESBMBREELF2
SRIAR (D S | BB R 2 AR 0 A 7
ZERRG - WEEBY B RS LR
FoR(EZZE—NF—A—HEE)k
BB ENBEITH(EREBNG
HEEAEBHEANDARZHAER S
REQNFERSBEUELIEAFEZ
FrE (BB ERER[FE]F
MR IR FE B B g RIS 3655
[BEREBE]ITOEREB) KRN

AEFVMBEEZATER €8
mE2EREFBREARSRKER
BEREEIERHETRRARS
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In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of
the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised in note 4.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates are
based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in
note 5.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.

o - B HREmS - AFEEE
BIEAFEE 2 8EH AT BR
%ift*&%(ﬁfﬁmi\ﬂ FTEFEZE
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
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All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company. Al
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs).

Acquisition of subsidiary not constituting a
business

When the Group acquires a subsidiary where the
underlying assets are not integrated in forming a
business, the transaction is accounted for as a purchase
of net assets. The cost of the acquisition is allocated to
the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed by
allocating the purchase price first to investment
properties which are subsequently measured under fair
value model and financial assets/financial liabilities at the
respective fair values, the remaining balance of the
purchase price is then allocated to the other identifiable
assets and liabilities on the basis of their relative fair
values at the date of purchase. Such a transaction does
not give rise to goodwill or bargain purchase gain.
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Interests in joint operations

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the assets, and obligations for the liabilities,
relating to the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

When a group entity undertakes its activities under joint
operations, the Group as a joint operator recognises in
relation to its interest in a joint operation:

° its assets, including its share of any assets held
jointly;
° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities

incurred jointly;

° its revenue from the sale of its share of the output
arising from the joint operation;

° its share of the revenue from the sale of the output
by the joint operation; and

° its expenses, including its share of any expenses
incurred jointly.

The Group accounts for the assets, liabilities, revenues
and expenses relating to its interest in a joint operation in
accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses.

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a sale or
contribution of assets), the Group is considered to be
conducting the transaction with the other parties to the
joint operation, and gains and losses resulting from the
transactions are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of other parties’
interests in the joint operation.
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Interests in joint operations (Continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint operation in
which a group entity is a joint operator (such as a
purchase of assets), the Group does not recognise its
share of the gains and losses until it resells those assets
to a third party.

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs of disposal,
except for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9
and investment properties which continue to be
measured in accordance with the accounting policies as
set out in respective sections.
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Investment properties are properties held either to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation (including
properties under construction or held for future
development for such purposes), but not held for sale in
the ordinary course of business, use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including
directly attributable expenditure, on initial recognition.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at fair value, adjusted to exclude any
prepaid or accrued operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

A transfer from properties for sale to investment property
should be made when, and only when, there is an
evidence (such as inception of the lease) for a change in
use. For a transfer to investment property, if the property
will be carried at fair value, any difference between the
fair value and the carrying amount of the property at the
date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are
expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the properties) is recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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Buildings held for own use are stated at revalued
amount, being their fair value at the date of the
revaluation, less any subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” (upon application of HKFRS 16)
or “prepaid lease payments” (before application of
HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement of financial
position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under the fair
value model. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.
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Any revaluation increase arising from revaluation of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in asset
revaluation reserve, except to the extent that it reverses a
revaluation decrease of the same asset previously
recognise in profit or loss, in which case the increase is
credited to profit or loss to the extent of the decrease
previously charged. A decrease in net carrying amount
arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss to the extent that it exceeds
the balance, if any, on the asset revaluation reserve
relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the
attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to retained
profits.

Other items of property, plant and equipment, are stated
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Costs include any costs directly
attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing and capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences wWhen the assets are ready for their intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and maintenance
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.
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Depreciation is provided to write off the cost/revalued
amount of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold lands Over the lease period

Buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements 10%-30%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%—-20%
Motor vehicles 6%-15%

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each reporting date with the effect of any changes in
estimates being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. The gain or loss arising on
disposal is determined as the difference between the net
sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss.

Before the application of HKFRS 16, properties held for
development represent payments for interest in
agricultural lands and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms.
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of the non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that they have
suffered an impairment loss or if any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of non-financial assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an asset individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. In addition,
the Group assesses whether there is indication that
corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the
recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and zero.
The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise
have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to
the other assets of the unit or the group of cash-
generating units.
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An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease according to that
standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit or
a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or
cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating units)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under
another standard, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase
under that standard.

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16
in accordance with transitions in note 2)
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed.
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to
separate non-lease components from lease component,
and instead account for the lease component and any
associated non-lease components as a single lease
component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
financial statements would not differ materially from
individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of car parks and office premises
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment”, the same line item within which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value
at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable.
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments. The
Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever the lease term has changed or there is
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the date of
reassessment.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.
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The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)
(Continued)

Lease modifications (Continueq)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

The Group as a lessee (prior to 1 January 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Total rentals payable under operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over
the term of the relevant lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made.

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.
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The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Classification and measurement of leases (Continued)
Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties
measured under fair value model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.

The Group as a lessor (upon application of HKFRS
16 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

FREEBHBEAE)

HE 7R E(E)
ReHENHS B AERBEHEHEY
RARBREGREAER RED - EB
Rz REHERELENTRER
RAGTAREZEMNREE - BRAK
AREEHRNRBEREER B
HREAFEEATHENREYE
BRIN o

AEEREXBBAREEZHESEA
TI25 R Es o

FREEEBLHBEA (RIZHF22 8
BEREEHBREERF165
#)
# B B & #6948 7K 5B 77
ERAREESHENFHEEANK
D AEEERBEBUB RS
|2£155% - BENMKRENEEMR
FOFMEMAMKE D - IFHEARK
75 AR 15 E AR ¥ B 7 3H E (B AR

)
HEHEREED DF -

>m

£

B B m B

REMZ KT
BERNARER RSB BEE B
BEENFORETHE X ARA
FEETENE - VHEERFD
AT EAERR/EBEANEINEE
/S

HEEX

REREMAEE  AEEKEEHE
HWEERIIERRHE AR - Ehiga
JRG 70 & HE BE & ) T8 1 Sk e Gt AR
EXE RIEFHENEI>BEER
18 ©



SMBEMARAT = 199

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 A IV R M SR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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4.9.1 Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect
contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently
measured at FVTPL, except that at the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9Y/initial recognition of a
financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) if that equity investment is neither held for
trading nor contingent consideration recognised
by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” applies.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of the reporting period, with any
fair value gains or losses recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on
the financial asset and is included in the “other
income and losses” line item.

4.91 HFEE(4E)

HBEEZHRRRKHE
(#)

B9 - AR WA R AME
AR B AARE A FEEA
Hip2ERAE 2 HBEE
e AR AT EH AR E
B R U R E R AR
L& R -

BEH K AR E A

LR RIZE AN B 2 B R
BEMS  MEWATLKRAE
R FORFER - MBEWATIR
MBEEREAERRER
MEFE EERRKREER
BzHBEERINET -
REBRLBREEREZIHBEE
EME MBEWATIBET—#H
EHMEHMEEEZBEKA
FERMERM TR - HHRE
ERELMBIAZEERR
BAIRE  NBMBEETH
HEREERE IBETEE
THBHREEREBER 2BEH
FtHIE  WHMBEEZRER
B A ERF X#RFE WK
Ao

BAFEGAEBR W BEEE
75 & EAT B BIHKA
AERRAFESAEMEE
WARIEE B AFEAAR
e mEmE A ZER - AlIE A F
BEFfABRAE -

BAFEFABRIUBEE
RBMERRIZAFEFE A
ERSPHEAEMNRFERS
HER REBEDERZAEF
BIERMBEEMRIZE
A B AR - WA ATEM YK
AREERIEAR -



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A I R W RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment
under expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other
receivables, loan receivables, restricted bank
deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents) and financial guarantee
contracts. The amount of ECL is updated at the
end of the reporting period to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result
from all possible default events over the expected
life of the relevant instrument. In contrast,
12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime
ECL that is expected to result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the end of
each reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for
trade receivables. The ECL on these assets are
assessed individually for each debtor.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless
when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or
risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
In particular, the following information is
taken into account when assessing whether
credit risk has increased significantly:

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial
instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

significant deterioration in external
market indicators of credit risk, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

existing or forecast adverse changes
in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause
a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of
the debtor;

an actual or expected significant
adverse change in the regulatory,
economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results
in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes
that the credit risk on a debt instrument has
not increased significantly since initial
recognition if the debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if i) it has a
low risk of default, ii) the borrower has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term and iii)
adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the
borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt
instrument to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of
“investment grade” as per globally
understood definitions.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(0

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)
For financial guarantee contracts, the date
that the Group becomes a party to the
irrevocable commitment is considered to be
the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since
initial recognition of a financial guarantee
contract, the Group considers the changes
in the risk that the specified debtor will
default on the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of the criteria used to identify
whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past
due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

)

Definition of default

The Group considers that default has
occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one
or more events of default that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

(@  significant financial difficulty of the
issuer or the borrower;

(b)  abreach of contract, such as a default
or past due event;
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for
economic or contractual reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

(e)  the disappearance of an active market
for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised
in profit or loss.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e.
the magnitude of the loss if there is a default)
and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and
loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for
determining the ECL is consistent with the
cash flows used in measuring the lease
receivable in accordance with HKFRS 16
(since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (prior to
1 January 2019).

For a financial guarantee contract, the
Group is required to make payments only in
the event of a default by the debtor in
accordance with the terms of the instrument
that is guaranteed. Accordingly, the
expected losses is the present value of the
expected payments to reimburse the holder
for a credit loss that it incurs less any
amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other

party.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for
which the effective interest rate cannot be
determined, the Group will apply a discount
rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and
the risks that are specific to the cash flows
but only if, and to the extent that, the risks
are taken into account by adjusting the
discount rate instead of adjusting the cash
shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial
asset.

For financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowances are recognised at the higher of
the amount of the loss allowance
determined in accordance with HKFRS 9;
and the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amount of
income recognised over the guarantee
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(vy  Measurement and recognition of ECL
(Continued)
The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade
receivables, loan receivables and financial
guarantee contracts where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised
through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay.
If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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4.9.1 Financial assets (Continued) 4.91 HFEE(4E)

Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or
loss.

4.9.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other
payables and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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4.9.2 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

(Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payments when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are
measured initially at their fair values. It is
subsequently measured at the higher of:

° the amount of the loss allowance determined
in accordance with HKFRS 9; and

° the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Properties for sale are classified as current assets.
Except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16, properties for sale are carried
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on a specific identification basis including
allocation of the related development expenditure
incurred and where appropriate, borrowing costs
capitalised. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for the properties less estimated cost to
completion and costs necessary to make the sales.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations
(including allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations (i.e. providing financial guarantee to banks
with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties in the contracts on
sales of properties), the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price
at which the Group would sell a promised good or
service separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling
price is not directly observable, the Group estimates it
using appropriate techniques such that the transaction
price ultimately allocated to any performance obligation
reflects the amount of consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to the customer.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or the
Group with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the transaction price for any significant
financing component.
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Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs
that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a
customer that it would not have incurred if the contract
had not been obtained.

The Group recognises such costs (i.e. sales
commissions in relation to the sales of properties) as an
asset if it expects to recover these costs. The asset
recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or loss on
a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to
the customer of the goods or services to which the
assets relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

The Group applies the practical expedient of expensing
all incremental costs to obtain a contract if these costs
would otherwise have been fully amortised to profit or
loss within one year.
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In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
translated using exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the foreign exchange rates prevailing at
that date.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

In the consolidated financial statements, the financial
statements of foreign operations, originally presented in a
currency different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into HK$. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the closing
rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the HK$ at average rates over the
reporting period provided that the exchange rates over
that period did not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign operation have been treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated into HK$
at the closing rates (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

Effective from 1 January 2019, any specific borrowing
that remain outstanding after the related asset is ready
for its intended use or sale is included in the general
borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate on
general borrowings. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are
unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of income tax
expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences at
the reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and their corresponding tax bases used in
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available to
be carried forward as well as other unused tax credits, to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits
can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investment in
subsidiaries and interests in joint operation, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of the reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale,
unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption is
rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for such
investment properties are measured in accordance with
the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right of
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable
to the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed on a
net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use assets
over the lease payments for the principal portion of lease
liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.
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Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, BB RRIERL I DN I8 TR - 1
except when they relate to items that are recognised in fisg BV BR J% 3% R 77 18 B2 78 E fib 2 Uk
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in A EEREEERZEEER - 8
which case, the current and deferred tax are also HRIEERIBEIT S DR EHME2E
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in WA EERERANER -

equity respectively.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are it (R (2 fisf) HER LA 5 - R BN AR
presented in net if, and only if, HEERNAHRBEGENRFES
5
(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right to set @  AKEBEE R S 1R R K 5
off the recognised amounts; and EEREE &
(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise () WMERIFEEELE FEHE
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. REERGEEAE -
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()

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions. The
Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term and other long-term employee
benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered the
services. All short-term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in
the cost of an asset.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present
value of the estimated future cash outflows
expected to be made by the Group in respect of
services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities’
carrying amounts resulting from service cost,
interest and remeasurements are recognised in
profit or loss except to the extent that another
HKFRS requires or permits their inclusion in the
cost of an asset.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

(i)  Deferred tax arising from fair value changes in

investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s
investment property portfolios and concluded that the
Group’s investment properties are not held under a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in
the investment properties over time. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred taxation on investment
properties, the Directors have determined that the
presumption that the carrying amounts of investment
properties measured using the fair value model are
recovered entirely through sale is not rebutted.
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The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

(i)

Estimated fair value of investment properties and
revalued amount of buildings

As at the reporting date, the Group’s investment
properties are stated at fair value and buildings are
stated at revalued amount based on the valuation
performed by an independent qualified professional
valuer. In determining the fair value/revalued amount, the
valuer has based its valuation on income capitalisation
approach or direct comparison or the residual method,
as appropriate for respective investment properties, and
valuation on net replacement cost method for buildings,
which involves certain estimates, including comparable
market transactions, appropriate capitalisation rates and
reversionary rental value, estimated gross development
value, estimated cost of development and allowance of
profit that duly reflected developer’s risk associated with
the development, as appropriate. In relying on the
valuation, management has exercised their judgement
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation adopted
are appropriate for the relevant property and reflective of
current market conditions. As at 31 December 2019, the
fair value of Group’s investment properties and revalued
amount of buildings were HK$21,185,655,000 and
HK$37,778,000 (2018: HK$20,439,237,000 and
HK$39,378,000), respectively.
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(i)  Net realisable values of properties for sale (i) FEYFZoEEFHE

Management determines the net realisable values of
properties for sale based on the Group’s assessment of
the selling price ultimately expected to be realised less all
estimated cost to completion and cost necessary to
make the sale. The estimated selling price of such
properties are determined by the management with
reference to prevailing market data such as most recent
sale transactions of similar properties or market valuation
reports available from independent qualified professional
valuers. Such valuations are made based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainties and
might materially differ from the actual result. In making
the judgement, reasonable consideration has been given
to the underlying assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the reporting date. These
estimates are regularly compared to actual market data
and actual transactions in the market. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of properties for
sale was HK$1,025,080,000 (2018: HK$954,855,000).
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6. REVENUE 6. Ui
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its principal activities AREB 2 EEEB 2 W R EMKRA DT
and other income is as follows: e
i)  Disaggregation of revenue and reconciliation i) Wz E PR R 5 A W A E AR
to segment revenue
2019 2018
—E-A%F —T—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT I
Revenue from contracts with REFEMBRE
customers under HKFRS 15 #ZR|E15HWKBER
ezl
Property development* YMIEER
— Sales of completed properties —EBEKTEME
for sale HE 180,230 417,247
Building management and EFEERA MRS
other services*
— Property repairs and maintenance — MEHBERRE
service income AR 7% U A 6,622 8,472
— Building management service — BFERRS
income N 14,715 14,639
Revenue from contracts with customers 18 15 & i B1 75 37 &5 % 8|
under HKFRS 15 FISHRRABEF AL
pal & 201,567 440,358
Property leasing* MEHE
— Rental and signage rental income —HeRESEM
HEWA 532,305 540,040
Total revenue FR ] 733,872 980,398
* The segment names are defined in the section “Segment *
information” in note 8.

DEEMWER LW ES D EER]—
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6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. Wiz (&)
i) Disaggregation of revenue and reconciliation i) W= RS E W AR (E)
to segment revenue (Continued)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2019 segment segment Total

BFEER
BE-S—-AE+-_A=+—BHLEEE MERRSE HORBESE @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EETT EETT EETT

Geographical markets i [& T 15
The PRC* el 173,092 - 173,092
Hong Kong BB 7,138 21,337 28,475
180,230 21,337 201,567

Timing of recognition R A E
A point in time F B 180,230 - 180,230
Over time FERS R HERS - 21,337 21,337
180,230 21,337 201,567
* For reporting purpose, the PRC excludes Hong Kong, * MERMES F PRIBERE - 88

Taiwan and Macau RS
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6. REVENUE (Continued) 6. Wik(&)
i) Disaggregation of revenue and reconciliation i) W E PR R o B 0 2 EE AR (48)
to segment revenue (Continued)

Building
management
Property and other
development services
For the year ended 31 December 2018 segment segment Total
BFERR
BHEZZT—\F+-_A=+—HLEFE MEZERSE HUMRBSE #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BT
Geographical markets i [E 15
The PRC* Y- 250,966 - 250,966
Hong Kong BB 166,281 23,111 189,392
417,247 23,111 440,358
Timing of recognition & 5% B [
A point in time R B 417,247 - 417,247
Over time & 5 R HE 75 — 23,111 23,111
417,247 23,111 440,358
* For reporting purpose, the PRC excludes Hong Kong, * HERMS  PRIBRESRE - 8

Taiwan and Macau OB
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Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised when the
respective properties have been completed and
delivered to the customers which is a point in time when
customers have the ability to direct the use of the
properties and obtain substantially all benefits of the
properties. Deposits received from customers prior to
meeting the aforementioned revenue recognition criteria
are regarded as the contract liabilities and included in
current liabilities as pre-sale proceeds received on sales
of properties in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The Group considers that the pre-sale proceeds
received on sales of properties do not contain significant
financing component as the contracts where the period
between payment and transfer of the associated
properties is less than one year, the Group applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the transaction price
for any significant financing component.

For the contracts that contain the performance
obligation of providing financial guarantee to banks with
respect to mortgage loans procured by the purchasers
of the Group’s properties in the contracts on sales of
properties, the Group should allocate the transaction
price to the performance obligations between the sales
of properties and provision of financial guarantee on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis. The Group
considers that the impact in the allocation of provision of
financial guarantee on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis is insignificant during the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 and thus all the revenue recognised from
the contracts with customers on sales of properties is
then allocated to the revenue from sales of completed
properties for sale.
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Property repairs and maintenance service income/
Building management service income

Revenue from provision of property repairs and
maintenance service and provision of building
management service are recognised over time as the
customers simultaneously receive and consume the
benefits provided by the Group when the Group renders
the service.

Contracts for building management services are typically
have one to five years non-cancellable term under which
the Group bills a fixed amount for a month. The Group
elected to apply the practical expedient by recognising
revenue in the amount to which the Group has right to
invoice. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts is not
disclosed.

All other contracts with customers are for periods of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the
transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied contracts
is not disclosed.
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7. OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES 7. HWAREE

2019 2018
“F¥-hE —ZT-N\#F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T Nk e e

Other income Hipug A

Interest income from financial assets at EAFEFAERZ

FVTPL WBEEZMEMRA 4,581 5,232
Interest income from loan receivables FE U B R B A 1,066 1,021
Other interest income H b B A 22,124 17,695
Forfeiture of deposits (note) BWET® (M5 13,430 3,756
Miscellaneous income BB A 17,943 19,915
59,144 47,619

Other losses Hihgs1E
Impairment loss on trade receivables B2 REWHIEREEE (5,757) —
Total Paker] 53,387 47,619
Note: The amount represents forfeiture of deposits of HK$13,430,000 Wik: ZeBEARBE-Z—NF+=—A=1+—
(2018: HK$3,756,000) upon the termination of the sale and BIEFERIEHEMEZ EEHZERIZK
purchase agreement on sales of properties during the year ended 2 5]% 5 %13,430,0007T (ZZ — )\ F : Bk

31 December 2019. 3,756,0007T) °
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The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resource allocation to the Group’s business
components and for their review of the performance of those
components. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group commenced the business in mini-storage by acquisition
and rental of industrial buildings in Hong Kong, and it is
considered as a new operating and reportable segment by the
executive directors. For segment reporting, the mini-storage
business have been aggregated with property leasing segment
into a single reportable segment because the mini-storage
operation represents rental of space to third parties. The
business components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined following
the Group’s major business lines.

The Group has identified the following operating and
reportable segments:

Property : Development of residential,
development commercial and industrial
properties

Property leasing Property rental including signage
rental and rental under mini-

storage operation

Building : Provision of building
management management, property repairs
and other and maintenance services
services

Each of these operating and reportable segments is managed
separately as each of the business lines requires different
resources as well as operating approaches.

Also, the Group engaged in properties assembly and sales of
properties business. There is no project under property
assembly business in both years. Thus, this is not constitute a
reportable segment during both years.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. NHEEH(E)
These operating and reportable segments are monitored and IhEEE R ZH D E 2 BEEROREK 2
strategic decisions are made on the basis of segment BERSBEEREE -

operating results.

Segment revenue and results SHEWERES
Building management and
Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
HEER MEHE BFEEREMRE SEEH

2019 2018 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
ce-ns G —z-nr REEEN -z—: ELEPEN -2/
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 LS HK$'000
ewrn EELSS swin EELEPN wwti ELESE iuin LR

Revenue Iy &

External customers IREP 180,230 417,247 532,305 540,040 21,337 23111 733,872 980,398
Inter-segments (note) &R () - 17 432 1,017 2,004 2,653 2,436 3,687
Segment revenue PEWRE 180,230 417,264 532,737 541,057 23,341 25764 736,308 984,085
Segment profits FERH 42,874 155,513 472,206 503,198 17,318 14,056 532,398 672,767

Certain other income and losses ETEMBA

kE#E 19,779 13,955
Certain administrative expenses ETIHER (88,535) (64,433)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARZ
g - 235,812
Net fair value loss on investment BENE /MEBRE
properties/properties transfer ATEBEFE (131,243) (101,018)
Finance costs BER AR (60,035) (37,815)
Profit before income tax expense BTGB R AR R 272,364 719,268
Note: Inter-segment sales are charged at mutual agreed terms. Miak: &9 EEEEREEHE 2 RRIER -
The operating and reportable segment results exclude finance LERERDBAEEITBRERENE
costs, net fair value loss on investment properties/properties WEYE  WEEBENTEBEFE B
transfer, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, certain other income BB AR 2= - BT EMBAREE -
and losses, certain administrative expenses and income tax ETITBRERRMESHAL -

expense.
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

8. SHEAHE)

SEEEREBR

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total
MEER MEHE BFEEREMRE SEEH
2018 2019 2018 2018 2018
“Z N\ Ry Rl T \F —Z)N\E —Z-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT LA EETn B SEAl ESTT ECLEwAN EETT R
Segment assets DEEE 1,302,330 1,288,491 21,396,340 20,699,144 24,089 23,933 22,722,759 22,011,568
Certain property, plant and ET0E BRRRE

equipment 1,801 2,612
Short-term bank deposits RHEAER 250,000 575,000
Certain cash and cash equivalents #TRERREEZEY 222,056 115,184
Assets classified asheld forsale ~ PEABEZEE 420,000 420,000
Total assets EEBE 23,616,616 23,124,364
Segment liabilities PEER 424,754 438,405 286,230 253,485 9,068 10,180 720,052 702,070
Certain other payables ETEMERTE 60,459 72,374
Borrowings BE 1,944,063 1,562,788
Provision for income tax FrEH G 165,647 213,381
Deferred tax liabilities ERHEEE 120,859 117,632
Total liabilities afEpR 3,011,080 2,668,145

THREEBREMEEE ETEREETY
X BEERFE BRERTER BHTR
EMBRCFEBMARDBERFEZEE -

Segment assets include all assets other than certain property,
plant and equipment, short-term bank deposits, certain cash
and cash equivalents and assets classified as held for sale.

NHEABREMERE  ETEEETH
N SIR - IS EE  BETHEARE
REE -

Segment liabilities comprise all liabilities other than certain
other payables, provision for income tax, deferred tax liabilities
and borrowings.
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SEHEHE)
Hiv 5 EHEH

Building management and

Property development Property leasing other services Segment total Unallocated Total
NELR WERE BFERREMRE HE@I B At
2018 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2019 2018
—2-)\§ “2-)\F R EVEN —3-\F = IyEN —T-\F “2- )\ EEVEN —3-)\F
HK$'000 [EIEL0) HK$'000 ERGLGHINN  HKS'000 BRGLEUIIN  HK$'000 HK$'000 ERGLEHINN  HK$000
AETT WL BETT WLt FETT LAl BETL BETT BLEwl FETT
Amounts included in the FAS BTG E
measure of segment profit: ZRE:
Interest income from financial assets X AFEAEH 2
at FVTPL SHRAEZHBMA 4581 503 - - - - 4,581 503 - - 4,581 528
Interest income from loan REEHF S IMA
receivables 1,066 1,021 - - - - 1,066 1,021 - - 1,066 1,021
Other interest income EpF8RA 1,100 1,588 663 271 582 286 2,345 4,585 19,779 13,110 22,124 17,695
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (¥ FEEZENE N/A NA N/A N/A NA N/A
(469) TR (2,735) T (106) TER (3,310) THA - T (3,310) TR
Depreciation of other property, plant  Eft#1% - BER
and equipment REnE (103) (139) (4,437) (2848 - - (4,540) (2.987) (811) - (5,351) (2.987)
Amortisation of properties held for ~ % EMEHH N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
development TR (546) AR - TR - TR (546) AR - TER (546)
Impaiment loss on trade BHRENFERE
recelvables BB - - (5,732) - (25) - (5,757) - - - (5,757) -
Forfeiture of deposits BliTE 13,430 3,756 - - - - 13,430 3,756 - - 13,430 3,756
Amounts included in the FASEEEGE
measure of segment assets: 25
Additions to non-curent segment & IR IERE
assets during the year PEEE 4 218 890,536 1,227,060 - - 890,610 1,227,338 - - 890,610 1,227,338
Geographical information =& H

The Group’s revenue from external customers and its non-
current assets (other than financial instruments) are divided into

AEBZIREPY R EFRBE E (B
BT EERSN 73 AN 4 8

the following geographical areas:

Revenue from
external customers

Non-current assets

VR E B 23 ERBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
=B Rl — T \F bRy Rl — T\
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT AT T BETRT AT T

Principal markets EEWHS

— Hong Kong (domicile) — &8 GEftib) 560,780 729,432 21,334,673 20,632,663
— the PRC — 173,092 250,966 14,045 14,649
733,872 980,398 21,348,718 20,647,312
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8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 8. NHEEH(E)
The geographical location of customers is based on the BEREZIBMEDERZMN REER
location at which the goods/services were delivered/rendered. FRTG < HBIEETE - SEMBE E 2R H
The geographical location of non-current assets is based on TEREEZEREM -
the physical location of the assets.
Information about major customer FHREXEEFRZEH
Revenue from customer of the corresponding years AT AEBFEERERASEEEEERI0%
contributing over 10% of the total revenue of the Group is as WamBBE s BRE 7 a
follows:
Year ended
BEUTHEHILEEE
31/12/2019 31/12/2018
—E-E —E-N\F
+T=A=+—H0 ik d=
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR BT T
Customer A EPA
— Property leasing —WEHRE 90,678 119,545
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BIEREF
2019 2018
—B-hE —ZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT
Interest expenses on: LT&IEZFEZIT:
Borrowings EP= 57,201 37,815
Rental deposit received BEeEE 2,525 —
Lease liabilities HEaE 309 —

60,035 37,815
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. B P 4% %i B4 32 A it F1

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after charging/

BR P15 B B 2 s R E B (GEA) T3

(crediting): E=
2019 2018
=t B - —E-N\E
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETRT BT T
Amortisation of properties held for Ry (M EE19) N/A
development (note 19) E B 546
Auditor's remuneration % B AT BN & 3,350 3,260
Cost of completed properties held for BRAERAI ZEEKGE
sale recognised as expenses S EJDN 115,499 246,226
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i FA#E & 2= 47 & (KT 5E18) N/A
(note 18) 3,310 i A
Depreciation of other property, plantand ~ H ¥ - BELKETE
equipment (note 18) (Mf7E18) 5,351 2,987
Employee compensation expense EERMHZ (BRESFHE
(including Directors’ remuneration and K TE BB R AS) (T 5E12)
defined contribution cost) (note 12) 126,844 131,507
Minimum operating lease charges RELERES N N/A
FER 1,277
Rentals in respect of short-term leases EHAEREEERE N/A
and low-valued leases e 680 T iE A
Gross rental income from investment WEMERSWA B
properties (532,305) (540,040)
Less: Direct operating expense arising BEEHSBRAZEE
from investment properties that VMEMEEERE
generated rental income LT 29,167 29,234
Less: Direct operating expense arising W AREARSWAZKRE
from investment properties that VMEMEEZEE
did not generate rental income L 192 268
(502,946) (510,538)

9
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N EEREREEEZNE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments (@ EEW£
The emoluments paid or payable to the Directors were ENRENESMESIT:
as follows:
Retirement
Performance benefits
Salaries and related scheme
Fee allowances bonuses contributions Total
BHEH
HweE HeREE REAMEREL SRR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BETT EETR EETT EETR
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-F-1%
+-A=+-BLEE
Executive directors BTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace Belkat 120 5,652 5,161 18 10,951
Ms. Chan Wai Ling BEZNE 120 4,320 4,361 18 8819
Mr. Tse Wai Hang (appointed on HEGLERZZ-NE
1 September 2019)* NA—BEZME)" 40 2,006 170 18 2,234
Independent non-executive directors BIkHTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang R B B 5 178 - - - 178
Mr. Pao Ping Wing BmEEE 164 - - - 164
Mr. Ng Chi Keung RERELE 172 - - - 172
794 11,978 9,692 54 22,518
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-E-0\f¥
+ZRA=+-HLEE
Executive directors BTES
Madam Foo Kam Chu Grace BeRRt 50 5,520 9,203 18 14791
Ms. Chan Wai Ling BEZ/NE 50 4176 8,403 18 12,647
Mr. Kong Siu Man Kenny (resigned on BAREEM=T-\F
29 August 2018) NAZHABEE) 33 2,001 - 12 2136
Independent non-executive directors BILFRTES
Mr. Chan Kai Nang BR B AE S 173 - - - 173
Mr. Pao Ping Wing el E R 150 - - - 150
Mr. Ng Chi Keung RERELE 150 - - - 150
606 11,787 17,606 48 30,047
* Include remuneration before the appointment * B 15 1 a0 A B <
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as Directors.

Certain executive Directors are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined in accordance with the
performance of the Group.

There is no chief executive appointed for both years.

There were no arrangements under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
year (2018: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year included three (2018: three)
Directors, whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented above. The emoluments paid to the
remaining two (2018: two) individuals during the year are
as follows:

EEREREEEZNS (&)

(a)

(b)

EEMNE (&)
EIATEEHE IR BEFEELAR
A RAKEEHEZ REMST - £
BYBTESTHES IR RFRELE
BEEMXAT -

ETHTESHREINERAS
BRIRETE AL~

1 F [ 19 B RAETTERAREL

FAMBEMLHESESATRILR
RAFBRREMHH (=T —N\F:
&) o

AfisEHRAL

REE AEBAUSZEHALTEE
ZHR(CE)N\F ZR)EF - BEZ
& RERP Lt 2 DT o FREERM
Z(ZE-N\F:MB)ALTZHE W
T

2019 2018
—¥-NE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ST
Basic salaries, bonuses and other HEAFHE ek

benefits E {th 18 7 7,398 6,781
Performance-related bonuses KRIRMBREA 5,444 8,203

Pension costs — defined contribution iRk 4 BX 7K — & £ {4 3K
plan & &1 18 18
12,860 15,002
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11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 1. ESEREREEEZM(E)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) AfimEHALE)
The emoluments of the remaining two (2018: two) E#MBCE—NFE - WMB)ALZ
individuals fell within the following bands: B < 5 48 Bl a0

Number of individuals

A
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 7 #3,500,0017T —
% #4,000,0007T - ’
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000 7 #4,500,0017T —
7 5,000,0007T 1 —
HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000 7 #7,500,0017T —
75 #8,000,0007T 1 —
HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 7 #11,000,0017C —
75 #11,500,0007T - 1
No emoluments were paid by the Group to the Directors BEZZ—NEER=ZFT—N\F+=A
or any of five highest paid individuals as an inducement =T —BHIEMEFESSF  AEEH
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for ERESNANERHFALERN
loss of office and no Director waived or agreed to waive THME - ERREENAREER
any emoluments during each of the two years ended 31 RIMAREE R kB 2 m
December 2019 and 2018. B BfimEEHRPRABEREEM
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12. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 12. EERIFEZN(BEEENE)

(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

2019 2018
—E-hE —T—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT IT BT T

Salaries and wages (including Directors’ FekIBEBEEEEMS)
remuneration) and bonus MIEAT 120,694 125,646

Pension costs — defined contribution BRI A—EBEHEREE
plans (note) (M 3E) 3,670 3,487
Staff welfare BT &R 2,480 2,374
126,844 131,507

Note: B o

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan under
the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in the PRC are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group incurred employee
compensation expenses of HK$41,171,000 (2018: HK$41,220,000)
included in the above employee benefit expense, which is employed on
behalf of the third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided building
management services. Such expenses are set-off with other income from
building management services received by the Group.

AEBERERIEAES (RES)HBIEH - A
HFASARSNARSHE 2 ERRATHELK
RUEFHE - HEDRERRAFEZESL
S -

AEERPHEELEZMBARZEERLEE T
BREFE2RRERSFE - ZFWBRRAZE

REBE_ZT—hhF+_A=+—HLEER ' &~&
E 2 841,171,000 (—F —/\£ : 541,220,000
TEEFHHASEREE LEEBRANAIA &
AZENBARRHEFEERERAFE=FR
AXEESH IS o Mz RSB R
BFEBRBHAEHEM KA TIAEKE -
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13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 13. FIR#HHAEX
2019 2018
“B-hE —TN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR PR T
Hong Kong Profits Tax: BEMEH:
Tax for the year (note (a) REZFIAE M @) 46,574 56,904
Over-provision in prior years BAEFEBBEREE (8,959) (39,614)
37,615 17,290
PRC Enterprise Income Tax: B ERMEH:
Tax for the year (note (b)) NG JE B 18 (M 3 (o) 8,695 19,807
Under-provision in prior years BAFERBIRE - 1,188
8,695 20,995
PRC Land Appreciation Tax B £ i (B R
(“LAT”) (note (c)) (T3 B ER DK 5 () 4,938 6,428
Deferred tax charge (note 28) B E R T 2 (P 5%28) 3,441 9,701
54,689 54,414
Notes: P 5 -

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed The
Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which
introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was
signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable profit
for both years.

BN FER_ZE— N\F=ZA=-_+—HBIBE
COTEF B BN (EBETHR)IEHERNE
R HHAESHBAS - ERR=-T—N\
F=ZA-TNBETEE - YRBATIRE -
EFREBERAGFT  AEREREREEE
2EBLAEZFIFH KK A8.25% + MiBiA
BB B AERIIZ16.5%F REE o T
AR F 15 B i AR o AR A 2 B B R S 2 )
1B 1716.5% 2 B — B REFH -

EEZRAE BOUNSHMAHMERZE
B HRAVBBREAMSETEK - MESF
2B BB T IR b5 R FUR R R 8
£16.5%:T & °
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Notes: (Continued)

(0)

For the year ended 31 December 2019, all of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries were subject to PRC EIT rate of 25% (2018: 25%).

Under the Provisional Regulations of LAT (AR &£ A B H£ AN E 4 3 38
8 B 77 16 1)) effective on 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC on
LAT (Hr 2 A RSB & i 32 B B 17 15 51 B ie 4 BI)) ) effective
from 27 January 1995, all income from the sale or transfer of state-
owned land use rights, buildings and their attached facilities in the
PRC is subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% of the appreciation value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including borrowing costs
and property development expenditures in relation to the gains
arising from sales of properties in the PRC effective from 1 January
2004, with an exemption provided for property sales of ordinary
residential properties (1% % (¥ =) if their appreciation values do
not exceed 20% of the sum of the total deductible items.

s (&)

(®)

HE_Z-NAF+_A=+—HIEFE &K
SEMATREMEARZ25% (ZF—/\F:
25%) Z Bt RGN Bl TSR

BIER—NANMFE—B—BER 2(REA
REME -t EEHETEIRR—AN
AFEF—A-t+EtAEB (P EARKEANER
T IRERETIRAIEEMAD B =TT
ME—A—BAf EFREEEREEEEL
WiERE ZEDRERZEDZABRA
P BIR A FH30% E60% .2 REF KM L
IR E R o EEEE A E Y EATS RIE R
RAHFSE  EEERERREEMER
Bl Z2BEERARMEZERIE - HEB
EEFEZHRERERBBANKIBLBHE
20% * EBEEEEZYEHEN B LI
BEF -

5
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13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 13. I HBEAXZ(E)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting FIERAT ke afRe @R EFEY
profit at applicable tax rates is as follows: HERWT :
2019 2018
—E-hE —TN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT IT
Profit before income tax expense BrFr B B E X aiiaFl 272,364 719,268
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate =B B NEH B E16.5%
of 16.5% FECHIE 44,940 118,679
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TEMRzER 2B BT E 24,825 20,634
Tax effect of non-taxable income BHERR WA ZRIEZE (8,879) (52,411)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax ~ BB KR 2 T EE 18
losses (813) (1,308)
Over-provision in prior years BAFEBREEE (8,959) (38,426)
Provision for LAT for the year AL 0 IEE B E 4,938 6,428
Tax effect of LAT deductible for PRC EIT B ZETE I 2/l 108 -
WIREN L HETE (815) (1,061)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries £ Hfth BIARE (R 28 2 M B
operating in other jurisdictions RElZTRAME &8 2,956 5,483
Others Hfth (3,504) (3,604)
Income tax expense FEHAX 54,689 54,414
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14. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE, NET 14.
OF TAX
The amount of tax relating to each component of other
comprehensive expense can be summarised as follows:

2019
A%

Before tax Tax

B Bt A BIE
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT ERTT

Itemn that will not be reclassifiedto X FEHET & E#H

Htb2HEHAX  ORBIEE

BREMEEALS B 2B BT
T

2018
—ZEN\F
Net of tax Before tax Tax Net of tax
R BR Bt AT HIE BR 12
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTT BETT BETT BETT

profit or loss: SEEF B
Deficit on revaluation of buildings ~ EFE{4 18

(notes 18 and 28) (B £ 18%28) (692) 114 (578) (479) 79 (400)
ltem that may be reclassified WUTHEARGEIREELN

subsequently to profit or loss: SEEF B
Exchange loss on translation of BREGIEBIER

foreign operations B#E (11,118) - (11,118) (33,176) — (33,176)
Other comprehensive expense H it 2HE X (11,810) 114 (11,696) (33,655) 79 (33,576)
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15. DIVIDEND 15. K2
(a) Dividend attributable to the year (@ FTEEZER
2019 2018
—E-nE —E2-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETT BETF T
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.20 BEAAREER

(2018: HK$0.20) per share BH0.20L(ZE—N\F -

75 #0.207T) 56,662 56,662

Final dividend of HK$0.20 (2018: HK$0.20) per share for
the year to shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members on 4 June 2020 was proposed by
the Directors on 27 March 2020.

The final dividend proposed after the reporting date have

not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date.
(b) Dividend attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

(b)

Final dividend in respect of the previous
financial year of HK$0.20 per share
(2018: final dividend of HK$0.20 per

share) 0.207T)

BAFTRFE 2 KBERE
BRE0.207T (ZZE—/)\
FoREREERBE

BER-_ZT_TF=-—A_ttHES
MRZZE_ZFNAMNBRINRERE
2 B R R A AN EE AR H IR B A
7S #0200 (Z & — )\ : 7 #50.20
JT) °

REEAHREZZRABE T E

RBESEAHERRAE -

BEMBFEZRE  RERE
#t o R 32

2019 2018
—B-n% —T-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BETT
56,662 56,662




20194 #

sHBEMERAE = o4

16.

17.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the earnings per share of the Company is
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of HK$217,782,000 (2018: HK$671,592,000) and the
number of ordinary shares of 283,308,635 (2018:

2883,308,635) in issue during the year.

No diluted earnings per share for year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 was presented as there were no potential
ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31 December

2019 and 2018.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B3 G BB R RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

16. 9 Bz it 7

283,308,635/%) ©

AR BREANTEERFRALRRQA
%A A B AL F R s F % #217,782,0007T
(ZZ—/\#F : B#671,592,00070) K& 2217
5% A% Br H283,308,6350% (= & — )\ 4 :

BE_T—NFE_ZF—N\F+-_A=+—
BEFERMEEERE T EF @ tHTmH
REBEE-_Z-NER-_Z—/\F+-_A=+

—ALFREYHEEET2EEEBK -

17. HEYE

2019 2018
—E—-hE —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT T
Fair Value AEE
As at 1 January »—HA—H 20,439,237 19,497,324
Additions BN
— Purchase of units —EEEN 854,426 1,198,496
— Construction costs B 23,235 5,279
Transfer from properties for sale (note 20) % a5 E 9 (M 5E20) - 45,274
Transfer to assets held for sale (note 38) EBREFEEE(MIESs) - (420,000)
Purchase through acquisition of subsidiaries FRKENEARIBE
(note 40) (P ££40) - 214,052
Net fair value loss on investment properties HEYENTFEERFE (131,243) (100,431)
Net fair value loss on properties transfer MEEBRNFLEBIEFEHE - (587)
Exchange realignment GRS = (170)
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H 21,185,655 20,439,237

9
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The Group leases out commercial buildings, industrial
buildings and retail stores under operating leases with rentals
payable monthly. The leases typically run for an initial period of
one to six years, with unilateral rights to extend the lease
beyond initial period held by lessees only. Majority of the lease
contracts contain market review clauses in the event the lessee
exercises the option to extend. The leases of retail stores
contain minimum annual lease payment that are fixed over the
lease term and lease payment of certain leases of retail stores
are determined by the higher of 10% to 25% of the sale and the

monthly lease payment.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of
the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in the
respective functional currencies of group entities. The lease
contracts do not contain residual value guarantee and/or
lessee’s option to purchase the property at the end of lease

term.

All of the Group’s investment properties are measured using
the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at 31
December 2019 and 2018 by an independent qualified
professional valuer, Cushman & Wakefield Limited (“C&W”), on
market value basis which conforms with The Hong Kong

Institute of Surveyors Valuation Standard:

° The completed investment properties (whole block of
commercial building) are revalued by adopting income
capitalisation method, which involves certain estimates,
including capitalisation rates and reversionary rental

value;

° The completed investment properties (individual units
(including commercial, industrial and residential
properties) or ground floor retail properties) are revalued
based on direct comparison method, by reference to

market transactions of comparable properties; and

AEERBELEHAEHAMEREFT T
AERZERHE BEBASAIT - ZE
HE—WMBEHARE—Z=F A%
ANERETARVAEBEERERE - X
HHoBHBEMERFTIERT - AeFAHEA
TEERE ZTERANEEEERNEE
HABRENRESFRAENK MEEHE
HNETHENHENRALEEERET
BHEBNFI0O%E2ENHNE SEETE o

RE B R 5% 5 E % PR e NS
% REARAHEEYUKREEESAL
DREEWHE ZFHOLTESRRE
BEERKR SHABANREBERSBEZ
UE A Sy

AEBMERENEEUARTFEEXFE
WD BARFFTAREDE -

AEB o RENFHBYAERERMGE
R ERITARAR(BBERITIR_F—
NERZZT—N\F+ZA=1T—RHIZREFE
A EEE S EERT mEEEET
Eff:

o  CEMEREME(EREFERET)RA
WABROERER  EFFRERFE
AMetb X RBHEBEE2E T A

s CEMAREMEEANEM(BERD
X IXREEDR)KBTITEY
R)RBRERLERER  EHh2E
ALEMEZTSERS Rk
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. Investment properties under re-development were . ERREMERARREIRERE
revalued on the re-development basis by adopting the EEL - BEUADEFEREBENRE
residual method. The value is based on the re- £ - WINZEYERHERBREE
development potential of the properties as if these BERLIREREEK 5 ' KB
properties will be developed and completed in EREEHNRGFTERAKA(BE
accordance with the existing redevelopment proposal at A BXEBRH - BEKRA - A
the date of valuation and is determined by deducting the AR AR EREEERIEE
estimated total cost of the development, including costs HE BB EFE#E mEE -

of construction, professional fee, finance costs,
associated costs and an allowance of profit that duly
reflected developer’s risk associated with the
development from the gross development value.

In determining the fair values of the investment properties, the CEEHREMEZATER  AEEZRE
Group engages an independent qualified professional valuer to BYASERAXGEMETHE  BERE
perform the valuation. The management works with the HEVEERBEGHBEREE - REIRA
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the FEG 2 EE NG ERNREE - M
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair BREMERNFELEEAEE  AlmES
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the wEREREA o

fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

In relying on these valuations, the management has exercised PR (HER - BEEDEREAE -
judgement and are satisfied that the methods of valuation A= 9 PTER 4R 2 B 7 )R B i & W R L ER
adopted are appropriate and reflective of the current market BT ©

conditions.
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The carrying amount of the Group’s investment properties is a
level 3 fair value measurement. There were no investment
property transfers into or out of level 3 fair value measurement
during both years.

The following table gives information about how the fair values
of these investment properties are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used).

AEBRENE 2 KEE/SEIRAFE
AE-RMEFER LERKEVEEA
LEHER R FETE -

TR EBNAEERSRENE LA
T (R B2 45 PR 8 18 I ) 2
ap

Investment properties Interrelationship between
held by the Group in significant unobservable
the consolidated statement Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
of financial position 31 December 2019 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
FEERGEMBRAR RZB-hE ETEFRTHENEA
a2z RaNE TZAE+-HZAFEE HERAF TETTHREHR TEFTHERR2EE AFHEAEZEARR
HK$'000
BETT

Completed investment

properties

EERRENE

Completed investment properties 16,092,000 Income capitalisation ~ Reversionary rental value  HK$23 - HK$56 (2018: The higher the reversionary
(whole block of commercial (2018: 16,651,000) method HK$21 - HK$61) per month  rental value, the higher the
building) per square foot for fair value

upper-level office/
restaurants premises;
HK$78 - HK$1,164 (2018:
HK$80 - HK$1,277) per
month per square foot for
ground floor shops

BEERRENE 16,092,000 WAERE BHHE BERNE /EESH EEHELS  ATESR

(BEF£ET) (ZE-NF: BYAREABK2BTE
16,651,000 BB (ZE-N\F:
BBATEEEOIT)
wHETHREA
BT E B 1,164
(ZZ-NF: BB E
HBH1,27778)
Capitalisation rate 2.25% - 3.5% (2018: The higher the capitalisation
2.25% - 3.5%) rate, the lower the fair value
BRc % 2.25%%3.5% BRI EES A TELE
(ZZ—N\F:225%
Z3.5%)

Completed investment properties 2,373,655 Direct comparison Adjustment to price per  +/~20% (2018: +/-20%) The higher the quality of
(individual units (including (2018: 3,333,237) method square foot in relation properties with reference to
commercial, industrial and to quality of properties comparables, the higher the
residential properties) or ground (e.g. location, size, level fair value
floor retail properties) and condition with

reference to
comparables of the
properties)

BERRRENE 2,373,655 BERLRE RMELE(WLBAL  +/-20% 2RALENECEERS -
(EREf(nEms ITERE  (C2-NF: BMEZME - (ZZ—N\F : +/-20%) ATEHES
ENE)IHTEENE) 3,333,237) KN BERAMR) A

EETHRER
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Significant

Range of significant

Interrelationship between
significant unobservable
input(s) and fair value

of financial position 31 December 2019 technique(s) unobservable input(s)  unobservable inputs measurement
FEEARGEMBRAR RZB-1#E TEFTHREHRA
MRz RENE TZRAE+—-HZAFE EEEH TEFTHEHRE TEFTHEYRZEE AFEHAEZIIAMG
HK$'000
BETT
Investment properties under re-development
ERRENE
Investment properties under 2,720,000 Residual method Price per square foot HK$22,000 - HK$23,300 per  The higher the price per square
re-development (2018: 455,000) square foot for office foot, the higher the fair value
premises
(2018: HK$26,000 per
square foot for residential
premises);
HK$27,000 - HK$33,000
(2018: HK$27,000 -
HK$65,000) per square
foot for retail properties
ERRENE 2,720,000* Hedx BEARER RAENEFIARERE  BIFRERES 2TE
(ZF— )\ : 455,000) 22000 B 23300 HE
(CB-N\F EEYES
7R % %26,0007T) ;
TENEFIAR
127,000 2
7 #33,0007C
(ZE-N\E:
# 827,000 2
7 %65,0007T)

Estimated construction HK$3,600 - HK$3,900 (2018 The higher the estimated
and other professional HK$4,650) per square foot construction and other
costs to completion professional costs, the lower

the fair value

R THAERER  BFHREKI600T R REREBEERA
Hit ZEMAK EHH3,000T W AFEBE

(ZE-N\E:
5 #4,6507T)

Estimated profit margin 10% - 15% (2018 15%) The higher estimated profit
required to hold and margin, the lower the fair
develop the investment value
properties to
completion

BERBERREMEET 10%Z15% e fEEss  AVE
g A R b (ZF—N\F : 15%) B

* During the year ended 31 December 2019, a building with fair value * HE_T-—NF+-A=1T—BLFE —

of HK$1,066,550,000 as at 31 December 2018 has changed the
valuation technique from direct comparison method to residual
method during the year ended 31 December 2019 due to the
additional premises acquired in the building and the management’s
decision on the usage of the building. The fair value of this building
is HK$2,010,000,000 as at 31 December 2019.

BRR-Z-N\F+-A=+—HAQXFELE

#1,066,550,000Tc 2 EFERBE=T— 1
FH+_A=T—BLFEHHERNHER
LB AT ARGE  WITHRZEFA
B EINDEUAREEBERZIEFTZ
AREHZREMB - R=T—hE+=A
=t+t-HB UWREFZAFEAEBE
2,010,000,0007T °
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17. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17. IEWME(E)

There were no changes to the valuation techniques for the BRIA LRI FAREYE 2 GERM
investment properties other than disclosed above during the W EEE o

year.

The fair value measurement is based on the above investment AREEFEDNERRBREABEDNE &SR
properties’ highest and best use. The fair values of certain BERSZ  c BETREVMEZATFEELH
investment properties have been adjusted to exclude prepaid B AR EM S E S ER SR AT
or accrued operating lease income to avoid double counting. MRBEETE

As at 31 December 2019, certain investment properties of the RZZE—NFF+A=+—H0 AKBEEH
Group with total carrying amount of HK$13,935,600,000 (2018: B T 48 {8 /& 78 #13,935,600,0007T (=& —
HK$14,361,450,000) were pledged to secure bank loans of J\EE : B#14,361,450,00070) 2 & TR E Y
HK$1,944,063,000 (2018: HK$1,562,788,000) (note 27). SRR DA JE B A B0 151,944,063,0007T (=

T — )\ : A 11,562,788,0007T) Z HRITEX
(Fft 5¥27) ©

e
18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18. Y% BERRE
Leasehold Leasehold  Fixture, fixtures Motor Leased
lands Buildings improvements and equipment vehicles properties
-1’

HETH B HENERE KERRE RE HENE E ]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ERTT EETT ERTT EETT ERTT EETT AT
Opening net carrying amount FOEAZE 64,168 39,378 20,596 1,531 1,545 - 127,218
Adjustments upon the application of & A B i &£

HKFRS 16 165k 2 HE 17,305 - - - - 5,822 23,127
Additions 5 - - 5,101 74 - 7,774 12,949
Deficit on revaluation (note 14) Gyt l{sal) - (692) - - - - (692)
Depreciation E (551) (908) (3,178) (924) (259) (2,841) (8,661)
Exchange realignment EHAE (219) - - (3) (U - (229)
Closing net carrying amount FRERFE 80,703 37,778 22,519 678 1,279 10,755 153,712
As at 31 December 2019 R-¥-1&
+ZA=+-8

Cost/Valuation KA/ fE 87,556 37,778 40,800 13,107 3,866 13,596 196,703
Accumulated depreciation BHTE (6,853) - (18,281) (12,429) (2,587) (2,841) (42,991)
Net carrying amount REFE 80,703 37,778 22,519 678 1,279 10,755 153,712
Analysis of cost/valuation B&/fEESH
At cost BHA 87,556 - 40,800 13,107 3,866 13,596 158,925
At professional valuation REERE - 37,778 - - - = 37,778

87,556 37,778 40,800 13,107 3,866 13,596 196,703
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

18. M - B E K% i (&)

(Continued)
Furniture,
Leasehold Leasehold fixtures and Motor
lands Buildings improvements equipment vehicles Total
HE &G KB
HE L BF MEEE ES:] TE k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFTT L BT BETT BT BETT
Year ended 31 December 2018 H#E_-F—/\f
+-A=+—-BLEE
Opening net carrying amount FHREFE 64,254 40,779 100 1,21 1,116 107,460
Additions BN — — 22,127 410 1,026 23,563
Deficit on revaluation (note 14) ShEE(ME14) — (479) - — - (479)
Disposals HE - - - - (289) (289)
Depreciation wE (86) (922) (1,631) ({121) (227) (2,987)
Exchange realignment fE 5 AR - — — 31 81) (50)
Closing net carrying amount FHREMFE 64,168 39,378 20,596 1,531 1,545 127,218
As at 31 December 2018 R-F-N\%
+=A=+-8
Cost/Valuation B/ (B 65,028 39,378 35,699 13,036 3,873 157,014
Accumulated depreciation ZEME (860) - (15,103) (11,505) (2,328) (29,796)
Net carrying amount REFE 64,168 39,378 20,596 1,531 1,545 127,218
Analysis of cost/valuation RAE/EES
At cost BEA 65,028 - 35,699 13,036 3,873 117,636
At professional valuation REEME — 39,378 - = - 39,378
65,028 39,378 35,699 13,036 3,873 157,014
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s buildings in Hong Kong
are stated at valuation of HK$37,778,000 (2018:
HK$39,378,000). The Group’s buildings were revalued by C&W
based on net replacement cost method. For the year ended 31
December 2019, a revaluation loss of approximately
HK$692,000 (2018: HK$479,000) had been recognised in

asset revaluation reserve.

As at 31 December 2019, leasehold land and buildings of the
Group with carrying amount of HK$100,350,000 (2018:
HK$102,026,000) were pledged to secure bank loans of the

Group (note 27).

The fair value of the Group’s owner-occupied buildings is a
level 3 recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of the

opening and closing fair value balance is provided below.

18. W% « W= RR#E (&)

R-B-AE+-A=+—8 XEERE
7 2 18 LAH B B #37,778,0007C (=& —
J\4E : 75 #39,378,0007T) 4l ff - NEE 2
BFHBERTRFEERNEER B
ECE-NFE+-A=t+-BHIFEEGHE
B A 692,000t (ZF — N F: B
479,00070) EFERA B E EH M ©

RZBE-NE+-A=1+—08 ~A&EFEH
AR 8 A7 100,350,000 (- — )\ £
75 1102,026,0007T) 2 H & L ih RIEF LA
BAEEZBITER(HE27) »

AEBERBFIAFER/FRIMLEER
FEME - FORFRRATFEEHRZHE
;I -

2019 2018
—E-NhE —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETRT BT IT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FHE S (FEIREE M
fair value) ~E) 39,378 40,779
Depreciation e (908) (922)
Deficit on revaluation of properties held EHFBEERAYE ZFIE
for own use (692) 479
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair FIREH(EIMEE M
value) NAE) 37,778 39,378
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In determining the fair values of the buildings, the Group CEEEFATER AEEEZRERT
engages an independent qualified professional valuer to EEAREEGHEMETHE EEEHEE
perform the valuation. The management works with the VAEEREEMEMEERFEIRATFER
independent qualified professional valuer to establish the EFEEE 2 HERMREIE - WRED
appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for level 3 fair ENFEHEEALSY  BEREEHRE
value measurement. Where there is a material change in the KERE °

fair value of the investment properties, the causes of the
fluctuations will be reported to the Directors.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’ NEEFENER LMY EZES RRE
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual Az HEERARTEZR-

use.

The following table gives information about how the fair values TR ERNAEEZEETATEGE
of these buildings are determined (in particular, the valuation Bl 2 BT 68 FRf B R 1l & U ) 2 B # o

techniques and inputs used).

Interrelationship between

Building significant unobservable
held by the Group measured Fair value as at Valuation Significant Range of significant input(s) and fair value
at revaluation model 31 December 2019 technique(s) unobservable input(s) unobservable inputs measurement
RZB-1¥
AREBFRER +=-A=+-H FETTHEHERE
BEHEZETF ZAFE HEKHE TETTHREHRE TETTHREHRBEE AFEFAEZEAMG
HK$'000
BETT
Owner-occupied buildings 37,778 (2018: 39,378) Net replacement cost  Building replacement cost HK$4,300 per square feet The higher the building
per square feet (2018: HK$4,300) (note) replacement cost per feet

with reference to
comparables, the higher

the fair value
BREF T8 (ZE-N\F:  FEEKR BYFREFEEXR BYFRAE®A00L(ZF LBILENEZERETF
39,378) —N\E: E%4,3007) FERAME  ATEH
(H3E) =
Note: Building replacement cost per square feet is determined with Wat: BFAREFEBEXATIREMS LA
reference to market comparables of constructing works, taking into ZRETRMETE  EPstkAE  LEMN
account of use, location and other individual factors such as total MBEEERBEYENSHMEARHEE -

floor level and type of structure.
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
The Group as leasee

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

18. W% « BERRE(E)

AEEEHBEREA
ERREEEGIAME BERERE)

equipment)
Leasehold Leased
land properties Total
HEtw HEYmE M
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
EBETR BETR EETR
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-AF—H—H 17,305 5,822 23,127
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+-—A=+—8 16,617 10,755 27,372
For the year ended 31 December & ZEZE_-T— N4
2019 TZA=+—RILLFE
Depreciation charge TEMXZ (469) (2,841) (3,310)
Additions R - 7,774 7,774
Exchange realignment & X & (219) - (219)
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRTLERE - (2,718) (2,718)
For both years, the Group leases various commercial and RABREERE AEBEBEETREERLIE

industrial premises for its operations. Lease contracts are
entered into for fixed term of three to four years, but may have
extension options as described below. In determining the lease
term and assessing the length of the non-cancellable period,
the Group applies the definition of a contract and determines

FH -

the period for which the contract is enforceable.

MEAMEEE - MOU=ZZWNF 2 EEF
HARTSZ - MER N T X P S A IR 124 -
REEEE RGN FRE A&
BEBANZERLEEANBRINITZ
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The Group has extension options in a number of leases for
commercial and industrial premises. These are used to
maximise operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets
used in the Group’s operations. The majority of extension
options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
respective lessors. The Group assesses at lease
commencement date whether it is reasonably certain to
exercise the extension options. The potential exposures to
these future lease payments for extension options in which the
Group is not reasonably certain to exercise:

AEERETREARERIXZMENEE
THRETREEE RFEBERADE
ERMASEHEERKLLEMANEELY
BERM - IR EREZEETR
AEBETEM AT RHEREE S EAITE
AEEREERGARFIEREEEST
RRERIEFERE - AEEIW REERETTEZ
FRREBEROARAREBENRZBEY

ar
2

Lease liabilities Potential future
recognised as lease payments
at 31 December notincluded in
2019 lease liabilities

NRZT—h&E RetAHE
+=-HA=+—H BEMNEE
ERHWEEEE RIRAE R
(undiscounted)
(RHTIR)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT I BT
Commercial and industrial premises HMENMNITEYE
— Hong Kong — BB 11,271 32,329

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not
exercise any extension options.

In addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option upon the occurrence of
either a significant event or a significant change in
circumstances that is within the control of the lessee. During
the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no such triggering
event.

RBE-B—hEF=A=+—HLFE
458 3 417 4 R 1B -

SO  RBEEBREUHRBEREHRERE
BEHBRAEAMEENEER A& H
CEMEORENTELERERE REE
“TE-NFHA=t—BHLFE #$EE
BB RS -
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2018
—N&E
HK$'000
BT T

Year ended 31 December BE+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FUREFE 18,434
Amortisation 5y (546)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 5 B (583)
Closing net carrying amount FRIEEFE 17,305

As at 31 December nR+=-A=+-—H

Cost (DN 22,833
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (5,528)
Net carrying amount REFE 17,305

Properties held for development represents certain agricultural
lands situated in New Territories, Hong Kong and the PRC
under operating leases and are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Upon the application of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, the
properties held for development is reclassified to property,
plant and equipment. Details of the application of HKFRS 16
are disclosed in note 2.

FERMERLCEHETURETEHTAR
EP!Z =S TERERM  DRESFHARNRK
HREEHEH -

R=ZF—NF— )EJ HERAEBHBIRE
HAF16HE  FREVEETHIEEY
¥ BEEXK f%o}fﬁﬁi? B B 75 3R 5 2E
F165% 2 FE B R M a2k 58 o
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20. PROPERTIES FOR SALE

20. FHEYME

2019 2018

“B-hE —T)N\E

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETR PR T

Carrying amount as at 1 January R—A—BZEmEE 954,855 1,407,876

Additions PN 194,513 146,229

Disposals e (115,499) (246,226)

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 39) o £ B BB 2 &) (B 5E39) - (288,450)
Transfer to investment properties R E R EYEME17)

(note 17) = (45,274)
Exchange realignment & H (8,789) (19,300)
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZE®@E 1,025,080 954,855

2019 2018

—E-hE —E—)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

BETR PR T

Completed properties for sale BEKFEDE 448,306 146,898
Properties under development FERERYE

for sale 576,774 807,957
Carrying amount as at 31 December R+ A=+—HZE®BEE 1,025,080 954,855

As at 31 December 2019, properties for sale of R-ZE—NF+-A=+—H ZEWES

HK$552,482,000 (2018: HK$544,772,000) represent the
carrying amount of the properties expected to be completed
over one year from the end of the reporting period and the
remaining carrying amounts represent the properties to be
completed within one year from the end of the reporting period.

#552,482,000T(= & — )\ F: & ¥
544,772,0007T) £ T8 H 1§ 70 3R 45 H9 R B 5T
BE—FRIZMEZEERE  E£ER
EAEHENRRERRET —FARIZ
MEZREME -
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As at 31 December 2019, included in the completed properties
for sale was a joint operation project amounting to
HK$3,360,000 (2018: HK$7,217,000) to jointly develop a
property site for residential purpose located at 111 Lai Yin
Street and 2-12 Jones Street, Tai Hang, Hong Kong in which
the Group has a 20.24% equity interest. In 2014, the Directors
determined that the Group’s share of the completed units
would be put up for sale when completed and, accordingly,
reclassified its proportionate share of the interest in this
property development from investment properties under
construction to properties under development for sale. The
Group bears a proportionate share of the joint operation’s
assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses. The occupation
permit was released by the Buildings Department during the
year ended 31 December 2016. During the year ended 31
December 2019, the properties for sale under the joint
operation recorded a revenue of HK$7,138,000 (2018:
HK$19,754,000) and cost of properties for sale of
HK$5,994,000 (2018: HK$12,309,000).

R-B-AE+-A=+—H BERFE
Y5 A —T8 5 #B13,360,0007T (ZZE—/\
F B ET7.217,00000) < & EIHE - LA
AE—ELREBSANEEHIZNRLE
THI2E12SRIEFEER R 2 WEME - HA
REBIEH20.24% 2 IRHE - W=_Z—M4F -
EERTAEEDHZEEBKEMGRE
ERERE - Bt - AEEK RO RN
ZYERREEES  AEEREVES
NOBEFERETYE - AEBAER
LLAEEEEEBZEE  BE Wak
Y - BEFERHEE_ZT—A"F+-A=
+—HIEEERBEAELHFTE - REE
—E-NEFE+_A=t+—HILEEER 4%
X T 2R EY 815 W 5 #7,138,000
TT(ZF — )\ : % #19,754,0007T) & ¥ %
4 5 B 2808 #5,004,0007T (ZE — N\ : 6
#42,309,0007T) °
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/LOAN 21. B5 R EMEWERIE FEW

RECEIVABLES B
2019 2018
—B-hE ZZT—N\F
HK$°000 HK$’000
T IT BET T

Current assets: BB E -
Trade receivables 5 W FIA
— contract with customers —EPFAaH 8,017 8,947
— rental receivables —EWHE 2 19,266 13,332
Total trade receivables B EINFRIA AR 27,283 22,279
Less: Allowance for credit losses 1S B R ﬁ (5,834) (244)
Total trade receivables, net B o EW AR  F5E 21,449 22,035
Other receivables, utility deposits and HAab e RIE - DNHER

prepayment, net of provision for & RIBFIE - R

impairment loss B & 18 B 69,215 114,104
Loan receivables (Note) FEURE S (HRE) 4,919 5,053

74,134 119,157

Total trade and other receivables DEARDEECES M

categorised as current assets Hth fE W RIB 4258 95,583 141,192
Non-current assets: B EE
Loan receivables (Note) FEWE (M) 26,890 32,756

122,473 173,948
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As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts with RZZE—N\F—A—H RBREABYHBRS

customers under HKFRS 15 amounted to HK$7,837,000.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, based on invoice dates,
the ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of allowance
for credit losses, was the following:

R FESFIRERFP AL ZE S ERGIES
75 #7.837,0007T °
RNR_E—NFR_F—\EF+_A=+—H
RIEZEZEHE - féi%ﬁ’éuﬁz XRIEHBREEE
BREEE 2REDTESNWOT

2018

—)\4F

HK$'000

BT T

0-30 days 0E 30K 11,772 8,130
31-90 days 31E90K 6,176 9,385
91-180 days 91E180K 2,976 3,276
Over 180 days B iE180K 525 1,244
Total trade receivables, net BN IBEERE  FE 21,449 22,035

Normally, other than those property leasing rental receivables
which are secured by rental deposits, the Group does not
obtain collateral from other customers.

As at 31 December 2019, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$21,449,000 (2018: HK$22,035,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$3,501,000 (2018: HK$4,520,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default as
these debtors have a good business relationship with the
Group and recurring overdue records of these debtors with
satisfactory settlement history.

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade receivables directly.

—RME BABRSREERIZEWE
HERKESIN AERETEREMES
WEE M e

RZBE-—NF+-_A=+—H xEEzHE
SEWFBERBIENHRE AR 8K
T 48 {8 78 21,449,000 (& — \4F : 51
22,035,0007T) Z &S A o 18 Bl 4 R ep -
B #3,501,000C (= & — )\ F: & &
4,520,0007T) B HI90 Kk LA F - TN 4R
BEHN RARZEZEEBRALAEEGR
HEBBE MzSEEABNESARE
MBECEERHRIE 208k °

EEESRWFIBZ BREBEABRERC
8% 0 BRIEARKEE ML ZERIR A8
HBE - EZERT  BEBREEERN
B 5 MR IA R MH
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Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits for the year ended 31 December
2019 and 2018 are set out in note 41.2(b).

Note:

As at 31 December 2018, loan receivables included amounts of
HK$4,000,000 which were secured, interest-bearing at Prime Rate minus
2.5% per annum and repayable within 1 year from reporting date. The
repayment date of these loan receivables included amounts of
HK$4,000,000 was extended by one year during the year ended 31
December 2019. The remaining loan receivables included amounts of
HK$27,809,000 (2018: HK$33,809,000) which are secured, interest-
bearing at HK$ Best Lending Rate minus 2% to 2.5% per annum (2018:
2% to 2.5% per annum) for the first 36 months from the date of loan
drawdown and thereafter at the HK$ Best Lending Rate. The loans were
repayable in 216 to 360 monthly instalments (2018: 216 to 360 monthly
instalments) with the final instalment payable in year 2035 to 2048 (2018:
year 2035 to 2048). As at 31 December 2019, loan receivables of
HK$11,806,000 (2018: HK$12,939,000) could be early terminated by the
borrowers at the principal and accrued interest after 60 months after
drawndown date.

The current portion of HK$4,919,000 (2018: HK$5,053,000) which is
expected to be recovered within one year and classified as current assets
while the balance of HK$26,890,000 (2018: HK$32,756,000) classified as
non-current assets.

No loan receivables are past due as at 31 December 2019 and 2018. The
loan receivables are secured by second mortgage of the properties
located in Hong Kong. The Group is not permitted to sell or repledge the
properties in the absence of default by the borrower. There has not been
any significant changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loans
receivables. Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2019 and 2018 are set out in note 41.2(b).

BT NER T N\EFE+_A=1+—
Etif%%ﬁéuﬂzm < H fth jE W FRIE
A1 2 BB FE {718 8 A M 5E41.2(b) ©

=
oy

R-ZE—N\E+_A=+—8 BUEREEZS
& 754,000,000 2 A - BEAFREEE R
BRREBRFMRF2EZEFNRALE  WEARBRE
HE B —FREE - ;Z%ﬂguﬁzﬁmaﬁﬂim\
75 #4,000,0007T 2 K IE - HEEBHREBEE_T—
NE+ZRA=+—RALFEER—F - HBREKE
REIEZE A KB 27,809,000 (ZF—/)\F : 8
#33,809,0007T) 2 1B * BRASRIERABER - N2
HEZBHRE36EAARAEREREER R
2B E25 B(ZZT—N\F:2EE25E) 2 FF &5t
B HERBEREERBENERFE - BHEERD
216 2360 # (== —/\F : 2162360H) FAEE -
B — Hﬂﬁamfgﬁf‘fg_ﬁiiffﬂl)\¢<*

—N\E ZT=RFE_THN\F)IMF - R=FT—
NE+=—A=+—8 " %H&E,A%@%ﬂ,aoe,oomz
(ZZ—\#F : 5#12,939,0007T) 7] f & 7k A R 2 B
BHIFT60E Aig iz AE R BT F B IRE KL ©

TEHR — F AU E Z BN #7355 74 #4,919,0007T (=
T — )\ & : B #5,053,000) DB RBEE £
#8785 126,890,0007T (= & — )\ 4 : % #£32,756,000
TR BEARERBEE -

—NERT—NF+_A=+—HHES
%ﬁ%ﬁ ﬁ%ﬁ RIARL A B 7S 2 % 12 {F
T - ERALEEL  NEETAHEKEIR
M- -BRKERBEZEARZESELELM
BEAREH - HE_ZT-NEER=_FT—/\F+=A=
+— B IEFE 2 R E 5T B R M FE41.2() ©
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The financial assets at FVTPL referred as structured bank
deposits of HK$99,255,000 (2018: HK$63,977,000) are placed
with a bank in the PRC and contain embedded derivatives
which returns are determined by reference to the return of the
underlying portfolio of listed shares invested by the bank and
the duration of deposits placed. The deposits could be
withdrawn at the Group’s discretion and are subject to early
termination option of the issuing bank at the price of the
principal outstanding plus the return of underlying portfolio of
listing shares up to the date of withdrawal/early termination.
Annual return rate varies from annual rate of 2.31% to 3.75%
(2018: 2.81% to 4.20%), depending on the duration of the

deposits placed.

Structured bank deposits of HK$28,466,000 are placed with a
bank in the PRC with maturity of less than three months and
certain embedded derivative which return are determined by
reference of foreign exchange rate. The deposits are subject to
early termination option of the issue bank or by mutual
agreement as at 31 December 2018. Annual coupon rate
varies from 1.1% to 4.45%, depending on the actual foreign

exchange rate.

The structured bank deposits are reclassified to financial
assets at FVTPL because their contractual cash flows do not
represent solely the payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
are stated at fair values based on valuation provided by the
issuing bank. The fair value measurements are categorised to

Level 2.

BAEBEERTERZEAFTEFARR
2 B A EE B #599,255,0007T (T —/\4F :
785 #68,977,0007T) 17 LA AR B —fE 8R 1T -
TESHARNTETR  HER IR ER
1T E 2B LR (DA A B | R AT RE
HMEE ASBRMBRRER  mF
AT EITIRITRBEHEZIRE RATR
IFHBZ REEAS S MAR EmkHAE
AR EREIKL o FF EHRFEN
T231% B3.75% (Z & — \ F:281% &
420%) & BIEFRFEHAME o

45 18 18R 17 17 208 528,466,000 7T 17 1A
FER—MET FHBELR =@ B
SETHMANTAELER - HEIHK TR E I
EEXET BEFTRAIRZZE—N\F+
—A=tT—HARBTRITIEE S HEE
BERAIRLE BEZAEMNEN T11%2
4.45% % - BT ERRINEEEMIE °

MREBERITERZANRASREL I
TERENEAERREERSHNE - F
HERBERTEFRERDBRRAFER
ABmZUHEE -

RZE—NEFER_FT—N\F+_A=1+—H
BEATFEFABREZYHBEEREEITR
TREZGHEZRATFEYER - AFEFHE
DERER ©
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The cash and bank balances of the Group was summarised as
follows:

AEBZRE MRITHEBIMENT

2018

—E-N\F

HK$’000

BE T T

Restricted bank deposits ZREBITER 43,879 74,568
Short-term bank deposits with original REBABH=EAZ

maturity over three months RMHIRTTIER 250,000 575,000

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEED 307,211 186,238

Total cash and bank balances Re RRITHESBRERE 601,090 835,806

Restricted bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents earn
interest at floating rates based on the daily bank deposit rates.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, short-term bank deposits
with original maturity over three months were placed up till 1
year depending on the immediate cash requirement of the
Group, and earned fixed-rate interest at respective time
deposits rates ranging from 2.30% to 2.70% (2018: 2.00% to
2.90%) per annum.

Included in total cash and bank balances of the Group is
HK$94,975,000 (2018: HK$91,685,000) of bank balances
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) placed with banks in the
PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency. Under the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

The Directors considered that the fair value of the cash and
cash equivalents is not materially different from their carrying
amount.

XREIBOTFFAARBRERASFEYR
B8 RRITHE A XL F B RERERF S, o

R NER=F—N\FF+=A=1+—1 "
REBHBBH=ZEAZEHETHE
RERFHRRE—F  RIEAEEZ AR
BEBERME TERBRSEBZEHERF
A E2.30% E2.70% (—F — )\ F : 2.00% &
2.90%) it BY [& & F &= 2 K| 8. ©

AARNEERS RIRITERBBRETN
B % [ 4R 17 A& 2008 #694,975,0007T (=
T —)\4F : B ¥91,685,0007T) 2 ARE ([ A
REDGERITES - ARBIWIETER
HB 2 G  IRIEHE 2 INEE B G K&
HEE EELRNEEERT  AEEEE
KARBETINEER ZRITAAREH
HNEE o

E¥2H RERRSEENZATHRA
FEELREALR -
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23. RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/SHORT-
TERM BANK DEPOSITS/CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

In the course of business, certain bank accounts were opened
and held in the name of certain subsidiaries in form of trust on
behalf of third parties to whom these subsidiaries provided
building management services. As at the reporting date, those
bank balances held in form of trust on behalf of third parties
and were not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements of the Group amounted to HK$67,256,000 (2018:
HK$53,707,000).

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. ZRFIRITHER EHRITHE
®BRERREFEYE)

REFBREF  ETHBARINERER
F=F(HBARMEREEFERREZ
ADUERXARAEZEEFTESE THRTE
F o R¥ERE - 25 AEE%67,256,000
TT(=ZZ —/\F : B #53,707,00070) Z SR 1T
ERTDAEAFRARE=ZFFF  UER
REBZERAMIEHRERAER o

24. B RHMEFRIE

2019 2018

—E-hE —ZE-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

EETR BT T

Trade payables B 5T IA 17,358 20,977

Receipt in advance T8 Ug FR 1B 13,620 7,605
Deposits received on disposal of HENBRAR 2 EWIES

subsidiaries (note 38) (Bff3£38) 57,353 55,353

Rental deposits received BElHEeEe 156,450 173,362

Accruals on construction works EETIREFE 297,224 219,827

Advance lease payments B E R 5,195 —

Other accrued expenses and other HMEAERR
payables H fth B 3RIR 161,954 142,851
709,154 619,975

Trade payables had credit periods ranging from 30 to 90 days.
Based on invoice dates, the ageing analysis of trade payables
was the following:

BHRNFIAZEEHN FI0EIX - R
BERREH EHRNKEZIREINE
SIEA°R -

2019 2018

“B-hE —T)N\E

HK$’000 HK$'000

BETR ST T

0-30 days 0E30K 1,519 1,214
31-90 days 31E90k 1,263 106
Over 90 days B @0k 14,576 19,657
Total trade payables B S RN RIARE 17,358 20,977
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

25. ¥ AR

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
—B-hE —E-N\F
+=A=+-8 [EEGERE=
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR AT

Deposits received in advance associated B RTEE M AT 7 2 2

with pre-sale of properties for sale HEMEZERGTZ
situated in:
— Hong Kong — &5 12,271 20,436
— PRC — 47,815 134,033
60,086 154,469

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, deposits received in
advance received by Group for the disposal of properties are
expected to be completed and sold within one year from the
end of the reporting period.

AREBR-_ZE—NER_ZT—N\F+=-_A=
+—BRHEBERFEHRES —FERN
BITRHEZMEBRETE -

9
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 25. SHBE(E)
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINTAFEREESHABERR 2K
recognised in the current year relates to carried-forward meEARERNBTHRETZCRBANERR
contract liabilities and how much relates to performance HEzE5 -

obligations that were satisfied in prior periods.

Sales of Sales of
completed completed
properties for properties for
sale sale

For the year For the year
ended ended

31 December 31 December
2019 2018
SHEEER HEBEK
HEYE TEME
BECTAE EEEEIIS
+TZA=+—H el
i o ;- IEFE
HK$’000 HK$'000
EETR BT T

Revenue recognised that was included in st AF I AN ABHEHZ

the contract liabilities balance at the 2R =
beginning of the year 112,085 227,570
Revenue to be recognised from AARBITRABESTER

unsatisfied performance obligations Pl g 126,085 254,546
Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of TEEMREHNABESE 2 —RA KGR
contract liabilities recognised are as follows: I NE
The Group receives 10% to 30% of the contract amount as AEEERFPEZEEHEFRREN2
deposits from customers when they sign the sale and B Z10%Z30RIEATFEIE © Am » A&
purchase agreement. However, depending on market B A ge R TR ATV EEREFRME
conditions, the Group may offer customers a discount - AR ERFREERETIRNESE
compared to the listed sales price, provided that the THRREINRESRE - ZFE8H
customers agree to pay the balance of the consideration early EEBRMFEREHEANBREHNER B
while construction is still ongoing. The deposits result in EEPRGEERKFENE ZERIERL -

contract liabilities being recognised throughout the property
construction period until the customer obtains control of the
completed properties for sale.
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26. LEASE LIABILITIES

26. HE&ES

31 December

2019
—B-hE
+=-A=+—H
HK$’000
BETFIT
Lease liabilities payables EHEAE
Within one year —FA 4,473
With a period of more than one year but not more than two  — LA 1B B 38 ™ 4 B i
years 6,798
11,271
Less: amount due for settlement within 12 months shown & : 1218 AR B 25 E 5 &
under current liabilities EUR=R- g (4,473)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months shown under  #A121& B 1% I 8155 E %] A 3ER 8
non-current liabilities BEzeE 6,798

All lease liabilities were denominated in the functional

currencies of the relevant group entities.

AR ERES N ANEEER 2L
%EHE -
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27. BORROWINGS

27. &

2019 2018
ZE-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETRT BT T
Current liabilities mEAE
Bank loans — secured IRITER—FEA 213,005 1,067,765
Non-current liabilities FEmB AR
Bank loans — secured RITER— B EF 1,731,058 495,023
1,944,063 1,562,788
Carrying amount of bank loans repayable  RIEE R BEFTEHTETER
based on the scheduled repayment AEEER ZRITERER
dates set out in the loan agreements: H1A
Within one year —FR 63,105 371,065
More than one year, but not exceeding —FUEFEAEBBAMF
two years 59,665 21,065
More than two years, but not MEN BT BBRAF
exceeding five years 1,671,393 473,958
1,794,163 866,088
Carrying amount of bank loans that BIERERERBERGIR
contain a repayable on demand clause mEAE) BIREES Tz?z’;
(shown under current liabilities) but FrETEEERPHEREE
repayable based on the scheduled ZIRITEREEE
repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements:
Within one year —FRA 149,900 546,800
More than one year, but not exceeding —F U BB IBMRF
two years - 149,900
149,900 696,700
Total bank loans RITE R 1,944,063 1,562,788
Carrying amount of bank loans matured R—FRNB BB IEREKX
within one year or those contain a EEBERZIRITERZE
repayment on demand clause (shown HEGIRARESEE)
under current liabilities) (213,005) (1,067,765)
Amount shown under non-current FRBEEMIEE
liabilities 1,731,058 495,023
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27. BE(E)
RZE-—NEFERZE—N\FEF+ZA=+—
B SRITERTIUAREEREAELN B
14,035,950,0007C (= & — N\ F: & &
14,463,476,0007T) 2 & TR E W% A K Y
¥ BEKREBELAER  DRHREE
B 75 3R 2R BT 17 %218 o

27. BORROWINGS (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, bank loans are secured by
certain investment properties and property, plant and
equipment of the Group with a total carrying value of
approximately HK$14,035,950,000 (2018: HK$14,463,476,000) as
set out in notes 17 and 18 respectively to the consolidated
financial statements.

The analysis that shows the remaining contractual maturities of BRAEEBEZHRTENIBBEZ M
the Group’s borrowings is set out in note 41.2(c) to the B AR & B 1% R R Y 5E41.2(0) ©
consolidated financial statements.

The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings at the RBREBHAEBEE 2 ERMENT
reporting date were as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETR ok e e
Bank loans MITER
— HK$-denominated loans — BB Hong Kong HIBOR

Inter-bank +1.15% p.a. to
Offered Rate HIBOR+1.6% p.a.
(“HIBOR?”) BEBEE
+1.15% p.a. to B+ FF =
HIBOR+1.6% p.a. 115% EEH B
EERITEE [ Z 4 2
FRE(EEBRE +EF ZEA1.6%
HED +EF=E
115%EEFHE
EEE A

+5F F %1.6%




SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
f A 5 3k M RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

28. DEFERRED TAXATION 28. RIEHIIE
The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows: EERIRRE 2 &80T :
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-)N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
BETR AT TT
As at 1 January ®n—HA—H 117,532 107,886
Deferred taxation charged/(credited) to: RUATIEENER GTA)Z
iR FE R I -
— Profit or loss (note 13) — 1B = (W13 3,441 9,701
— Acquisition of assets (note 40) — U B8 & B (B 3%40) - 24
— Asset revaluation reserve (note 14) —EBEEMEE(HEE4) (114) (79)
As at 31 December R+—-—A=+—H 120,859 117,532
The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets ITARGAMBERNEEA Y TBRIE
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position HIBEABREAEUNRRAEERBEFEE
and the movements during the current and prior years: EE
Surplus on
revaluation
Accelerated of owner-
tax Fair value occupied
depreciation gain (note) properties Tax loss Total
mE AFEKE EffEH
HIERE (BHE) MERK BIEESE Cok )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

As at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\¥—-A—H 87,253 30,561 6,833 (16,761) 107,886
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss REEMB/GIA)(FF13)
(note 13) 26,793 (15,265) - (1,827) 9,701
Credit to other comprehensive FAEMZERA
income (note 14) (K 5E14) - - (79) - (79)
Acquisition of assets (note 40) Ur B & 2 (BT 7340) 24 - - - 24
As at 31 December 2018 R-Z2-NE+=A=+-8 114,070 15,296 6,754 (18,588) 117,532
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss RBEINB/ GIA)(F#13)
(note 13) 4,254 - - 813) 3,441
Credit to other comprehensive FAEMPERA
income (note 14) (K 5E14) - - (114) - (114)
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z-hF+-A=+-8 118,324 15,206 6,640 (19,401) 120,859
Note: The amount represented the taxable temporary difference arisen Wit: ZeBESERAEARIA S, REANL
from the fair value gain on properties upon the change of use from EATHE XK ERTHEEZE  AMEL
the purpose of earning rentals or/and for capitalisation to sale in the ANFERZMEEZ ERRGRKE=Z5  H
ordinary course of business which is then classified as properties B BEBEEME -

for sale.
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28. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 28. IREHIA (L)
As at 31 December 2019, the Group has aggregate amount of RZZE—NF+ZA=+—0 K~KEE#H
temporary differences associated with undistributed earnings HR BB R R R 9 K & K 2 A8 B R
of the PRC subsidiaries of approximately HK$99,210,000 BA A ER A5 1£99,210,0007 (ZZE—N\F : /B
(2018: HK$95,700,000) of which no deferred tax liabilities has #95,700,0007T) I EE RELEF B E(EF ©
been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been HRASBEEMZEFEMB AR REEK
recognised in respect of these differences because the Group RKAREERHZEMB AR N R R
is in a position to control the dividend policies of its TEERKRE MY ERZEEERRE
subsidiaries and the Directors considered that no dividend will EHRIEEE - At BEEESTERA
be declared by these subsidiaries in the foreseeable future. B gk B E o
Thus, such difference will not be reversed in the foreseeable
future.
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. g &
2019 2018
—B-AE —E-\&
Number of Number of
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
B2 E EETR Rin&E AT
Authorised: BT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 FREEBBI0TL
each TE R 5,000,000,000 500,000  5,000,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEIRAR:
As at 1 January and K—A—BK

31 December +ZA=+—H 283,308,635 28,331 283,308,635 28,331
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30. RESERVES

30. &

The Group x&
2019 2018
—E-hE —N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETIT BT IT
Share premium (note (a)) % 19 5 1B (Bt 5% (a)) 690,811 690,811
Capital redemption reserve (note (b)) & 7K FE 0] 4 (BT 5 (o)) 295 295
Asset revaluation reserve EEEHRHE 110 638
Retained profits R85 A 19,852,538 19,691,418
Exchange reserve bE 5 1 (39,720) (28,889)
Special reserve (note (c)) 5 B 5% 185 (B 7% () 1,848 1,848
Proposed final and special dividends BEARBEERR S
(note 15(a)) (B #E15(a) 56,662 56,662
20,562,544 20,412,833
Notes: B A -
@) Share premium represents the excess of consideration received @) B EEEMARBRESRERTRMAERE

over the par value of share issued.

(b) Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares, and such funds transferred from
retained profits.

(©) The special reserve of the Group represented the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital issued by the
Company in exchange for the nominal value of the share capital of
the subsidiaries pursuant to the Group’s re-organisation in 1997.

Details of the movements in the above reserves are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 160
to 163 to the consolidated financial statements.

ZER -

b EBEXAEEFEEEESKDEBROEEZ K
B 2EAeNEEAREER -

© ARBZFHIREREREAEE-NAALF
EARAREHITRAEE BB AR K
AEEZEHE -

i
160E163H xS Em BB K o

HBERGRAMBHRES
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Proposed
Capital final and
Share  redemption  Contributed Retained special
premium reserve surplus profits dividends Total
&% ERRHR
RpEE EEORE  ARER  REEN BIRE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB BETT BB BETT BB BBt
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note (c))
(B @) GEL) (R ()
Asat 1 January 2018 RZZ-\E-A-H 690,811 295 1,433,274 578,073 56,662 2,759,115
Profit for the year ERET - - - 832 - 832
Final dividend paid ERZE-t45XH
for 2017 (note 15(b) 1 5 (Bt 3 15(0)) - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividend BE-E-\ERH
for 2018 (note 15(a)) TR £ (i &£ 15(a) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2018 RIE-N¥
+ZA=1+-H 690,811 295 1,376,612 578,906 56,662 2,703,285
Profit for the year FREF - - - 1015 - 1015
Final dlvidend paid BRZE-\ERE
for 2018 (note 15(0) T & (i i 15(b) - - - - (56,662) (56,662)
Proposed final dividend BEZT-NEXRH
for 2019 note 15(a)) 1 5 (Fi & 15(a) - - (56,662) - 56,662 -
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-N%E
+ZA=1+-H 690,811 295 1,319,950 579,920 56,662 2,647,638
Notes: B =

Share premium represents the excess of consideration received
over the par value of shares issued.

Capital redemption reserve represents the amount equal to the par
value of the bought-back shares transferred.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange for all
the issued ordinary shares of Lucky Spark Limited (a subsidiary)
and the value of the net underlying assets of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus of the Company is available for
distribution to the shareholders under certain circumstances.
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a
distribution out of contribution surplus if:

(1) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities
as they become due; or

) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

g EEMERKESRERTROEE
ZER -

EABEOREBREEENCERERDBERDE
BEZHHE °

BN B R THHE B 1 TLAMRER Lucky Spark Limited
(—RMBRR) 2HEETEBR ZAAR
BT M EE LTI IEN B AR AEFE
EEZEE REBRE-—NN—FRFLA
(BMEE]) » EE THBRTARR ZHNE &
Al DR FARER o 2T @ WEBEEUTIBMR » &
AR T A A 28 R k2 AR B sk R
DK

(1)  TREHNINERTEXNERHANTZ
/% X

@ EAREZAZRERLINEER
ERTRARBRMEER 2B -

7



SOUNDWILL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R T B R R I R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — N F+=HA =+ —HI FZ

31. COMMITMENTS 31. KkiE
(@) Operating lease commitments (@) HEHERE
As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease RZE—N\F+—A=+—8 &K
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are 1B IS A BEE A8 & TH & R R SR FE
payable by the Group as follows: Nz&xEBHESHT:
2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
BT
Within one year —FR 2,415
More than one year, but not exceeding five years —FUFBETBBREF 4,392
6,807
As at 31 December 2018, the Group leases a number of RZE—N\F+ZA=+—8 &&
properties under operating leases. Leases are BEREBKEHENEZEYE - HE
negotiated for fixed terms ranged from one to four years. R—E2NFEEFHER - $iER
None of the leases includes contingent rentals. EREHAEE -
(b) Capital commitments (b) BERKIE
2019 2018
—B-AE —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR BT T
Contracted but not provided for: ELRT A M R B -
— Acquisition of investment — WEREYME
properties 17,641 54,059
All capital commitments are due in the coming twelve FIBERAEG R AR+ ZEARE

months. Ay o
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32. FUTURE OPERATING LEASE 32. RAREEHERH
ARRANGEMENTS
Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as follows: JEREEREBEENKEOT:
31/12/2019
—F-AE
+—-A=+—H
HK$’000
EBETR
Within one year —F KN 452,127
In the second year E_F 331,104
In the third year F=F 142,752
In the fourth year FMF 38,542
In the fifth year FRF 4,184
After five years AFE% 70
968,779
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZZE—N\FE+ZA=1+—H  x&ERIE
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating PR EHER IR EMERKRATU 2
leases in respect of investment properties as follows: IEBHEESHT:
2018
—\F
HK$'000
ok
Within one year —FR 404,692
More than one year, but not exceeding five years —FEFETBBRF 577,329
More than five years AFE F 4,272

986,293

9
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The Group leases its investment properties (note 17) under
operating lease arrangements which run for an initial period of
one to six years (2018: one to six years), with an option to
renew the lease terms at the expiry date or at dates as
mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
tenants. The terms of the leases also require the tenants to pay
rental deposits. The turnover-related rental income received
during the year amounted to HK$914,000 (2018:
HK$3,028,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided guarantees
amounted to HK$275,589,000 (2018: HK$337,389,000) to
banks with respect to mortgage loans procured by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties. Such guarantees will be
released by banks upon delivery of the properties to the
purchasers and completion of the registration of the mortgage
with the relevant mortgage registration authorities or
settlement of the outstanding mortgage loan. In the opinion of
the Directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee is not
significant.

AEBREBELLHELHEAERENE
(MFEE17) - MR —E R E (T \F:
—ERF) ARERI AR AEEES
BEAMAEATREZHPER - BOIEXK
MEEEABABEMEASES - FREW
LEBERR 2 S WA EEE914,0007T (=
= — \£F : 7 #3,028,0007T) °

R-B-AE+-A=+—8 KAEEHAK
SEVEERDNEZEZBERAEITRE
Y& 1R 78 #275,589,0007T (—F — \ & : B ¥
337,389,0007T) ° ZEERERWERNT
BRI RIERIREE DR IE R ZIRIEES
By ek 55 (B M R I8 B KB R SRTTRRBR ©
EEZRE UBERZAFELTERX -
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34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

34. KATZ2HFBFEIRAFTK

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E-N\&F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
k=3 HBETT BEET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets ERBHEE
Interests in subsidiaries iNCINE=EMNCIR £ 545,000 545,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW KB AR 2 FUIR 2,176,105 2,186,230
2,721,105 2,731,230
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H e U Z008 368 347
Tax recoverable AJ U = % 18 - 362
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkBFeEED 225 165
593 874
Current liabilities REE&RE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE B AR 2 FUE 45,305 25
Accrued expenses and other payables JE =T 2 F3 & £ FE (< A 327 463
Provision for income taxation Fris B & 1 97 —
45,729 488
Net current (liabilities)/assets BRB(EBE),BE (45,136) 386
Net assets BEE 2,675,969 2,731,616
EQUITY B
Share capital fi& A 29 28,331 28,331
Reserves 1 30 2,647,638 2,703,285
Total equity s 2,675,969 2,731,616
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35. RHMBASIZIER
R_E-—NFER_T—N\F+=-_A=+—H
ZTEMBATGEBHOT

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 are as follows:

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE/ held by the Company Principal activities
AT &H HEME EERE HREFFE FATMBRGEENIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2018
—E-N\F
Billion Glory Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
EHEXBRAA EiE BRRKEEIT NERE
Bond Rising Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBARREE REREBEZ 1T REER
3L
Castle Peak Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - — 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited development
FLBRENEBERDR  BE BERRAEEIT NEBR
Eternal Bonus Group British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited US$1 each
RRERRES RERAEEE 1T REER
Fortune Together Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
RBERRR EBHAREE MEREEZEITL REER
LRk
Golden Relay Company Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$100,000
RERRART BiE B AR 78 #100,0007T NERE
Goldwell Property Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Provision of building
Management Limited HK$100,000 management
service
SENMEEEFRAR BiE B R A8 #100,0007T REBFERRYE
Good Honest Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited HK$10,000
HAEXBERAT ) B AR B #10,0007 MER?



20194 #) S B AR A R A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B3 G BB R RE

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. RMIBAT 2k (&)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation BRTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT &HE EREL/ EERE HMEXHE FATFMBESERIL TEER
Directly Indirectly
E#& &
2018
“E-N\EF
Grape Trade Limited British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - — 100% 100%  Investment holding
US$1 each
EBERRES HEREBEEEITL REER
LRK
Harvest Fortune Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
ikt YN BiE BRBRTERIT NERE
Keep New Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
REBREBERAA EiE B&RAE 1,000 NEER
Lead Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
BREZBRAA EiE BRERAEEIT NERE
Maxrise Construction Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - —** 100%  Provision for
Engineering Limited construction,
repairs and
maintenance
services
RARETIRERAR B BERRAEEIT RERE BER
RERSG
One Storage Management Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Mini-storage
Company Limited
ZERTRERABRAR AR BRRAEEIT HiRE
Onwell Properties Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
REEEERAF EiE BRRAEEIT NERE
Power Huge Development Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
AEERERAF B BRRTEEIT NERE
Sharp Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Properties Limited HK$10,000 development

ERREHEBRAT BB BB A 10,0007 NEER
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35. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 35. RMIBAT 2k (&)

Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT ER HEMBL EERE HREXRFE FATMBHEGZERIL TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2018
“T)\fF
Sky Luck (China) Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
PREIGENES NG EiE BAIRAE 10,0007 NERE
Soundwill (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands 100,001,000 ordinary 100% 100% - —  Investment holding
shares of HK$1 each
EEHAREE 100,001,000 & & & & REER
BEITZERR
Soundwill Real Estate British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of - - 100% 100%  Investment holding
(China) Limited US$1 each
cHBHEFE AR LBHARES RERABEZ 1T REER
N BB
Soundwill Capital Limited Cayman Islands 1 ordinary share of - - = 100%  General partner of
US$1 each Eagle Fund | L.P.
HEHE REREBEZ 1T Eagle Fund | LP.Z
BB EREBA
Soundwill-ALPS Asset Cayman Islands 100 ordinary shares of - - = 51%  Investment manager
Management Limited US$1 each of Eagle Fund |
LP.
s 100 ERABXEITL Eagle Fund I LP.Z
Ldk B
Tang Lung Investment Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - — 100% 100%  Property investment
Properties Limited HK$1,000
BEREHWERRAF Bk BRRAEE1,0007T NERE
TCP Investment Properties Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property
Limited HK$1,000 development
Bk B&RAE%1,0007T NEER
Upper Wealthy Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 - - 100% 100%  Property investment
FHBBRRF Bk BERRAEEIT NERE
Wise Ease Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of - - 100% 100%  Property investment
HK$10,000
HEERARA EiE B&RAE%100007T NERE
World Firm Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$200 - - 100% 100%  Property investment

BHERAA e B RAE %2007 MERE
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Particulars of nominal

Place of value of issued share
incorporation/ capital/registered capital Percentage of interest
Name operation ERTRAEE held by the Company Principal activities
AT ER HRRI/BERE BREFHE FATMBEGZERIL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
2018 2018
—E-N\F —TN\F
Year Glory Limited Hong Kong Paid-up capital of HK$1 — 100% 100%  Property investment
THARRAR £ BRRABEIT NERE
HEMLUKERDEERE PR Registered capital of - 51% 51%  Property
BRAE" RMB25,000,000 development
H aMER NERE
AR #25,000,0007C
EECHRHERE PRC Registered capital of - 100% 100%  Property
BRAR" RMB30,000,000 development
H HMER MERE
AR #30,000,0007T
GEMBEARE PRC Registered capital of - 100% 100%  Property
BRAR RMB23,000,000 development
s HMER MEERE
AR #23,000,0007C
Notes: B 5

These subsidiaries were established in the PRC as limited liability
companies.

o

These subsidiaries were disposed/deregistrated during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the above list contains only the particulars of the
principal subsidiaries which materially affect the results or
assets of the Group.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

*
3

ZEMBARNPEKRLSBEREERT -

au

- ZEWNBRARIERBE—_Z-—NF+-_HA=
T—HIEFEAHE BT -

EERARATANBLR 12 585
RERBRTE M ERERERSYA
SEXEAAEAEALEN L ZENE
AR -

MEBARNFRBEZRITERNESES
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36. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 36. FEIERRIER
2019 2018
—E-hE T —)N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETR PR T
As at 1 January Hw—H—H 15,055 35,861
Distribution o = (12,345)
Profit for the year F Rk F) (107) (6,738)
Net exchange difference PE X =& F 5 (287) (1,723)
As at 31 December W+ZA=+—H 14,661 15,055
The non-controlling interests of subsidiaries that are not 100% SERASBHEA100% = 2 B A7 2 IE
owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial and TRESWRASTEAN 0 AL EFEE

therefore no further details are disclosed. — B
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. ABIALRS
The following transactions with related parties were, in the EERA TIRFRNEFABALTETZ

opinion of the Directors, carried out in the ordinary course of RETIRABEBARRET:

business during the year:

2019 2018
—E-hE —T)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETRT BT T
Short-lease/operating lease charges and 7 AR E M 2 A E ’f*% ¥
management fee in respect of office ZREHMEE e
premises situated in Guangzhou, the THERERE (i@ ))
PRC (note (a)) 532 738
Short-lease/rental expense for leasing HMEMRPREMNZEECZ
carparking spaces situated in ZEBHE e
Guangzhou, the PRC (note (b)) (M 7% (b)) 29 32
Rental income in respect of an office BE—ERAEDE
premise (note (c)) & U A BT EE©) 600 596
Management fee in respect of properties ~ F &% 2 &1 8 (M 7£(d))
for sale (note (d)) 734 667
Interest expense on unsecured revolving ~ EXBERERFHE 2
credit facility (note (e)) BB X (5 (e) - —
Notes: P =
@) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with @) AAR—RWBARIE—RHBARA ﬁ EFRER
a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive — BT ESR AR 2BERRFA
director of the Company have interests, for leasing a number of EnE - HE ylﬁihﬁ(‘*lﬁ)llZ%%f’E?ﬁ
premises situated in Guangzhou, the PRC for office purpose. ANERE
Total operating lease commitment in respect of the tenancy R=_ZF—\F+-_A=+—H8 HEHBHEZ
agreement was HK$158,000 as at 31 December 2018. 45 2 TH & R 48 K8 5 75 5158,0007T ©
(o)  For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, a subsidiary of ) BEZZ-NFER-TE-NF+ZA=+—

the Company entered into tenancy agreements with a related
company, in which a close family member of the Chairman and an
executive director of the Company have interests, for leasing three
(2018: three) carparking spaces situated in Guangzhou, the PRC.

Total operating lease commitment in respect of the tenancy
agreement was HK$16,000 as at 31 December 2018.

EIJJ:EE ARE—HKME AR E— K&
RA(ARBAERZABRE—BATESH
BHm) I EE Rz WEELRPEE
Mz =B (=F—\F: =E) (=L -

R-T-NE+-A=+—-R0 HAEBHEZ
45 4 70 B 7 HE 48 58 5 75 616,000 ©
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—AFFZA=+—HIFE

Notes: (Continued) B & - (48)
©) For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, a subsidiary of © REBEE_E—NER_ZT—-\F+_A=+
the Company entered into a tenancy agreement with a company, in —BHLEFE ARAFR—RWBARE-—RA
which the Chairman and her daughters have wholly-owned interest, A(RRARIERERELX R EHEAER)R L
for leasing an office premise in Soundwill Plaza for the period of THE T-AFNA—HEZZ
three years commencing from 1 September 2015 and expiring on NFENA=+—HLA A B #49,538 L E
31 August 2018 at a monthly rental of HK$49,538. On 1 September SRR L—EARAEME  BH=F - ®
2018, the subsidiary and related company agreed to extend the —TZ-NFNLA—HB ZWBARKBER
period of three years commencing on 1 September 2018 and ARE#FHRE T/ \FALA—BELER
expiring on 31 August 2021 at monthly rental of HK$50,000. =F 2 -_—F)N\A=+—HE® " A
Subsequently, the agreement was early terminated on 29 February T AP 50,0007 © BETE - iBER =T =
2020. BE_A-TABRELIL -
As at 31 December 2019, the total minimum lease payment —NFEF+ZA=1+—8"  BEAAG
receivables from the related company in respect of the tenancy HEMZ 2 ERSEERENREEORE
agreement is approximately HK$100,000 (2018: HK$1,600,000). #100,0007T (= & — J\ & : /8 #1,600,000
TT) °
(@) For the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, subsidiaries of @) REE_ZE-—NFRF-)N\F+ZA=T
the Company entered into property management agreements with —BILEE  RXAGHBARE —FKHALRR
a related company, in which the Chairman and an executive AIERER—BRTESHEER ZBERT
director of the Company have interests, for managing properties for RN YIEE R HE ABAEBMRF
sale situated in the PRC. ZIEEME -
©) On 1 May 2017, a related company in which the Chairman and an ©) RZZE—+tFRA—HB —KEARAER
executive Director of the Company have interests, has agreed to R—EBRTEEH AR BEARERE
provide an unsecured revolving credit facility for amount of MASEE—X2 BB AR HEKIRER
HK$150,000,000 to a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group with EFEE R EHEE150, ooo 00071 FEAA
maturity date on 30 April 2018. On 1 May 2018, the subsidiary and ZE-N\FONA=F+H RZZ—/\FHA
related company have agreed to extend the maturity date to 30 —H - ZHBA T&E%L TEH,‘%H%@J A
April 2019 and revised the interest rate to prime lending rate for AEREZE-Z—-NFMNA=+H " LHFH
loans in Hong Kong dollars from time to time less 2.0% per annum. KETRTRZBEEERZEREENEX
The facility was not renewed upon maturity date. There was no B2O0E - ZEMENREHAABRYESE -
interest expenses arising from this facility during both years as the ZERERMEFELEEENSHAEZ - 1t
unsecured revolving credit facilities were not utilised. TDHRZEERRBRERRERESA -
Key management personnel compensation: FEEREABHM:
2018
= —N\F
HK$'000
BT T
Basic salaries and other benefits EAFHe LHMmER 34,792 44,510
Pension costs — defined contribution RARESHRA — EREMER
plans Bl 72 66
34,864 44,576
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The assets and liabilities related to Lucky Way Holdings REZZBE-—NFELtATNAEBYE=F%

Investment Limited (“Lucky Way”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, have been presented as held for sale following
the signing of a sale and purchase agreement with an
independent third party to dispose of Lucky Way on 19 July
2018 with a cash consideration of HK$467,635,000. Lucky
Way is an investment holding company and holds the entire
issued share capital of a subsidiary which in turn holds a
property comprises a work site and a tenement building
located in Hong Kong (collectively the “Lucky Way Group”). As
at 31 December 2019, the Group received deposits of
HK$57,353,000 (2018: HK$55,353,000) from the purchasers
and included in “trade and other payable” line item.

The disposal of Lucky Way Group was completed in February
2020.

EBEE NI & KRB 514676350007
HEAEE2ENBAREAEEKRES
RARI((BADE  EHERAZEERARE
B2V ARFE BRARETERAR &
E—ENBRAR 22 BEEITRA  MiZ
WMEARAKERE —EYE ZVES
F—ETHE—iEEE(REEAEEE]) -
R-BE-AFE+-A=+—8 X~EERE
U Bi% 5 4 #57,353,0000T (—ZF—/)\4F .
75 #55,353,0007T) * WarA[E S &k HAibfE
ERIBEJEES -

i
|
i
EE
IfF
[l

BX °

In accordance with HKFRS 5, the assets relating to the Lucky RIBFAPBRELELFEST -  BEEAS
Way Group have been classified as held for sale in the CEEEREEVMBMRRARSBERRF
consolidated statement of financial position. The disposal does o WHEWIIFTEXEB R EEME -
not constitute a discontinued operation as it does not E TR B R IEEE 7 X5 o
represent a major line of business or geographical area of
operation.
2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
BT
Investment properties "EYE 420,000 420,000
Total assets classified as held for sale DERFECREE 420,000 420,000
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On 2 August 2018, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose of the entire equity interest in a wholly-owned
subsidiary, namely Real Benefit Group Limited (“Real Benefit”),
to an independent third party at an aggregate cash

RZZE—NFNAZH  NEBEIZ =R
—ZBUFE=ZFHEEEWE QT Real
Benefit Group Limited ([Real Benefit]) 2 &
EPAL #E - 4238 & K (B /% 530,100,000

consideration of HK$530,100,000. Real Benefit is an JC ° Real Benefit B BEE KR AR - FHA

investment holding company which in turn held a building
situated in Hong Kong (collectively the “Real Benefit Group”).
The disposal of Real Benefit Group was completed on 14

September 2018. The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of ZEBEMT

disposal were as follows:

R BB 2 — I F (4 T8 [Real Benefit £
& |) o Real BenefiteE 2 HEER=ZF—/\
FNATHBERTK - HEBARKLEER

HK$'000
P T
Net assets disposed of HEZFEE
Properties held for sale HEME 288,450
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FERT R RZM B AR FKIE (290,368)
(1,918)
Loan assignment Bz 290,368
Direct expenses in relation to disposal of subsidiaries AR HEH B AR 2 BEEHX 5,838
Gain on disposal of Real Benefit ! & Real Benefit 7 U 7 235,812
530,100
Total consideration wmRE
— satisfied by cash — AR eI 530,100
Net cash inflow arising from disposal of Real Benefit & Real Benefit e BIRFE £ 2 IR &R A
Group: HEE
Consideration received 2R E 530,100
Direct expenses HEAX (5,838)

524,262




20194 #

EMBLEMAERAT = 99

@)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 A IV R M SR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 Bl 2 = F — L F+=H=+—HIL FZ

In January 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Gigantic Power Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$151,524,000 from an independent
third party. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group’s strategy to invest in investment properties.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

@ RZZE—NEF—F AEER—2B
3 28 = 75 Ui B8 Gigantic Power Limited
Z100% ik #E - R & R E /B K
151,524,0007T ° ULIEUHE Th AN &= (Bl #2
SR EMEZRE—F D o

ERSTFHRBZA#MNEERAR

acquired in the transaction are as follows: ZRAFENT:

HK$’000

ok

Investment properties "EWHE 152,023
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A fE WGk IR 9

Tax recoverable A Y Bl F IR 141
Trade and other payables 5 K HAth fE 3R IE (649)
Net assets HEE 151,524
Total consideration satisfied by cash LIRS ERNZBRE 151,524

In January 2018, the Group also acquired 100% equity
interest in Luck Power (Hong Kong) Limited and Luck
Power Development Limited for an aggregated cash
consideration of HK$62,599,000 from another
independent third party. The acquisition was made as
part of the Group’s strategy to expand in mini-storage
business.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities

) RZZ2E—NF—A XEETRS—
% %8 31 % = J7 Y BB Luck Power (Hong
Kong) Limited }  Luck Power
Development Limited 2 100% B #
B REREK62,599,0007T ° Lt
BB AEEIERRIRE K2R

BE— 5 -

EZRSTREBZA#MNEERAR

acquired in the transactions are as follows: ZRAFENT

HK$’000

ok e

Investment properties "EWHE 62,029
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A fE Gk IR 615
Tax recoverable AT Y Bl F 1R 25
Trade and other payables 85 & HAth fE T FRIE (46)
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIBEAE (24)
Net assets FEE 62,599
Total consideration satisfied by cash LIRS EMNZBRE 62,599

1
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS M. BFEIR
411 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by M1 RBRERNEISZHBEERBER

category -3
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and REB 2 HBEERBERREBR
liabilities as recognised at the reporting dates are BRZEEBESBET :

categorised as follows:

2019 2018
—E—-NEFE —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BT
Financial assets MBEE
Financial assets at amortised BB P AR B BB
cost
— Trade receivables, net — B5EWIE - FH 21,449 22,035
— Other receivables and — HEfhEWHRE RS -
deposits, net F R 16,076 17,660
— Loan receivables — EWRER 31,809 37,809
— Restricted bank deposits — ZRAIBITFER 43,879 74,568
— Short-term bank deposits — HRITFER 250,000 575,000
— Cash and cash equivalents — e NIREEEY 307,211 186,238
Financial assets at FVTPL WATFEFABS ZHH%
BE 99,255 92,443
769,679 1,005,753
Financial liabilities MBER
At amortised cost i 3=
— Trade payables — B ENHIA (17,358) (20,977)
— Accrued expenses and — BRI B AR EMENFIE
other payables (615,628) (362,678)
— Borrowings, secured — B8 BHF (1,944,063) (1,562,788)
(2,577,049) (1,046,443)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values as at reporting date.

RSB - NSRBI IR
ZHBEERBBEZEAEEEAY
BEYEEAZR -
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The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and
market risk (foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk) in the normal course of business.
However, the Directors meet periodically to analyse and
formulate measures to manage the Group’s exposure to
the market risk.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies
on its risk management. As the Group’s exposure to the
market risk is kept to a minimum level, the Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging
purposes. The Group does not hold or issue derivative
financial instruments for trading purposes. The most
significant financial risks to which the Group is exposed
to are described below.

(a) Market risk

(i) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk on its variable-rate interest bearing
borrowings, loan receivables, restricted bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents. The
Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
on fixed-rate short-term bank deposits. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging
policy. However, the Group closely monitors its
loan portfolio and compares the interest rates
under loan agreements with existing banks against
new offers on borrowing rates from different banks
in the loan re-financing and negotiation process.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR arising
from the Group’s variable interest rate instruments.

AEERBEEEBAZEERR R
BE T E R &SRR OMNER K
A R S A AR R R) o AT -
EETHARgZ 0T RHIE R RN
ERAKEMSHERAR

—RmE  ARERERREESIA
RT KRS - HRAKBATS SRR
RN &EKE - MAKREY ERA
ERTETAREMTAES P2
Ao REBI BB RBEITITERF
TAEERSZ - AKBMAX Z&
EXUHRABREINDAT -

(a) %5 /E g

0 FEEE
MEERERF TR ZRAFE
SR RERNT S REBM
HIREBZERARE - NEE
HEEFEMEE  BKRERK-
ERHRTEFARRES KIR
TEFEYME LIRS REN X
B\ o AL E IR ELE SRR HIER
TERMESAFENRER
AR SR B3R B 3 S A RGP ©
A AEETZNERHEER
e TEEXRBRERER
BREs BBERRITAILE
Rbpat < BE MK EARFRTT
REZHEBENRELL

AEEZHRESRENXRERT
BETREAAREEFBHNERT
BEAZEERERBKE -
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Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The policies to manage interest rate risk have been
followed by the Group since prior year are
considered to be effective.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the reporting date and had been
applied to variable-rate financial instruments at that
date. 25 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

The management considered that the Group’s
exposure to future cash flow risk on variable-rate
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank
deposits and bank deposits at escrow account as
a result of the changes of market interest rate is
insignificant and thus they are not included in the
sensitivity analysis.

At at 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a
general increase of 25 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variable held constant, would
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and decrease
the retained profits by approximately
HK$3,992,000 (2018: HK$3,183,000). There is no
impact on other components of consolidated
equity in response to the general increase in
interest rates. A decrease of 25 basis points in
interest rate would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above financial instruments
to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant. The sensitivity
results are mainly attributable to the Group’s
exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate loan
receivables and borrowings.

(a
(i)

45 g ()

R (&)
AEEBEFECKBEERN
KRR BE - BABBRR
BRAEM

T E R SE AT
BREDW T RR AR R E
BMELZMEE  AER
RZAZFHNEHBTE -
O5fEEF 2 EBIEEEEH A
KRB RESH MG N
E—F -/ \FF+=-_A=1+—H
LEFEEEABRELEELD
1

ERERR AEERKAMN
oA R E gt E B IR e IR
©EHEBEY  XRERITFERK
REERPZRITFRELH 2
BensRBRIAE X Eitt
WABEEBERRBRESTA -

R=ZE—NF+=—A=+—8"
TEFTA Efr] & BRIE T &
BT - (HETF R B RS 1L nos
EEZ - FRDRNEBE KRR
i A R R A AR B s A B
3,992,0007T (ZZF— \F : B
3,183,0007T) ° Fl|&E g i*jJD%LT
RE R 2 B A A KB
T2 REMEHMAE %%
%‘f 7[_ """"" %U Lv—‘/m /251.%5 TLH
B TREKERSE
MW&Z%; BRE DT E
TREARAEBLEIZEER
ﬁﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ%Zﬂ%ﬂ

)
AA
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Market risk (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value or
future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group mainly operates and invests in
Hong Kong and the PRC. No foreign currency risk
has been identified for the financial instruments as
they were denominated in the same currency as
the functional currencies of the group entities to
which these transactions relate.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk arising
from changes in fair value of structure bank
deposits which carried at FVTPL.

No sensitivity analysis an other price risk is
presented for the financial assets at FVTPL as the
Directors consider a reasonable possible change
to the fair value of the financial assets at FVTPL will
not have a significant effect to the Group’s profit or
loss.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2019, other than those
financial assets whose carrying amounts best
represent the maximum exposure to credit risk,
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group
arising from the amount of financial guarantees
provided by the Group is disclosed in note 33.

Trade receivables

Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on
an ongoing basis. The Group assess the potential
customer’s credit quality customer at new
customer acceptance. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 on trade receivables individually.

(a
(i)

(i)

(b)

45 g ()

SN

SN e\ i 15 ph 170 BEE =R B B A By
MBTAZAFEIAKRE
MEKBZRAR AERETXE
REERTELERKE -
RUMBTAEEKEUREH
RHZAEEER LT
AR - BRI R SN LR o

A 18 AR
A B EE AT EHA B35
B2 EBMRTER Y ATE
2 8) 7 [ 0 A (R AR LR o

HREFRR/EAFEFAR
HmHBEEI A FEZAE

AR T B AEEIRRE
EEAFE ARYERZRA

FEFABZZHBEEERT
HpEEERZEREIN

15 & /ol K& R s 18 5F 15
R-F-—HhF+=-—A=t—8"
RTRAERERERRSEER
[\ i A 2 7% F B IS B E S
AAREEREHR 2V BHERSR
EYAEERZMBRRZA
SE&EERRRO R E
33K E -

)1 ¢ e
EEERAEEEREK UHE
ERUHEEERRKA - AK
BetEZMN BRI GE
BEFPZEEER - AKETA
BHMERRERF - UEREN
RETHR@BRABEH - 1t
SN ERERE B MR EER
FORK AEERERAEE
&5 AR 3 B 5 e Wk R i B
EITRERE ©
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(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to
the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Review of past due receivables are
conducted by the Group bi-weekly. Normally,
other than those property leasing rental
receivables which are secured by rental deposits,
the Group does not obtain collateral from other
customers.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the Directors
have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, interest rate offered
to customers and collaterals received. Monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under 12-month ECL model on
balances individually.

The Directors estimate the estimated loss rates of
loan receivables based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the debtors
as well as the fair value of the collateral pledged by
the customers to the loan receivables. Based on
assessment by the Directors, the loss given default
is low in view of the fair value of the collaterals and
the Directors considers the 12-month ECL for loan
receivables is insignificant.

(b)

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

EZEWATE(E)
FMEERBRETEESRLZ
BEPETEMNEERN G - %F
T fif 5= R 0 B P 0 B HA B 3K
2 48 1 B 5P 40 8% & B Al 2 8K
B UEREPZHEER
AREFREZBRBEERIR -
AL B & R 1B 2 B8 HA /e WK
Be—HRmME BUAEERE
ERzREMEHEREKES
Sh - AREEATE R EME P
M e

JE W B 5
REBEEREFEERR BEFE
Bk—XBK AEEEEE
BE RHTEPZMEUAR
PR 2 B3 - ZREEE
R NEERRIURETE K
ElE AR o o - AERER
BREABRBEEEEEAY
RE SR B BIETTRUE RS -

ESEREEBARBTFHA
ZBEBEBRENHEUARTR
REBESERzERRZA
FE - B EEERZGE
BR REBEEFETZHE
ERBERRZAFE BHOB
BXERE MEERHER
ERZ1I2EAEREERHRL
REK -
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Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)

Other receivables and deposits

Management of the Group makes periodic
collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables and deposits based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also
available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The management of the
Group believes that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of
other receivables and deposits.

Restricted bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and cash and cash equivalents

The credit risk on restricted bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and cash and cash
equivalents of the Group is limited because the
counterparties are banks and financial institutions
with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies and no history of default in
the past. No loss allowance provision for restricted
bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents was recognised upon
application of HKFRS 9. The Group has limited
exposure to any single financial institution.

Other than structured bank deposits with a bank,
the Group does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

(b)

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

BN B R T2
AEEEEESRIEEL M
R BERBURAEAT
EXFB2TEAMEER  HE
R RE R 3T % 2 Tk A2
1T R S R B AP
o AEBEREMAE A%
B A M OR AT 2 OB
EHELEEANEEEER
B o

RIRBIRITIFH  FERIIR T 17
HURHEE RE 2 FEY
AEBEXRBBITFER - EH
RITEFNANERENBEEE
MZEERRABR  REEY
FHARKEBREENEKE
RTREEFRZBRTLER
e BEVEENLE &
RE W HmE L FOIRR
MERZREIRITER - EH
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MEREIERE  AREYET
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(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment (b)

(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading
assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit
rating

PR IEE TR

—AFFZA=+—HIFE

Description Trade receivables
ik BESEWMRIE

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

AEE 2 NEME & R 4RI R
e AT BRI A B :

Other financial
assets/other items

HibMBEE Hit
IHH

Low risk

1K & B2

Watch list

BEREE

P

Doubtful

R ER

Loss

&

Write-off

i

The counterparty has a low risk Lifetime ECL — not
default and does not have any  credit-impaired
past-due amounts

HFAENRRRR WE FRHERESEEE
{F {a] 380 B K I8 — EBEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

Debtor frequently repays after
due dates but usually settle
after due date

BBARTEEINHRRENR ERAPEHAEEESE
BEFEIHARBE — BIEERE

Lifetime ECL — not
credit-impaired

There have been significant
increase in credit risk since
initial recognition through
information developed
internally or external

resources
ﬂW*BFi%@\\*BXﬁZéﬁ EAEEREEEE
- EERBRBYSHER — BEERIE

K EREE N

There is evidence indicating the Lifetime ECL — credit-
asset is credit-impaired impaired
ERBEREELREERE CAPBEHEEERRE
- BEERE

There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

f“l%ﬁ H$El1?ﬁi\/\ﬁf’3
AU [El 2 H1

12-months ECL

128 AR E E B 18

12-months ECL

12{E ATEHIE B & 18

Lifetime ECL — not

credit-impaired

ERYBEREERER

— BEERE

Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired

ERBREREEERE
— BEERE

Amount is written off

i 54 70
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

41.2 Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to

M. HFEITRE)
M2 BEEGEEEERBE(E)

(b) 15E/ERRHEFE (&)

TRANAEEARZAYIE
EERFBIUBEEZREE

ECL assessment: [ B i A
External credit Internal credit 12-month or
rating rating lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
1218 A AR A
SMEBIEEEER ABEHEFR EFEBS PR T 42 {E
2018
—EN\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt BT BETT
Financial assets BRBHEBRATIIRZ
at amortised costs MBEE
Trade receivables B 5 WA 21 N/A Note 3 Lifetime ECL 21,449 22,035
@R Fft 33 ERMESEERESE
N/A Loss Credit-impaired 5,834 244
@R g FEERE
Loan receivables FEUE 3R 21 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 31,809 37,809
i A [liga iy 1218 AFEHEEEE
Restricted bank deposits 5 R #| 8 1717 3 23 A3-Al N/A 12-month ECL 33,833 69,755
i A REAEHREEESE
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 10,046 4,813
i@ A 1R2EREBREEERE
43,879 74,568
Short-term bank deposits %2 # 4R 17 7% X 23 Aa3-Aai N/A 12-month ECL 150,000 325,000
i A REAEREERSE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 100,000 250,000
A iE A REARBREEESE
250,000 575,000
Cash and cash equivalents R& EKHEEEEY 23 Aa3-Aal N/A 12-month ECL 134,893 47,200
i@ A 12 AEHEEREE
A3-A1 N/A 12-month ECL 149,851 131,416
i A REAEREEESE
B1-Baal N/A 12-month ECL 22,467 7,622
i@ A 1R2EREBREEERE
307,211 186,238
Other receivables and HAh ERIE KT € N/A Note 1 12-month ECL 16,076 17,660
deposits @A B 1 12EAEHREEER
Other items HiIEHE
Financial guarantee MISHERER 33 NA Low risk 12-month ECL 275,589 337,389
contracts (Note 2) (it 5£2) NEA [liga 12EAEHEERE

9
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Credit risk and impairment assessment

(Continued)
Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management,
the Group uses past due information to assess
whether credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

(b)

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

=

—

RETABEERRER - K
SEERBREHFEHERER
REVLSERIARE BEER

o e

Not past due/

no fixed

repayment
Past due terms Total

WA R
W EERH “@st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EETT EETRT EETR

Other receivables and deposits

H o e Y KR R AT &

—N\Ft_A=1—

— 16,076 16,076
— 17,660 17,660

As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NEF+=
As at 31 December 2018 R
2. For financial guarantee contracts, the gross carrying

amount represents the maximum amount the Group
has guaranteed under the respective contracts. The
fair values of the purchasers’ properties are higher
than the Group’s guaranteed amount to the banks,
and thus the Directors considered the loss given
default in the financial guarantee contracts is low and
the 12-month ECL on financial guarantee contracts
is insignificant.

3. For trade receivables, the Group has applied the
simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss
allowance at lifetime ECL. The Group assessed the
ECL on trade receivables individually on each
debtor.

2, RUBERAEOME - REZ
BEEASBEREAEEAOER
ZEREEHE - BAMEZRF
ERRAEERRITEL 2 #
REE - AU ESRBRYBER
BRZBHBEXRE M
BERANH212EAFHREE
BRI TERX -

3 MESEKKEATE AKE
8 A 1 B R 2 B 0%
B2 L% - A
EHE R RBRRE A%
LR INL-ET e
2 T AR AT (E 5
#F i -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
41.2 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(Continued)
The estimated loss rate of each debtor is
estimated based on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are
adjusted for forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In the opinion of the Directors, the lifetime ECL on
trade receivables are considered insignificant.

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade
receivables under the simplified approach.

M. HFEITRE)
M2 BEEGEEEERBE(E)

(b) 15E/ERRHEFE (&)

BEBAZGEFTEEXTIRIE
BEHAREFFHRAZBED
BRENREN L X E
FNHTBERERAKB WA
MGHATIEMLERHELRE -

EERR BHRYFAEZE
RMEREEEBRRE AL
E N

TRINFREBIETARES
FEMW FRRER 2 MBE LG

Lifetime ECL (credit-impaired)

ERREREERE
(FlEEHEE)
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$°000 HK$'000
EETR BT T
As at the beginning of the R & ER 9]
reporting period 244 765
Changes due to financial AR —H—B®RAZH%
instruments recognised as at TEMmME%:
1 January:
— Impairment loss recognised ~ — B &3 2 il & &5 18 5,757* —
— Write-offs — 8 (167) (521)
As at the end of the reporting R EHR
period 5,834 244

*

Full impairment on the gross carrying amount was
recognised for respective credit-impaired trade
receivables.

- REAEZ 2BRESER S
EBEZERRERSE KK
1§ o
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(b) Credit risk and impairment assessment

(c)

(Continued)

The Group writes off a trade receivable when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or when the trade receivables are
over two years past due, whichever occurs earlier.
The Group has taken legal action against the
debtors to recover the amount due and none of
the trade receivables that have been written off is
subject to enforcement activities.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade
payables, accrued expenses and other payables
and borrowings, and also in respect of its cash
flow management. The Group’s objective is to
ensure adequate funds to meet commitments
associated with its financial liabilities. Cash flows
are closely monitored on an ongoing basis. The
Group will raise funds from the realisation of its
assets if required. The Directors are satisfied that
the Group will be able to meet in full its financial
obligations as and when they fall due in the
foreseeable future.

(b)

(c)

155 /E g R 5 (5 7F 15 ()

MBEERBREBABARE
s RE B |mERAIKRE 5
2 (PIInEBHAD ETIRRIAE
ABERFF)  HEHEWFIA
ERRNBAME ARFHLE
RE) - AEE R E 5 E W
R - AEE S HEBEAK
HUER1TE) - LABRIBIHAFRIA -
2 M8 < B 5 18 WK R B &
EHRBREE -

B E = R

MEE B B 15 A & B X
BITEMGAERBIREEL
R\ o AEEBLERE S RN
KIA -~ R E A K E A A 5K
BREEARRERSREE
BEEZnBEeAR AKE
ZEBERERBRHNECRETT
HEPBABEEH AL -]
EREFEXEYES -1F
FE KEREEENREER
T BEFEMAKENARK
KiGee e BREED BB E
£
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
41.2 Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The following tables detail the remaining
contractual maturities at the reporting date of the
Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the
reporting date) and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Specifically, for term loans
which contain a repayment on demand clause
which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow
based on the earliest time band in which the entity
can be required to pay, that is if the lenders were
to invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect.

M. BBIRE)
M2 MEEAREEEERBE(E)

(c) HEE2EEE)
TRFANAEB 2 HBRER
WE B RSO HFS
TRBEAENARFTRRESTE (B
ERAAOF =R (I AFEF
R)ERBEBRZMEFELZ
FENF) RA KB AL AN
ZRPAHGE - LERE 5
BEARRTEERBITEZ
BEREEGERZERERM
5 AR EERAES
HEBIREEN AN ESER
AERARAXNZRFHR
BEZRERL -

31 December 2019
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
—¥-AET-A=t+-H
HERARA-RARRERE

Weighted

average Total More than
interest [ {EE Within 1 year but
rate Carrying undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cashflow  ondemand 5years

i BHARHR
FHHE ReRkg —ERE —EUE
% FREE ag REXE BREUA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BRI BETR BT
Trade payables ZHRFR N/AT & R 17,358 17,358 17,358 -
Accrued expenses and other payables B BRRAMERFE NATEHR 459,178 459,178 459,178 -
Rental deposits received BEhEske NATEHR 156,450 156,450 39,548 116,902
Bank loans FIEH 2.60 1,944,063 2,080,750 260,182 1,820,568
Financial guarantee contracts HBEEREH N/AT & R - 275,589 275,589 -
Lease liabilities HERE 3.93 11,271 11,832 5,025 6,807
2,588,320 3,001,157 1,056,880 1,944,277

3
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) M. BBIR(E)
41.2 Financial risk management objectives and N2 BRAKGEEBBERBRK(E)
policies (Continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) (c) HEE2EEE)

31 December 2018
Maturity analysis — Undiscounted cash flows
2 \E+ZA=t-H
HBERAT-RFTRRERE

Weighted
average Total More than
interest contractual Within 1 year but
rate Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than
% amount cash flow on demand 5 years

g BRRTER

THH= REnE —ERg —FNE
% REE ag REXE  BRFHUA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BRI BETT
Trade payables BHRENTE NATE A 20977 20,077 20977 -
Accrued expenses and other payables i EAREMERRE NATE A 362,678 362,678 362,678 -
Rental deposits received BEhEsEe NATE B 173,362 173,362 97,029 76,333
Bank loans RITER 2.21 1,562,788 1,605,586 1,087,667 517,919
Financial guarantee contracts BBERAN NATE - 337,389 337,389 -

2,119,806 2,499,992 1,905,740 504,252
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Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table set out below summarises the maturity
analysis of the bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause amounting to HK$149,900,000
(2018: HK$696,700,000) based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan
agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “within 1 year or on
demand” time band in the maturity analysis shown
above. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the Directors do not consider that it is
probable that the banks will exercise its discretion
to demand immediate repayment. The Directors
believe that such terms will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in their loan agreements.

(c)

REEREE ()
TERBME S EERKEBIERK
2 SR 1T E F0E #149,900,0007T
—Z — )\ : ##696,700,000
TDIRER RSB EEEE
REM Z B BB R DT - %25
SREEREGONEFTE R
B Al ZF28aR
EXFRE BB RN R —F
A Tk FA S B | B T 6 B P 4 BB
ZBF c ERAKE 2B AR
g EERABRITTIARABET
FERIEEEZRAFER &
EHE ZSEHERKEE
R ATE B EEKEEE
;ﬁ °

Maturity analysis — Bank loans subject to a repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayment dates

REFEEXRBMELZANBERON -HERRRERRRZRTER

More than More than
Total 1 year, 2years,
contractual Within but not but not
Carrying undiscounted 1 year or exceeding exceeding
amount cash flow on demand 2years 5years
BHRIH —Ehg —£lE WEUL
fREE ReREEH REXE EFRBmE EFRBLE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BRI ERTT EETL BRI ERTT
As at 31 December RZE-NEF
2019 +ZA=+—H 149,900 153,305 153,305 - -
As at 31 December RZZ-N\E
2018 TZA=+—H 696,700 714,442 561,493 152,949 -
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42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 42. EETHAERZEEHER
RELATING TO FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRFIIAEEEGEEHERCEEE
relating to financing activities, including both cash and non- ) PIEEESNIERSED - BN FE432
cash changes which represents net debt as presented in Note W2 FER BMEFDELECABENARE
43. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for SAERAEBGERERERADER
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in BMETZHTRCAECRECHERE °
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash
flows from financing activities.
Amount
due to non-
Amount controlling
dueto  shareholders of
shareholders subsidiaries  Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
ERHEBAT
ERRERE FERRRRE HEaR e @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETTL BRI BETT BETT
Asat 1 January 2018 RZZ-\$—-A—-H - - - 1,628,120 1,628,120
Cash flow, net BeHERE (56,662) (12:345) - (3147) (72,154)
Other non-cash changes: EtkRe g
Finance costs recognised BRRBARE - - - 37815 37815
Dividends declared BEERRE 56,662 - - - 56,662
Distribution to non-controlling PETHBARFEREE
shareholders of subsidiaries - 12,345 - - 12,345
As at 31 December 2018 RZB-N\%
+-B=1+-H - - - 1,562,788 1,562,788
Adjustment upon the application BB BB M K REEAF165 %
of HKFRS 16 kL - - 5,983 - 5,983
Asat 1 January 2019 R=Z2-nE-A—H - - 5,983 1,562,788 1,568,771
Cash flow, net BeHERE (56,662) - 718) 304,074 264,694
Other non-cash changes: EtkRe g
New leases entered nERE - - 7697 - 7697
Finance costs recognised BRRBBARE - - 309 57,201 57510
Dividends declared BERRE 56,662 - - - 56,662
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-NE+ZA=1-A - - 1,211 1,944,063 1,955,334
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The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for its shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes during the current year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated
as the sum of the Group’s borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and other bank deposits as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Total capital is
calculated as total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The Group aims to maintain the
debt to equity ratio at a manageable level.

AREEAER Y TERBARRALE
BTS2 8 AR R RIRHE
9% E A4 15 1R 4R -

AEEEREEBERESMERALEAR
B UYHEFLRAE REFKFARENRN
A AEEAABRRABRRIERHE 2BE -
R RBEEERNKBETHN RAFER
WEL BT  BRIBEFIEHED -

AEENAaES L XEEBNEE
BRUABER)ERER  FEBALE YT
BRAKRAREEEBEE 2 BNRKIE S KB
EEYRHEMBITERGE - BERU
REMBERARI A ERBREGNE - K
SEHETEHRF AR ERLEERAIERE 2
K o

2018
—TN\&F

HK$'000

BET T

Borrowings BB 1,944,063 1,562,788
Lease liabilities HEBE 11,271 —

— Financial assets at FVTPL — BRAFEFTAER MK

BE (99,255) (92,443)

— Restricted bank deposits — ZPRHEITF R (43,879) (74,568)

— Short-term bank deposits — RHIRITE K (250,000) (575,000)

— Cash and cash equivalents —BEeMReFEY (307,211) (186,238)
Net debt FEB 1,254,989 634,539
Total equity S 20,605,536 20,456,219
Net debt to equity ratio FEREEHEREE 0.061:1 0.031:1
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The outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) has led to many
travel bans and lockdowns imposed by various countries and
regions around the world. Increased global travel restrictions
amid virus infections locally and overseas also already
substantially hindered the manufacturing capability of China,
which may in turn disrupt global supply chains and
international trade, and hence a severe threat to global
economy. The Group anticipates both the wider local economy
and the property leasing market will remain weak and are
unlikely to fully recover in the short term. Given the
unpredictable nature of these constantly changing
circumstances, the related impact on the consolidated results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition of the Group
could not be reasonably and tangibly evaluated at this stage
and will be reflected in the Group’s 2020 interim and annual
financial statements.

¥ A E AR % = (COVID-19) E B H 2 X % (@
BRMBBETAENKRITESREH -
AN K8 IME I 2 RIRERHIEZ &
TREIMRERE N BRI EH R IRHEE
REBSEBEPE  HE2REEBEXNRER
E-o-RAit SEBERNEKERERKE
ST RERSS - RHBETEME -
ERELBER T Z2EMMEE - BRTEX
BEMGEFHEENGEKERSE Re
MEMPABMANEEEE - AERRAE
SEN_F_TFRHMFEHBHRERS
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